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We give people the freedom
to live in sustainable, vibrant
eighbourhoods. Places that bring
people together in communities
where evervone can belong.

STRATEGIC REPORT

02
04
06
(1]
12
14
18
20
28
30
40
44

At a glance

Portfolio overview

Highlights

CEO's staternent

Business modei

Strategy and KPls

Market review

Portfolio review

Stakeholder engagement
Environment, social and governance
Principal risks and uncertainties
Business reviaw

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

48
49
S0
51
52
55
S6
58

Corporate governance report
Wates Principles application

The Board

The Executive Team

Audit Committee report
Remuneration Committee report
Directors’ report

Staternent of Directors responsibiities

Throughout this Annuai Report certain industry terms and alternative
performance measures are used, see Glossary and Busingss review
for full explanation on Non-IFRS Measures and reconciliations of
alternative performance measures to IFRS numbers

Annual Report 2022
n

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
60 Independent auditor’'s report
68 Group statement of
comprehensive income
89 Group statement of finrancial position
70 Group statement of charges
in equity
71 Group cash flow statement
72 Notes teo the financial statements

100 Company statement
of financial positicn
101 Company statement
of changes 1IN equity

102 Notes forming part of the
Company financial statements

FURTHER INFORMATION

107 Glossary of terms
108 APPENDIX SECR
Reporting Methodology

110 Company information



STRATEGIC REPORT

At a glance

VIBRANT COMMUNITIE
WHERE EVE

RYON

CAN BELONG

What we do

Get Living 15 a leading provider of high quality homes for rent,
commutted 10 creating neighbourhoods where people can thrive,
come together and know they belong We are for people who
value not just a great home In a disunctive naighbourhood, but aiso
the opportunity to connect with others In a welcoming community.

We create excaeptional neighbourhoods and we build them at
scate From design to delivery we are inspired by Bringing people
together 'n places where they have the space to breathe. We are
a picneering business with a goal to deliver a resident proposition
with the best in choice, service and environment, thereby delivering
strong returns for our sharehoiders.

Get Living was founded in 2013 with the UK's first large-scale
build-to-rent neighbourhood at East Village, Stratford. Today,
we have aimost 4,000 homes across three neighbourhoods in
London and Manchester, with a plannad pipeline that will see
the busiress grow to over 10,000 homas across the UK.

Get Living PLC
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Our vision

At Get Living, it's our
vision to offer people

a better way to live and
rent in sustainable,
vibrant communities
that build belonging,
nurture togetherness,
and create opportunity.



OUR NEIGH:

BOURHOODS

NEW MAKER
YARDS

New Maker Yards offers
canal-side living just minutes
from Manchester and Salford’s
vibrant centres.

Salfard

Greater Manchester

Greater London

east village
london exo

Our first and flagship
neighbourhood, East
village, is a vibrant 67-acre
community on the doorstep of
Glueen Elizabeth Clympic Park.

Mancnester

Hackrey

Srratford
ELEPHANT ELEPHANT AND CASTLE NEWTON
CENTRAL TOWN CENTRE PLACE

In London's zane 1, Elephant
Central sits at the heart of the
wider Elephant and Castle
regeneration area and is
perfectly placed for city living.

The new town centre will deliver
close to 500 new homes and the
rejuvenation of what is afready
ane of London’s most dynamic
and vibrant areas.

Annual Report 2022
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Get Living's third
London neighbourhood will
be a transformational scheme
for this well-connected
South London hub.
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Portlolio overview

BRILLIANT URBAN
NEIGHBOURHOODS

Location

London
.20
2,445
Commercial spac
134, 140 sq ft
2013
east village
london E20 » Read more on pages 20 and 21
oooooooo ELEPHANT
rlephanl and CENTRAL
Caste, London
632
Commercia ial space
65, 659 sq [t



Location

Salford,
Manchester

S21
11657 sq ft

Launchod in

2019

» Read more on pages 24 and 25

NEW MAKER
YARDS

.WITH MORE TO COME

NEWTON
PLACE

ELEPHANT AND CASTLE
TOWN CENTRE

Location

Lewisham,
London

Homes

649

+ Read more on page 2§

Location
Elephant
and Casile,
London

Homes
4835

s Read more on page 27
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Commercial space

87,328 sqt

Launching in

2023

Commaercial space

181,03 % sqt

Launching in

2026
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Highlights

ONTINUED
GROWTH

Net profit (Em) Portfolio value (£bn)

%136.3m %2.73bn

A 134.6% A 13.8%

Revenue (Em)

9.99.2m

A40.3%

Homes

3,918

A 26.2%

[ 99.2
\‘
|
|
I

3,918

3,105
70.7

2022

2021 2022 2021

Financial and operational

* Ir June 2022, 289 further homes were launched at
New Maker Yards, iIncreasing cur total homes to 827
n Middiewooa Locks, Salfora

* Portlands Place opencd its doors In August 2022,
adding 524 new homes to the heart of East Village

+ Strong rental demand and the laurch of new homes
in Saiford and East Village drove an increase in gross
revanue to £99 2m, up 40 3%

.

A strong performance across the business saw
net profit increase 134.6% to £736.3m

+ Underpinning the financial results are
cperaticnal eff clencies and a continued focus
on cost management

* The balance sheet :s robust with £1.5Tbn
(2021 £133bn) of net assets, 47 2% (2021: 46.2%)
aggregate Loan to Value and weighted average
maturity of debt 15 6.5 years (2021 78 years)

The Group has identified pipeline opportunities in
Leeds, Maidenbhead, Birmingham and Leatherhead
giving access to a pool of potential Investmeants
within the private rented sector

¢ Get Living was shortlisted for the BtR Specalist
Award at the EG Awards in November 2022

136.3
2.4

* f

‘ ‘ 273
I
|
|

S8.1

2021 2021 2022

Environmental and social

Get Livrg was awarded the top 5-star GRESS rating
for the third year running for the operatioral portfolic
In recogrition of our sustainability performance

We are working towards comphance with the
recommeandations of the UN's Task Force for
Chimate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) and
in 2022 carried out a TCFD Gap Analysis

In June 2022 three Get Living neighbourhoods
featured in the HomeViews Top 10 "best places to hve”
n the UK as voted by our residents

Inspiring East Village and Inspinng Elephant
Community Funds both launched in 2022,
support:ng local projecrs and chantable causes

Get Living Gives Back launched in 2022 with
colleagues participating in group chartable
imtiatives in the communities in which we operate

Throughout 2022 we partnered with our supply chain
to innovate the lifecycle of domestic furniture and
kickstart a circular economy business modei

Get Living PLC
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CLEO’s statement

BUILDING BELONGING:
CREATING VIBRANT AND
CONNECTED URBAN
NEIGHBOURHOODS FIT

FOR THE FUTURE




tis a mark of the progress and potential of Get Living

that we are posting a positive set of results in this

Annual Report for the year ended 3" December 2022

It 15 a point that merits emphasis because this has been
a year characterised across the UK by a miid recovery i the
winter and spring. a better summer followed by a disruptive
antamre, Got Living shiuwed resilierce in the face of rapidly
changing geo-political, domestic governmental, economic and
consurner confidence circumstances. This reflects the strength
of our portfolio of totemic destination assets, the platform
we have built, the resident proposit:on we offer, the tireless
work of our committed team and the professionalism of our
Investors whose support 1s resclute

It 15 why we have referred to our Report as Bullding Beionging.,
It 15 based on the unrivalled expertise that Get Living has to
croate thriving neighbourhoods that bring peopte together

In a way that kindies relationships, attachments and familiarity.
This provides us with a powerful platform for the future.

The year 2022 saw us launch further sigrificart new

housing provisicn at East Village and at New Maker Yards,
nereasing the operational portfolio by 26%, taking us to just
under 4,000 homes At Lew.sham, we will soon be iaunching
649 rew homes and the corstruction of 485 homes i1s
underway at Elephant and Castle Town Centre Further
pipelne aevelopments are pranned across the UK which
sigrf.cantly add to Gur portfo 1o,

The strategic proposition to investors of establishing an
exemplary 8tR pertfolio and platform, providing high guality
homes N vibrant neighbourhooas which s supported by
cormmensurate service, 's Ircreasingly achieving the ‘evel of
scale that remmunerates shareholaers with out-performing tota:
returns ana net proft Further scale from here becomes maore
rewarding i terms of accretion

66

Arecord vear
positions us well
for further progress
as we enter an
exciting period

of opportunity.”

The legacy of the pandemic has in no small way reminded us
of the true value of connections and community, especiaily \r
brg critres, where lonelingss and the pursuit of wellbemng and
purpose can be chailerging. At a tima when the UK s facing
problems of workforce capacity, business investment anda
productivity, Get Living has a vital role to play in being part of
the solution, provicing Nspinng homes and newghbourhoods
which support high gualty jobs and prospects In the local area.

It's not :ust where we Iive, but how we hive We are developirg
places for discovery, where togetherress, choice and
exploration are central tenets of the Get Living proposition

It creates an opportunity for Get Living to be the defining
creator of homes and neighbourhoods where people know
they belong.

Financial Performance

Total revenues for the year to December 2022 reached
£99.2m, up 40.3% on the previous year Gross profit was

£63 2m, up 37 7% for the same perod. This translated into

a gross margin of 63.7%. The year saw a significant revaluation.
uplift of the portfol.o of £136.0m, which fed through to create
an overall net profit of £136.3m.

These results are manifestations of a number of themes
across the year Demand for homes was high, but interestingly
it was from a broader demographic and from people who
were seaking more than just a home. endorsing cur resident
proposition about place. belonging and ambient well-being.
Qccupancy levels typically stabilised at over 98% and rent
collection averaged at 97%. That fed through 1nto rental
growth ahead of expectations. Operating costs were a big
focus and. notwithstanding the inflationary influences bearing
down on all areas, cost per unit - the metric by which we
manage direct costs - saw reductions. Central costs were
held firm, deployed across a growing portfoiio

Annual Report 2022
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CEQO’s statement continued

Financial Performance continued

Capital expenditure inciuded two mobrlisations at Portlands
Ptace in East V-llage ard the final phase of New Maker Yards
alongs:de 1dent:fled asset management cpportunitias

The debt arrangements across the Group closed 2022 with a
weighted average matunty of 6.5 years and the average cost
of debt was 3 2% We are confident in our ability to refinance
the debt facilities maturing in 2023 and 2024 whick fund cur
Portlands Place and New Maker Yards assets. At a time of
rapidly rsing swap rates, the value of the Company’s hedging
nstruments Increasad,

Finally, the December revaiuation came at a time when all

reai estate assets were coming under pressure from macro
headwinds The BtR sector appears to have been among the
most resiient and the Get Living portfolio one of the most
resilient within that sector, validating once agatn the business
model focused on major urban neighbourhoods n and around
London and the principal UK cities

Market outlook

The UK's structural shortage of housing s well documented.
The Government’'s recent abandonment of 1ts 300000 p a
target and its delays to arn updated overall planning strategy,
coupled with wider headwinds of builld cost inflation and
higher costs of debt, will lead to a significant urder delivery
of new homes for the foresaeable short-term Activity within
the for-sale housing market has slowed on the back of higher
mortgage costs, the end of Help to Buy and receding prices.
The delivery of new affordable housing stock by the Housirg
Assoclation sector is also seeing 2 marked slowdown. Alongside
that. the buy-to-let iInvestar sector 1s experencing an exodus
in the face of increasingly onerous regulation and taxation.

The BtR sector has ar ‘mportant role to piay in providing

the housing that an increasing'y wide demographic s

seeking As the UK looks to create the conditions for
companies to grow and invest, In turn creating the conditions for
the recrurtment and retertior of talent in well paid, productive
and purpeseful occupations, we wiil be heavily reliant on the
younger generat.ons to drive our future nationai prosperity.
The mobiity of this group 1s therefore both necessary and
desirable, and the reed for a great home in the urban centres
where the jobs are located 1s essential

The housing sector therefore 1s 1n transition, and In 1t Hes
opportunity. As the original pioneer, Get Living 1s well placed
to expand its maedel and its operations to a much higher ievel
on the back of a aecade of experience and with the long-term
capitar that sits behind it Resident preferences are changing,
new formats are emerg:ng ard a desire for genuine quality of
experience I1s sought after, aill of which speaks to the unigue
Get Living proposition. Data from Trust for London shows
that, in London alone, the population is expectedtoriseto 84
mithon In the next eight years, and 300,000 additional rentai
properties will be reguired according to JLL's Londan 3tR
Report Our mission 1s to respond with the soiution to

the problem, with discipiined, well ressarched, iInnovative
acquisitions and new developments

2023 and 2024

The next twelve months will see Portlands Place and the

fimal phase of New Maker Yards reach full stabilisation with
occupancy of at least 95% Combined with the stabilised
assets 1n the rest of East Village, New Maker Yards and
Elephant Cenrtral, our task is to consistently improve the value
propesition for residents as we seek to attract new customers
and retamn existing ones. Lewisham will see the launch of 649

Get Living PLC
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new homes at the end of 2023, including 119 new co-living
studios and 106 affordable homes on a London Living Rent
tenure. This will be above a new street of retail and food and
beverage provision, together with a gym and six-screen
cmema. Thig s another exciting momert when the Get Living
model has its chance to be validated and further innovated.

In the background, we are alsc refreshing our technology suite
ard centralised customer hub, so that the business i1s fit for
the significant increase in the number of operational homes
Ths wiil iImprove operat:onal efficency. customer experence,
data analytics and risk management

Looking further ahead. we have plars o expand our portfolio
by a further 6,500 homes across the UK. This includes one of
London's most significart regeneration schemes at Elephant
and Castie Town Centre, the first phase of which s due to
launch in 2026

‘n terms of new pipeline, we anticipate that the cpportunitres
we continually screen will convert 'nto rewarding acguisitions
towards the second half of 2023

ESG as a force for good

Our arrbitious ESG agenda s progressively becoring
embedded into every area of our culture and operations
for the beneafit of our residents, our pecple, and ultimately
for our 'nvestars i terms of shareholder value

For the third year in a row, we were awardoed a GRESB 5 Star
rating for our standing portfoiio against a benchmark which
rises each year

We are implemenrting the firdings of the TCFD gap analysis,
now gIving rise to training on chimate awareness, improved
record keeping and updated policies for MR, development,
strategy and r sk management New nvestment in metering
haraware and consent workflows 15 mproving the quaity,
reliability and efficiency of utilhly consumption data collections
that underpin multiple energy and carbon disclosures

We are aiso establishing the finarcial and operational impact
of aligning ex sting neighbourhoods with the CRREM net zero
cathway through retrofit works

Finally

No annual review of the year would be complete without

a sincere expression of gratitude to the many people who
contribute to Get Living's success To our residents, who
ertrust us to provide therm with an opportunity to belong in our
noighbourhoods, thank you for making them the communities
that they are To those within Get Living, bringing their passion,
anergy and professionalism ta work every day, my profouna
appreciation for all your commitrment and mutuai support of
each other in every collaboratior. To our investors who support
us with their capital, theirr wise counsel and thewr ambition, itis a
privilege to serve you and the stakeholders you in turn ook after.

At the time of writing, Australian superannuation fund Aware
Super has recently exchanged with QD UK Holdings LP
(“QD") to purchase their 22% stake n Get Living and join our
group of investors This means that we part ways with QD.
one of our founding investors, who have played a pivetai role
In the success of the company. from the early days of
launching Get Living to where we are taday. | would ke to
thank QD for ther vision ana theair invaluable support and
commitmernrt to Gat Livirg 'n Aware Super, we are exfremey
privileged to have a long-term, purpose-driven and mature
.rvestor, and | look forward to working closely with therr team,
Aware Super's backing of Get Living 1s a huge vote of
confidence In our business, which gives us real firepower to
drve ambitious growth plars, in service to all our ‘nvestors

The year to December 2022 has been a confidert set of
results, but It 1s an important step N an exciting ;ourney
towards a wider vis.on ana miss on It will see Get L ving
cont nue 1ts successfu: growth, driven by the pursuit of
erhanced business performance, creating a class-leading
portfolio of neighbourhoods in which peopie can connect,
thrive and belong, and as a culrmination of that, rewarding
shareholders with commensurate returns

Rick de Blaby
CEO
27 April 2023

Annual Repeort 2022
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Business model

HOW W

- CREAT

We create value by building the exemplar BtR platform, driven by a clear vision and mission, creating sustainable
neighbourhoods that are fit for the future and delivering long-term investor returns.

N
S
A ciear vision

Inputs
and mission

Robust capital structure

Experienced and

diverse workforce

Tachnology

enabling analytics,
data and research

Capital
investment
and future
growth ‘o
. .QOA
R on page 14 %%
2
3 %
N s,
é
g B
153 Rl
“ @
[}
o
-
-]
Customer-focus
approach
Operational Enyironmental
sc_a!e an' C and social
efficiencies
» Read more
on page 15

impact
» Read more

on page 16
4 isk e &
Management pa%

Sustainable
reighbourhoods fit for

Outputs
the future

A compeling resident Imnovation-driven tearms Long-term capital
——  proposit.on underpinned  ——  thriving in a cellaborative —— and income returns
by market insight environment

for investors
Qur purpose is to create places that are sustainable
and vibrant, places where people belong

Get Living PLC
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Strategy and KPlIs

T T

R

M

GROW TH

Grow the property portfolio by funding and acquiring high quality newly developed homes that
provide secure income streams with the potential for rental growth and capital enhancement.

Activity in 2022

In Jure 2022, 289 further homes
were laurched at New Maker Yards,
increasing our total homes to 821
in Middlewood Locks, Salford

Portlands Place opened its doors in
August 2022, adding 524 new homes
to the heart of East Village.

We have continued to invest in

the improvement of homes and
neighbourhoods within our portfoilo,
with a refresh programme upgrading
the quality of our existing homes

In East Village.

Allish Christian-West was

appointeg as Chief Operating Officer
In November, providing strategic
leadership to portfolio management,
aevelopment and ESG.

Looking forward
» Newton Place and Elephant and Castie

Town Centre developments are well
progressed, anticipating to launch in
2023 and 2026 respectively

The Group has identified pipeline
opportunities In Leeds, Maiderhead,
Birmingham and Leatherbead
giving access to a pool of potential
investrments within the private
rented sector.

UK BtR sector fundamentals remain
strong with continued demand fer
prvately rented purpose bullt homaes.

Get Living PLC
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Total portfolio value (£bn)

$.2.73bn’

2022 2.73*
2021 2.40
2020 2.03

KPI definition (non-IFRS)

The aggregate total vaiue of
the Group's property portfaro
ndependently vaiued by
CBRE 1n accordance with
RICS valuation standards

Calculatad in the Business review on
pages 44 to 46.

Average cost of debt (%)

3 0/

eim /0

2022 3.2
2021 2.7

2020 28

KPI deflnition (non-IFRS)

Interest rate on ioans, weighted
by the amount borrowed relative
to total borrowings
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Efficient and effective management of portfolio through our experienced and
innovative team ensuring operating costs are controlled to gain efficiencies.

Activity in 2022
+ The Customer Hub continued to

provide certralised customer services
10 support all neighbourhoods.

AN n-house development team has
beer establishea bringing a wealth

of experience and expertise of project
management and construction

N June 2022 three Get Living
neghbourhoods featured in the
HomeViews' Top 10 "best places
to 'wve” in the UK, as voted by
Oour residents

Looking forward

Focus on optimisirg the Group
operating model to improve
resident experience ard reduce
operating costs.

Supporting our dynamic and diverse
team, to cortinue working efficiently
In a collaborative working culture.

Annual Report 2022
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Net rental income (€m)
*
562.6m

2022 62.6*

2021 45.4

2020 35.5

KPl deflnition (non-{FRS)

Rertar income net of direct
property costs less managemeant
fees Refer to page 43 for the
reconciliation of net rental \rcome.

Calculated in the Business review on
pages 44 to 46.

Rental income growth (%)
19 0/
. /O

2022 19.5

2021 11.4

2020 21

KPl definition {non-IFRS)
Growth in rental income for
propert:es held throughout
the entire current period on
a like-for-like basis.
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Swrategy and KPIs continued

ENVIRONM

—NTAL

AND SOCIAL

IMPACT

Future proofing assets against emerging physical climate impacts,
ehgaging with decarbonisation and supporting positive social outcomes.

Activity in 2022

Get Living was awarded the top
5-star GRESB rating for the third
year rynning for the operaticnal
portfolic in recognitior of our
sJstainabiity performance.

+ Dorations were made thraughout
the year to local projects, charities
and inipiatives N the communities
In which we operate.

We investigated the recommendations
of the UN's Task Force for Climate-
related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)
and carned out a TCFD Gap Analysis

Energy efficiency improvements were
brought forward to reduce langlord
energy consumption through improved
ighting specification and controls.

* We carred out a holistic raview of
our approach to energy consumption
data, with a view to impraving data
quality and coverage, and reducing
the operational costs of colating
utility consumption readings

Looking forward

v A new programme, run by Raeburn,
will runin The Lab E20, London's
rew creative hub in East Village.
Titled Regenerative by Design, the
programme celebrates London's
cultural innovation across chmate
action the circular economy.

* Ajl three operaticnal neighbourhoods
and the new Lewisham deveicpment
will launch inspirng Community Sunds
to support local community projects.

= A new programme of resident events
will take place to bring people together
and encourage new connections.

We plan to roll out energy effictency
werks across multiple buildings
and neighbourhoods,

« Qur emerging ESG Data Strategy
will improve visibiity of occupant's
consumption data and help close the
performance gap between predicted
and observed energy performance.

Get Living PLC
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Greenhouse gas emissions

24.6 (+1%)

2022 24.6
2021 24.4*
2020 22.7

KPI definition (non-IFRS)

L ke-for-tike/degree day adiusted
intensity (kgCOC,e/m?) basea or all
consuming assets owned for two
consecutive years within the Group
See tabe 1 on page 38 for detalls
* Historic data for 2021 s re-stated to reflect

data quality improvements and like-for -Itke
metrics reflect the revised nistonic data.

Energy usage

39.4k (:5%

2022 39.4k
2021 37.5k*
2020 21.1k

KPI definition {(non-IFRS)
Like-for-lke/degree day adyusted
consumption (kWwh in 000C's)
based on all consuming assets
owned for two consecutive years
within the Group. See table 2 on
page 39 for detals.

*  Historic data for 2021 is re-stated to reflect

data guality improvements and like-for-like
metrics reflect the revised historic data.
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Environment, social and governance continued

Making sustainability personal
Every Get Living employee sets personal targets to integrate ESG
Into their work and appraisal for the year. To help cur team relate

ENVIRONMENTAL
SUSTAINABILITY

CONTINUED

Circular Economy panel discussion with David Philips.

key chimate 1ssues to therr day-to-day work, over 170 employees
attended climate literacy traning workshops in 2022,

These workshops explored climate within the broader
sustainability landscape, including 1ssues such as physical ang

transition risk, and how these relate to Get Living. Every employee

was also invited to additional fraining to update them on Get
Living's ESG progress throughout the year.

Kicksiarting the Circular Economy

Throughout 2022 we partnered with our supply chain to
innovate the hfecycle of domestic furniture and kickstart
an exemplar circular econemy business model.

We identified that furniture in our older homes was
becoming worn and in need of replacement. A traditonal,
linear business model would have condemned oider
furrmiture to landfill. However, Get Living worked with our
supply chain to assess 16,840 indvidual items of furniture
for refurbishirnent and re-use

This resulted In 2,098 items (12%) being refurbished

and re-used within the Get Living estate. A further
7.409 items (44%) were refurbished and donated to
charity, with the remainder re-sold or diverted to energy
generation from waste The project represents sizable
potential value, both as direct charitable denations, ana
the social smpact of supporting low-carbon skills.

Re-sold items were marketed for sale under our furmiture
provider’s new consumer brand "Release”. Our partner
plans to expand the consumer brand with ex-rental
furnmiture from across their wider business.

Get Living PLC
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Improving environmental data quality

Access to high quality data 1s essential to understanding,
improving and commumcating our operational energy and
carbon performance, However, as a landlord, we are particularly
reliant on access Lo residents” and commercial tenants” utility
meter readings, which underpin key metrics such as Energy
Use Intensity and Scope 1. 2 and 3 carbon emissions

We have identified cpportunities to autoemate utiities data
and iImprove the granularity of data inputs through the Data
Communications Company (DCC) smart meter network, heat
networks, and loT-enabled sensors, These wili replace current
practices, which are labour intensive and reliant on less
frequent reporting mtervals.

We are working to automate the collation of landlord utilities
data for common parts and void properties, where we are
the ultimate bill payer. Elsewhere, we have developed a plan to
originate and maintain occupants’ informed consent to access
rther automated utihty data, which make up the majonty of
our operational emissions Across all utility consumption data
sources, we wish to reduce reporting intervals from a matter
of months to a matter of minutes

In the meantime, we have revamped our internal ESG data
dashboards to track the use of automated readings versus
manual and estimated readings as a XPl. We have also
aligned our guarterly internal reporting with the EPRA's
sustainabyhity Best Practice Recommendatons {EPRA sBPR)
for absciute electricity, heat ng, gas and water consumprtion,
carbon emissions and waste diversion rates.

Building for the future

Get Living recognise the need to future proof building
performance during the des.gn and construction phase.
we have therefore consolidated our reguirements for new
developments to guide our discussions with third party
develppers and inform our in-house development projects.

The standards reflect a fabric-first "energy hierarchy” and
draw on the Low Energy Trarsttion Intiative (LETI) guidance,
errerging reguiat'ons (ncluding the Future Homes Standard
and draft London Plan), and professional standards.

Specific targets for Energy Use Intersity, space

heating demand and embodied carbon align with LETI
recommendations and reference guidance from the Royal
institutior of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) and the Chartered
mstitute of Bullding Services Engineers (CIBSE) Targets for
thermal comfort refer to CIBSE techrical memaoranda TM52
and TM59, while we have developed our owr stardards for
smart metering and zero rehance on fosstl fuels in operation.

Tackling embodied carbon

Reducing the impacts or construction 15 a key challenge for the
property industry that wil require innovation and collaboration
throughout the value chain We include a Whole Life Cycle
assessment as a reguirement In new developments and site
acquisttions, and seek to align with LETI standards for embodied
carbon. We have also carned out an innovative and detalled
retrospective study of the embodied carbon in our recent
development, Portlands Place in East Village.

The study offered importart lesscns in how to improve
measurement and understanding of embodied cartbon across
the development supply chan and Get Living supported the
authors of the report to publish a peer reviewed academic
study in the open access journal “Energies”.

wWe will apply iInsights from this study to future projects

These including Identifying a WLC study as a delwverable

N projects consultants’ and contractor teams' appomntments,
The inter-operabiity of Bulding Information Models,
construction/manufacture models and WLC assessment

tools should alse be considered throughout the design and
construchion process. It s hoped that greater awareness of
WLC studies will impact design decisions to favour low-carbon
technoiogies and encourage supply chamns to provide more
robust Environmental Performance Declarations.

Energy efficiency works

The energy efficiency of buidings 1s emerging as a key qualty
differentiator. which can be improved through capital works
to reduce energy consumption

Ir 2022 we identsfied landlord ighting in common parts

of our buildings as a key area for immed:ate mprovement
and developed detaled plans to replace ighting ana improve
lighting controis in common parts. The works are expected
to reduce the electricity consumption of landlord hght by
79% for 148 homes In East Village These benefits form part
of a tripie bottom hne of reduced energy and maintenance
casts, kowear carbon emissions and fewer visible defects in
Fighly trafficked areas. The scheme 15 expected to lead to
enrergy and maintenance savings of £98k per annum at a Yield
on Costs of 12.5%, and f successful, we am to roll out simiiar
schemes in other blocks

The efficiency of district beating networks has been
‘dertified as another opportunity for improvement. in 2022
we benefitted from government funding under the Heat
Network Efficiency Scheme, and dentified opportunities
to improve heatng efficiency and comfort 1n East Village.
We are continuing to work with the heat network operator
for the Queen Elizabeth Clympsc Park to develop these
opportunities in 2023

Looking furtber ahead, we are developing a decarbonisation
plan for an archetypal plot in East Village. This study will
identify capital works reguired to align with the Carbon

Risk Real Estate Monmiter (CRREM) net zero pathway and
make recommendations regarding zero reharce on fossil
fuels, low energy use, renewable generation, energy demand
responsivenass, and in-use verification. Learnings from this
project will be appled throughout the portfolc
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Invironment, social and governance

—NVIRONMENTAL

SUSTAINABILITY

2022 has seen a step change in interast in the ervircnmental
performance and social credentiais of property companies
such as Get Living This year we have built an our establishied
ESG strategy to practicaily and culturally embed sustainability

within our operations and our plans for the future.

Our multi-faceted approach to environmenta: performance
included engagement with every single employee, capital
warks to improve energy efficcency, improvements to £5G
data guality and processes, developing robust design standards
ard tackling the thorny issua of embodied carbor in

new developments,

Get Living PLC
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Section 172 statement

At Get Living, listening to and engaging effectively with our
stakeholders is key to ensuring the right decisions are made.
As a result, the relationships with our stakeholders are key
to the long-term success of the Group.

Our retailers

Our retallers operate businesses within
our neighbourhoods, with offerings
such as retail, ieisure and F&RB. Retaslers
want us to understand their changing
requirements and provide affordable
and sustainable space, and responsive
serveces, that help them compete ana
operate succassfulty

Why we engage

Retallers are a key element of our
ne:ghbourhcods and not only serve our
res:dents, but draw additional visitors
play'ng a key role 1n our placemaking
strategy We engage to ensure products
and services can be provided to dewver
mutually beneficial outcomes

How we engage

We have a dedicated team led by

an experienced —ead of Retail that
engage regularly with our retallers
through a variety of communication
channels. We adopt a tallored approach
to our retallers who range from small
independent businesses tc large
national corporates. The retall team
take the opportunity to connect
with brands and build relationships
through attending retail events.

Our neighbourhood events present
ar opportunmty for our retallers to
showcase therr offering.

Outcomes of engagement

« Get Living hosted exhibition stands
at the Completely Retall Marketpiace
events in April and September 2022

+ The Retal team increased In si1ze
during the year, ensuring sufficient
capacity to adeguately service cur
existing retallers and in anticipabion
for future retaners as developrments
reach campiet on

Our investors

Qur investors are those who own shares
in Get Living. Investors want the Group
to generate attractive returns and
therefore require clear and transparent
communicatior of our long-term
strategies, short-term plans and regular
updates of the Group's progress
towards these

Why we ehgage

Investors provide equity funding to

the Group and institutioral investors Ir
particular are constantly evaiuating their
portfolio holdings Providing nsightful
infermation about the Get Living's
strategy and performance is cruc:al

for ther assessment of the Group

and allows them to provide valuable
feedback and make assessments for
capital deployment. The Group pays
special attention to mamntaimng regular
ard transparant dialogue with investors,
m order to ensure that they are treated
and informed egually.

How we engage

The Board 1s made up of three Non-
executive Directors and an independent
Chatr, all of whom are independert from
the management team of the Group as
investor rommees. The Board meets

at teast quartery Get Living regulary
meets with the investors and provides
monthly and quarterly reporting

Outcomes of engagement

« A Group strategy day was held
in December 2022 attended by the
Executive Team and a number of
investor rapresentatives

+ The Group cont.rues to adopt and
adhere to the Wates Corporate
Governance Prirciples ("Wates
Principles”), increasing transparency
for investors and other stakeholders
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Our communities

Qur communities are those who live

i areas where we operate, such as
local residents, businesses. schools and
chartties. Local people and groups want
us to enhance the physical and social
infrastructure in their area, helping ther
community to thrive

Why we engage

We wart our neighbourhoods 1o

have a positive impact or the iocal
community We have to understand the
neeads of our local communities to help
them thrive which has a direct impact
on the success of Get Living.

How we eéngage

Working 'r collaboration with our
partners, our communmty support

s wide-ranging Get L.ving has a
dedicated events team which organises
and funds year-round events ang
activities creating the opportunity
for pecople to come together which
are inclusive and open to all. We
ensure we listen to and consult with
residents, businesses ana community
groups when we develop a new
neighbourhood

Qutcomes of engagement

* The iLab E20. East Village's creative
hub has held a2 number of free
exhibitiors, workshops and activities
throughout the year

s Our Inspiring Communities mund has
continued to support a number of
organisations and initiatives across
our neighbourhoods

= Our Sports Aud sponsorship enables
and empowers the next gereration of
athletes to achieve their ambitiors



STRATEGIC REPORT

Stakeholder engagement

OUR APPROACH

TO

Our employees

Qur employees are thase whao are directly
employed by Get Living. Employees want
to feel supported, working in a safe and
comfortable environment where they
can thrive in a collaberative culture that
celebrates diversity and inclusion

Wwhy we ehgage

Qur business success will be determined
by our employees We recogrise the
importance of attracting and retaining
talent and creating diverse teams with
resevant skills and expertise

How we engage

Dwversity and inclusion are central to

our offer and we commit to being an
organisation where teams feel supported
and imspired to realise their potential.

We nvest in our people through training
courses and talent development
programmes, encouraging aspirng
fermale leaders by providing executive
coaching and sponsarships. Appraisal
structures support staff retention and
ermployee perfarmance. Cur employee
value propasition is regularly reviewed
to enswre itis relevant for our pecpie

We collect employee feedback through
sdrveys ard promote wellbeing activities,

Qutecomes of engagement

* Regular Executive ied events increase
top down communicatign and
encourage business engagement

« A cost of hving allowance was provided
to certain employees during the year
to provide financial assistance

= Qur sickness and parental leave
policies have been enhanced in
response to employee feedback

¢ As part of our piedge to reduce carbon
ermissions, we offer employees a cycle
to work scheme

]

NGAG

Our contractors and suppliers

Cur contracters and supphers are
those who provide goods and services
to Get Living: they want to be treated
with respect, through professional
interactions and prompt payment.

Why we engage

Contractors and supphers play a
critical role in our ability to operate
susta:nably, safely and efficiently and
therefore we ensure that they compey
with Get Living standards.

How we engade

The procurement and develiopment teams
mairtain close relatonships and regularly
meet with cortractors arnd suppliers

We have a collaborative approach to our
supply chain and encourage contractors
and suppliars to raise any 1S5uUes or
concerns about therr relationship with the
Group, their contracts or the waorkforce.
We require aur contractars and suppliers
to support ant-slavery initiatives and
controls are in place to mitigate the nsk
of siavery and hurman trafficking from
occurrrg within our supply chains,

Outcomes cof engagement

* Key contractors and suppliers are
proactvely managed to mamntain
positive refationshpos

* Enhanced corporate due diigence
controls have been impiemented
Lo provige more in-depth data to
MoNItor our suppiy chain

e Cur tender process scores contractors
and suppliars with a mimmum 20%
weighting linked to ESG credentials

« Terms with contractors and supphers
Include a cormputment to comply
with the iaw on anti-slavery and
human trafficking

Get Living PLC
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Our residents

Qur residents are those who five In

cur property and ncludes their guests
and visitors Residents want us to
understand their changing requirements
and provide guality and sustainable
Nomes with responsive services

Why we engage

Our residents are our bus ness and
stay'ng In touch with ther wants
and needs I1s essential to the Group's
performance and reputation

How we engage

Regular engagement 1s facilitated through
our Welcorme Offices situated in each
neighbourhood, allowing residents to walk
n and engage directly with the custorer
service team. Qur Customer Hub team are
also dedicated to dealing with residert
queries via phone, emall, website chat

or soclal media to ensure we are prompt
and responsive 1o 1ssues We hold socal
events for cur residents as part of our
placemaling strategy to encourage social
engagement 0 our n&ighbourhoods and
stay in touch with resident needs and
feedback through surveys

Outcomes of engagement

* Three Get Living naighbourhoods
featured in the HomeV ews' Top 10
“best places to live” in the UK during
the year, as voted by cur residents

= We are partnered with London Stadium
as hfastyle sponsor, providing residents
with access to concerts, staaum towrs
and use of community faciities

« Automated NPS surveys are sent
avery six months with an option to
leave a comment

» Get L.ving has now joined the Spotify
platform, providing a further unique
opportunity to engage with residents



IN DEVELOPMENT

ELEPHANT AND CASTLE
TOWN CENTRE

A NEW TOWN
CENTRE IS EMERGING

48>

homes for rent

lephant and Castle Town Centre .5 a major regenearation

project wtich will deliver a new, vibrant town centre

N London's zoneg 1, located alongside our existing

nerghbourhioad, Elephant Central The scheme, which
will complete 1 2026, will deliver close to 500 new homes for
rent, a vibrant mix of shops, restaurants and lersure facilities,
workspace, a state-of-the-art new campus for Lordon College
of Communication and major nfrastructure improvements

Construction 1s now well underway on the site of the former
Elephant and Castie shopping centre and good progress has
beean made on site, with pling work completed in December
2022 The first sections of the basement slab have progressed
with the concrete tower structures to be constructed
throughout 2023 and the ciadding to commence towards
the end of the year

5.8

acres

The development s part of a wider rejuvenation of the area
and wil deliver much needed high guality rental homes n

a prirre location and 35% of the homes that wili be affordable
by hatytable roorm. A second phase of this project s

expeacted te commence on the site of the Lonaon College of
Commuricatian following it's relocation to the new university
buldirg, mtroducing further homes as weil as additicnar shops
and 181sure Veruas.

The public realm located next to Eiephant Central, Castie
Sguare, 15 hcme to a number of 1ocal traders and plays host
to numerous events over the year which celebrate the rich
cultural diversity of the local area.
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Portfolio review continued

IN DEVELOPMENT

NEWTON
PLACE

A DYNAMIC, VIBRANT NEW
LONDON NEIGHBOURHOOD

530

homes for rent co-living homes

awton Place s our next nerghbourhood to launch in

London and s set to complete :n the second half of

2023, welcorming its first residents shortly after. Located

n zone 2 1n Southeast London, with great transport
nks to the centre of the city, the new neigtbourhogd will deliver
649 homes, including 424 for market rent, 106 affordable
homes at London Living rent ana 119 for co-living

Complementing the residential offer 15 25000 sa ft of

retaill space, 15,000 sq ft of food and beverage space,

a gym, a muitiplex cinerna and 10,000 sq ft of co-worlking
space. Empire Cinemas 15 already signed up to the scheme
with numerous retallers set to follow. The commercial offer
Is prominently located along what wilt become the principal
pedeastran route conrecting Lewisham town certre with
_ewisham's main ire and DLR stations.

25,000

sq ft of retail space

The nevelopment marks our first foray into co-nving, with
self-contaimed studio-style fiats and high guality shared
communal facilit.es te enable socialising and shared liwng.

The scheme is part of a wider regereration project which will
deliver a new heart for Lewisham's town centre and includes
homes, shops, restaurants and a pubhc square, 10 addition

to rmajor infrastructure iImprovernerts. Directly adjacent to
Lewisham Natonal Ral and DLR station, there are excellent
transport inks from the neighbourhoed to central London

with conmectiors to Londan Bridge in nine mirutes, Charing
Cross in 17 minutes and Canary Wharf in 16 minutes. A potential
extensior of the Bakerioo jine would provide further hnks.

This remains under consultation,

Tha new raighbourhaod has been developed in partnership
with Lewisham Gateway Development. a subsidiary of
Muse Developments.
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homes for rent

acres

Meet the team

“It feels really
rewarding 1o know
you are contributing
to somebody’s
perfect home.”

Sophie Bottomley, Senior Relationship Manager
“Tam coming up to my fourth year with Get Living and
have recertly been promoted to Senicr Relationship
Manager here at New Maker Yards_ It has been wonderful
to see both the site and the area develop so much
whilst launching the development, especially since

I am from the area myseif. We have a great team and
work enviranment and ts lovely to be able to meet
and connect with 56 many new pecple due to the
number of residents we come across every day. It
feeis really rewarding to know you are contributing to
somebody’s perfect home, whether that be by renting
the home to them, assisting with any gueries they may
have or fixing any maintenance 1ssues that arise. it's
been a pleasure to watch the Company grow and
change so much since joining and : can only '‘magine
the growth the next four years will bringt”

Meet the residents

“I love the location.”

Julia Anna Godlewska, Resident of New Maker Yards
"I have lived at New Maker Yards for over a year,
sharing a one bed apartment with my partner. | am

a Junor busiress consultant and moved to Manchester
right after fimshing univers.ty

"I love how aesthet:cal ard pract.cal the apartments are
- the furniture 1s of the best guality and everything iooks
sO mederr The views especially are breath-taking
The or-site affice "The Lock™ makes ife so easy as we
are both working from horre and the communal area
to work/study perfectly reflects an office enviranment
I love the location - 1t 1s very quiet neighbourhcod
with the canal and yet so close to the city centre -
ten mirutes’ waik. New Maker Yards also provides
excehent 24/7 secunty and every time ! called for
assistance | was never disappointed ”
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Portfolio review continued

CANAL-SIDE
LIVING BETWEEN
TWO CITIES

NEW MAKER
YARDS

aw Maker Yards continues to ga from strength

to strength, sitting on the old Salford-Manchester

border Following the ful opering of the second

phase of homes at New Maker Yards this year,
the neighbourhcod s now home to over 1,200 residents
iving \n 821 homes.

Set beside a canal-side green space, New Maker Yards s
located] In the highly deswrable Mididiewood Locks, within
walking distance of Salford Central Station and Manchester's
Spinningfields, a popular dining, shopping and event destination.
Manrchester city centre 15 within wallang distance ard both
Manchester University and Manchester Metropohtan Urniversity
are w'thin easy reach from the neighbourhood

New Maker Yards s very popular with residents, who are abe

to make use of the mneighbourhood's new 3,000 sq ft amenity
space, “"The Lock”, which opened m 2022 as well as a club room
for co-working and relaxirg The Lock also provides access to a
brand new parcel management store ard 's home to 92 Degrees,
an ndependent roaster and coffee shop whick serves both
residents and the wider community. The retall offer 1s boosted
by a locat Co-op stare.

Residents at New Maker Yards are able 1o socialise at Seven
Bro7hers, a beerhouse that 1s local to Manchester and Salfora
Seven Bro7hers has quickly become a part of the community
and hosts numerous events

The wider event programme at New Maker Yards regularly
brings 1ocal residents together. Ongoing events nclude a canal
side Jazz event and Christmas celebrations

Get Living PLC
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34 278

homes for rent

student studios

Meet the team

“Over the vears

I have built so
many relationships
with residents.”

Alexis David, Senior Relationship Manager

at Elephant Central

“I have been with Get Living for nearly eight years now
and I'm stil very much enjoying my time here. | started
as a Property Consultant at Get Living in East Village
atl those years ago and now I'm a Senior Relationship
Manager at Elephant Central looking after lettings

"Over the years | have bullt so many relationships with
residents, many of which have stayed with us for a long
time, Including couples who viewed with me and are
row starting a family The most amazing feeling 1s taking
sOMmeone to view a home and seeing their reaction when
they love the home and know that it 1s the perfect
place for them

“have to thank the brilhant team | work with, from
Retationship Maragers to cleaners to mantenarce,
alt of which are a huge part of the successes at

E epharnt Central”

Meet the team

“No davy is the same.”

Jane Reeves, General Manager at Elephant Central
and Lewisham

"I have been with Get iiving for nearly nine years,
startirg as a Senior Relationship Manager in East
Village, then moving to Elephant Central to open
Get _iving's second site as General Marager. it's been
great to be part of the orrginal story and see atl the
changes .mplemented over the years to create the
great platform we have today. | love my job, no day
1s the same, and | enjoy the rewards it gives from
delivering a great operation, which keeps homes full
and residents happy. | work with sarme great people
and look forward to building a new team and
successfully mobilising Lewisharm, which wili launch
iate 2023, | am proof of the career opportur:tias

n Get Livming for people that want to develop and
establish careers in BtR."
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Portiolio review continued

NEIGHBOURHOOD
LIVING IN THE HEART
OF LONDON

ELEPHANT
CENTRAL

lephant Central offers 278 mgh gquality student
hormes and 374 homes for rent nght in the heart of
London. ldeally located opposite Elephant and Castle
Train Station, Elephant Central continues to attract
residents and students with occupancy ievels at over 99%

Located n London's Zone 1, Elephart Central s within walking
distance of both London College of Communication and King's
Coilege Londcn. Regent’'s University “ondon 15 less than half ar
hour's cormute. s also withun walking distance of London's South
Bank which plays host to cultural events, exhibitions and shows
throughout the year and the West End s a short tube nde away.

The nearby tram station provides guick and convenent transport
nnks inta the oty including less than 15 minutes to both London

Bridge and St Pancras. The nearest tupe station 15 a short walk from
the neightourhood with access to the Northerr and Bakeriao ines,

The retayn offer 's talored to the need of the locality and includes
Gyrrhox, a nursery, a Samsbury’s Local and independent
restaurants including TUPI, Pizzera Pappagone and Murger Han.
AT nearby Castle Square, over 25 [oca! traders operate along with
a thriving evert space in the public square Events at the square
are hosted throughout the year and nclude Lrban Eephant, the
Queen's Jublee Celebration and Easter in Wonder'and, reflecting
the vibrant and culturally diverse nature of the community

Work 1s underway af the Elephant and Castle Town Centre
radevelopment which will transform the farmer shopping centre
site and deliver brand rew homes, shops and a state-of-the-art
new London Caollege of Communication campus The first phase
of the redevelcpment 15 set to complete 'n 2026

Once complete, Eiephant ana Cast'e Town Centre will offer

a new destination and transport hub in London, including

¢ 200,000 sq. ft. of commercial space as well as delivering
significant investment and opportunities for creauve place
making This will sit alongside wider regereration within the
borough. Adiacent to the deveiopment, the recertly complated
Elephant Park has brought new private sector homes and
enhanced public realim to the area, 'n addition ta numerous
restaurants and retalers that have aiready elavated Elephant
and Castie’s appeal to residents and visitors.

The Eiephant and Castle tearm continues to engage closely with
the local community and hosted numerous events n the year,
including the Urban Eiephant Festival ana histone waiking tours
that took visitors through Elephant and Castle's bistory.

By late 2023, a programme of remediation works 1s expected
to have commenced at Elephant Central to address a number
of bulding defects ident'fied by recent fire safety inspections.
Get Living PLC
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2,445 30+

homes for rent

Independent retailers

Meet the team

“From the moment

I joined the Company
I knew I had made

a greal life decision.”

Nick Marston, Head of Relationship Management

“As Head of Relationship Management for the Glympic
homes, my aim 1s to ensure the team is always providing
a best-in-class service to our residents. The team

at Get Living are some of the most passionate and
dedicated individuais 've had the privilege of working
with, and their desire to improve and maintain Get
Living's reputation amongst renters s dermonstrated
every day From the moment | joined the Company

| knew | had made a great hfe decision. I'm coming up
to my fourth anniversary at Get Living, and watching
Eas: village develop into one of London's most thriving
neighbourhoods has been an immense source of prde”

Meet the residents

“Choosing East Village
as my home was a
greal choice.”

Yasmin Malhis, East Village Resident

“A Business Management bachelor student, | moved to
East Viliage in September of 2022 after arr-ving from
Jorcar East Vilage 1s the best place to reside in; with
its very convenent location that 1s only three stops o
university and approximately half ar hour to central.

“East Village hosts events such as brunch preparad by
Signoreli which gave me the gpportunity to rmake Iife-long
friends who live in the same building! We also watched the
word Cup together with people from all arourd the world
N the common space. In the same area, there 1s a gym to
stay active dally, a TV room and a kitchen that you can
book to host your friends. Choosing East Village as my
home was a great choiwce”

Annual Report 2022
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Portfolio review

A THRIVING NEIGHBOURHOOD
SETTING THE BENCHMARK
FOR RENTAL LIVING

east village
london e20

n 2023, East Village will mark its ter-year anniversary as the

first large-scale BtR neighbourhood in the UK. In that time,

the former Athletes” Village has become a thriving home to

mote than 6,500 residents, over 30 majority iIndependeant
retallers, restaurants and cafes, and an Ofsted "Outstanding”
education carmpus.

This year, Portiands Place cpened ts doors 1o resigents with
524 high quality apartments within two towers, Skylark Pomnt
and Hightail Pomnt Setting a new benchmark for rental living,
the towers are adjcined by a Skybridge on the tenth floor
which offers 7836 sq ft of iIndoor best-in-class amenity space
Residents have exclusive access to a gym, wellbeirg room, the
“Come Dine With Us" private dimng space, 8 cinema room and
10,473 sg ft of large cutdoor terraces with viaws of the London
skyline Hawvirg launched in August, Portlands Place was aimost
80% occupied by the end of the year

The addition of Port'ands Place to £ast Village brings the totar
numer of Get Living hames to 2, 445,

In 2023, 48 new affordable homes developed by Get Living
will faurct at East Viilage These high quality, two and thrae
bedroom homes were sold to Notting Hill Genesis in August
2022 and wil! be avallabie to local pecople at socal rent

2022 saw the launchk of the Zlizabeth Line, adding to the already
impreassive travel inks at Stratford With the ine now running
from Reading %o Abbey Wood, residents can get to central
London locations faster than ever, including ten minutes to
Liverpool Street ard 18 minutes to Paddington

The retan and F&B offer at East Vilage was boeosted ir the year
with the additions of Signareil Baketiouse and Sarmbog Mat,

Following the launch of The Lab E20 :n 2021, Get Living's flagship
for sustainable retail, cultura: exhibition and creative workspace,
we have workea closely with Fashion District and other partners
to drive a programme of creative everts, exhibitiors and
workshops throughout the year This year, The Lab EZ0Q bas
been host 1o ar architectural summer school, a catwalk show
for sustainable brand Molini London and a parel discussion
on regenerative design.

At the end of 2022 we partnered with Hypoha Studias, a charty
matching creatiwves with empty spaces for free, to convert

a former retail store nto a creative space for emerging design
talent at East village. This unique take on an empty retan space
will sae several artists curate and exhibt therr work as well as
ergaging with the local community with workshops and events

In 2023, a prograrrme of remediation works will take place to
address a number of bullding defects identifed through fire

safety inspeciions.
Get Living PLC

20



Elevating the living experience

BPF's annual "Who Lives in BtR” report highlights that,
despite rental infiation, the affordabiity of BtR remains
significant wher compared with the private rental sector
We anticipate that these considerations will become rmore
impoertant given ecoromic and palitical headwinds

The report stated that of the UK BtR providers, 88% offar
soc'al events, 81% offer a concierge. 59% include internet
provisien in rent, and 73% offer co-working spaces As the
world has ermerged from two years of »ntermittent lockdowns.,
newghbourhoods which ercourage and enable community
nteraction are increasingly attractive

In 2022, a decade on from the London 2012 Olymypics 0 Stratford,
Get Living launched ts newest development at East Village,
Portiands Place, delverng 524 new homes at our flagship
London site. This site epitomises a space designed to meet
the expectations of modern residents, providing attract've
hormes, weliness amenmites, flexible workspaces, and fostering
a ¢lear feeling of community

There s also a demand from residents that the spaces

they accupy reflect and enable ther values, refiected In

Get Living's nesghbourhood. retail and placemaking strategy
Maving forward, we anticipate that sustanabuity ard soca
impact will continue to form an impdrtant consideration
within consumer decision making

Get Living continues to leverage the value-ada bepefits

of embedding sustamability and resident wellheng irto
developments whist aiming for best-in-class development
N hine with our E5G agenda and vatues

References:

nof arg.uk/media/orass-raleases/inflation-angd-labour-srortages-cortebute-to-
stowdown-n-puld-to-rent-growth-n-2022/

wiww sauills.co.ek/resadren _articles/229130/339547-0
boforg.uk/media/oress-relzases/build-to-rent-5/# - text=Researcn%Z0rom%20
the%20British%20Property nousing®20deiivery% 20and% 20economic%20growtr
www.savills co uk/research_articles/22M30/339547-C

advartage zog.co.uk/insights/rental-market-report,

bpEorg.uk/media/oress releases/buld-to-rent-provides-secure-ieases-and-valle-
for-rmorey-hnds-largest-ever-analysis-of-sector-2/
WWW.CDre.co.uK/nsights B ook s/ Lk-real-estate-market-outiook-2024/residential
bpforg.uk/media/press-releases/oipeiire-of -oulld-to-rent-nomes-in-Lk-regions-
ircreases-by-over-a-fiftn-year-on-year/

Looking ahead: the investment case for BtR

Looking to 2023, whiist there will be new challenges, the
sustared acute supply ard dernand imbalarce driven by

a slower housing market due to fewer first-tirme buyers, PRS
landlords exiting the market and hikes i mortgage costs will
mean that demand for rentai proauct 's projected te remamn
strong Continued rental growth over the year w'll see the
sector retaining 1ts allure for investors despite challerging
economic corditions. However, sensitiv iy around the
mereased cost of iving wiil be impearative for oparators

to ratair the trust, provide affordable mid-market,

products and ensure the wellbeing of ther residents

High bund cost inflation will continue to slow down new
homes delivery over the medium to long term Capital
markets wilt remain subdued unty the second haif of 2023
due to ocutward pressure or yields, aithough some areas of
distress will present opporturities for investors where forced
sates or refinancirg wil hasten the process of price discovery
as the year progresses

Nevertheiess, according to CBRE's Real Estate Market
Qutiook, the investment appetite for BtR and co-living will
remain strorg as the more defensive asset class compared
to other traditional real estate sectars Get Living's newest
_ondon neighbourhood in Lewisham will launch at the end
of 2023, delvering 64% new homes ircluding 19 co-hving
homes in response Lo rising demand

With nising mortgage rates and the ncreasing cost of

Iving puthing home ownership out of reach for more and

more pecple, It has clearly never been more important that

we have a diverse, robust, well-rvested rental housing marker,
Further investment will be needad 1f BR 1S to grow from its
current penatration of 16% of the rental market to 8% by 2032,
as projected by Savills, but this will only be able happen f
investors and policymakers continue to support, the sector,

The ntroduction of rent caps, as we have seen 'n Scotland,

wiil anly fead fo the contraction of the rental housing market,
and sustain the upward pressure or rents caused by a2 shortage
of supply We continue to engage with respect.ve governmants
to ensure the views of Get Living ard the BtR sector are
represented in emerging legisiation and poncy.

Annual Report 2022
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Market review

UK

TS

0/
/O

growth per annum over
the last five years

In 2022, despite political and ecoromic headwinds, the UK
3tR sector cortinued to break its own iImpress.ve records,
driven by shortage of supply, growing rental demand for
high quality homes and strong investor momentum,

Investment in the UK's BtR sector reached a record £4 3bn in
2022 with significant capita. committed throughout the year
and nearly £1bn in the last quarter alona.

According to the Brtsh Property Federation (3PF), there are
raw over 242,000 8tR homes in the UK, up 14% fram 2027
Of those, ¢.78,700 homes are complete, 30,000 homes

are under construction and ¢113.400 homes are n plarning
Regional BIR grew at almost double the pace of _ondon (17%
vs 9%) 1n the year The last guarter of 2022 saw a siowdown
n construction levels as a result of bulld cost inflatior, labour
shortages and wider economic uncertairty

UK BtR continues to grow across the UK
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investment in BtR in 2022
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ENC
380,000

BtR homes in the UK by 2032

[ 1]

Zoopla's UK Rental Market Report, pubished in Decermber
2022, saw rentat growth come to 121% on a year-on-year bas.s,
twice the average earnings growth for the same time frame
Mearwhile, in the for-sale market, there has been a fail in the
number of new buyer enquiries, with demandad falling by 23%
N January 2023 compared to the five-year average Rental
demand s higher than ever, and for many residents, BtR s a
more cost-effective and converient solution than the private
rental sector given the new bulld eneray efficient homes and
wiger amenity offering that BtR offers,

Atthough, there is still a strong investmert case for London
BtR, investor facus has shifted to inciude key regional cities.
One of the largest transactions in 2022 was £200m forward
furding of One Eastside in Birmingham by Paensicn Insurance
Corporate plc

Due to the ris.ng cost of debt and construction cost inflatior,
BtR nvestment yierds trended weaker 10 the second half of 2022

o} .
Qi1 G2 Q3 Q4 | Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 Ql

2018 2019

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2020 2021 2022

Source BNPPRE

andor Regions
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SOCIAL IMPACT

At et Living, we know that a person’s home is mare than
about bricks and mortar, it's also about the community and
neighbourhood that they become a part of where people
come together and feet connected. That's why social value,
creating wider social, environmental and economic benefits,
15 one of the vital ngredients across our neighbourhoods

This has been cur philosophy since Get Living was
founded back in 2013 with our picnesaring neighbourhooed,
East Village. Being a force for good means taking an active
role ir cur neighbourhoaods, working closely with res.dents.
local stakeholders and wider communities. To that end, we
have not only donated to Iocal charntable and community
causes 1im 2022, but we have also set up our own imitiatives
and projects that respond to local needs with the aim of
supporting, empowering and upskilling local communities.

Our Social Value Policy

We invest in places for the long term and it's important to

us that we focus our efforts not only on our neighbourhoods
and residents, but also the wider locaiity Qur role Is to support
1ocal employment and local suppliers, become civic family
members of the communities In which we operate, while
pursuing a green and sustamable agenda.

We work hard to offer people a better way to live and rent.
in neighbourhoods that are fit for the future, We aim to
provide great rental homes, create healthier places and
boost the social and economic worth of communities.

Creative Placemaking
with The Lab E20

Hawving launched in 202, The Lab E20 has quickly become
a new flagship for experiential retail, cultural exhibition and
creative workspace. Designed by Christopher Raeburn,
founder of RABURN, the 3,500 sq ft and double-heighted
space In Stratford plays host to events and experiences with
various cultural partners for residents and wider community.

The tab has successfully incubated local creative-tech
start-ups, supported the emergence of lccal design
talent in partnership with the London College of Fashion
and works with local and giobal cultural partners for
further collaboration between the fashion industry, the
built environment and the creative iIndustries

In 2022, Fashion District curated The Lab's cultural
programme with g focus on sustainabiiity, community and
creativity. Activities included an investment series event
featuring pitching workshops and investment clinics, a
LOANHOOD pop-up with a preview party and upcycling
workshop, and a Project ReGo Exihibition supported by
Foundation for Future Londen and London College of
Fashion. Regular monthly events at The Lab E20 include
salsa classes, knitting clubs and a community fund club.

To achieve that aim, we are working to

« help local economies grow through the provision of flexibie,
high-gualty, value focussed neighbourhcod development,
deivering homes, new |ob cpportunities and contributions
to the local economy. In turn, this attracts further inward
irvestment and can act as a catalyst for further growth
and productivity. As long-term stakeholders in the places
n which we operate, we also invest in projects and
initiatives that support focal businesses, institutions and
students in the form of funding, upskilling ana mentoring

= support training, skills and career development for our
employees and through our supply chain

= create wider social vatue by supporting local causes
and projects through our Inspiring Communities Fund
and by monitoring and targeting mprovement of
tenant satisfaction

» improve the health and wellbeing of our residents
and employees through assessment and ntroduction
of imitiatives such as biodiversity enhancerment and
provision of cuitural and physical activities

The Lab E20.
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Environment, social and governance continued

SOCIAL IMPACT
CONTINUED

Supporting
Communities with
Action'under

Working with ActionFunder, Get Living's Inspiring
East Village Community Fund supported seven local
community project activities in 2022, Over £20,000
was awarded to non-profits makirg an :mpact in the
local area

The launch foilows the success of a similar funding
campaign at our New Maker Yards neighbourhood
in Salford in 2021 Across the UK, Get Living proviaes
funding to local community groups and intatives
focused around four key themes.

* driving local work and growth,

» working towards more sustanable cities;

* increasing focus on the arts and creativity; and
+ mproving neighbourhood Inclusivity.

A selection panel, which inciuded local residents at
East Village, chose the winming projects based on the
above critenia. This year the iInspinng East Village Fund
supported a broad range of projects and initiatives that
focus an upskilling and education, life skills workshops
and groups that bring together and connect local
people. These projects are: Ready to Work - Vine
Connect, XLP Homewaork Project, Who's Behind the
Camera - Youth Charter at London Stadium _earning,
YouMelJs @ The Lab £20 - Catalyst in Communities,
QECP Girlguiding Goes Camping, Inclusive Community
Cooking, Skate Gals & Pals.

Local Girlguides group, supported by the Inspiring East Vilage Fund,

Get Living Gives Back at Thorogood Gardens, Stratford.

Get Living Gives Back

In 2022 Get Living launched Get Living Give Back,
an opportunity for colleagues to volunteaer for group
charitable imbatives in the communities in which

we operate. Colleagues spent a day of their time
supporting varied projects that closely align with
Get Living's wider sccial value objectives, including
promaoting biodiversity, combating ioneliness and
providing essentials for those most In need.

50 team mernbers participated in 2022, with further
activities planned for 2023

The events held included

Thoragood Gardens, Stratford

in late Spring several Get Living colleagues joined
with some of our key supply partners to rejuvenate

a commumty garden in Stratford The team helped
with weedming and mowing, the planting of beds and
cortaners and the installation of a shed and bird boxes.
Plants that would encourage wildlife to the area were
also seiected to help prormote tnodiversity

Blackfriars Settlement, Southwark

Qvwver the course of two days a group of Get Living
staff visited the Blackfriars Settlement Day Centre
to prepare, cook and serve lunch to a group of elderly
Scuthwark residents. The team spent time chatting
with the residents, hosted a quiz and sang songs

Newham District Foodbank, Stratford

Instead of an ail-colleague Secret Santa and to support
those struggling with the cost of iving crisis, the Get
Living Stratford office chose to make donations to

a local foodbank, Over a three-week period nearly 300
food items were donated and delivered to the charity
the week befare Christmas.

Coco Collective, Lewisham

The Coco Collective is an afro diaspora community
garden in Lewisham. In November, nine pecple from
across Get Living were guided by the Coce Collective
team in a day of bramble clearing, weeding, and
digging up a lawn and replacing 1t with new turf,

ail to improve the garden for the local community

Don’t Walk Past, Manchester

Towards the end of the year staff and residents at
New Maker Yards, Salford, donated unwanted but
usable clothes for the homeless in Manchester.

Get Living PLC
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The launch of Hypha Studios at East Village.

Bringing local art
to East Village with
Hypha Studios

At the end of 2022 we began working with
Hypha Studios, a chanty matching creatives
with empty spaces for free, to convert a former
Sainsbury's store into a creative space for
ermerging design talent at East Vilage.

Centred around the themes of design

and community iving, the space has become

a showcase for a series of artists and exhitntions,
cementing East Village as the gateway to East
London’s creative district and further supporting
Get Living's strategy In creating an inclusive "East Village 15 a fantastic location for the new and historic local
and sustainable urban neighbourhood communities, and with great travel connections we really hope
that the exhibitions will alse draw new visitors to the area With
its deep cultural history, Stratford 1s becoming a new creative hub
for London and Hypha Studios 15 excited to be working with Get
Living to bring a senes of exhibitions to E20

“Creativity 15 central to many communities and our newest design
stucho in Stratford's East village will bring new life to a vacant
commercial space, transforming the unit into a not-for-profit
gallery and exhibition space for [ocal and ernerging talent.

The two umgue gallery spaces showcase curated
and immersive works by local artists and emerging
talent from Goldsmiths University students. As

part of the residency, the artists are also engaging
with the local commumty. Camilla Cole, Founder of Hypha Studios

Eleprant
& Castle
Business
Forum.

Working with local businesses through
the Elephant & Caste Business 'orum

Established in 2021, the Elephant and Castle Business Two successful projects have been delivered to date
Forum Is a vehicle for local businesses to work together The Forum I1s working in partnership with the UAL-LLC

to take advantage of local opportunities, develop imitatves University and the People's Company Theatre with support
to promote the local commercial and cultural offer and from Southwark Council. It 1s also working with Urban
apply for funding to deliver projects In Elephant and Castle. Elephant Festival and Digital Marketing face to face

The forum has so far brought together 66 local businesses training to support 30 local businesses.

and stakeholders, led by a steering group and an appointed
chair person

Annual Repert 2022
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Environment, social and governance continued

SUSTAIN

SILITY

GOV

Sustainable fashian
show at the Lab £20.

Strong governance s essential to ensure that good intentions
are carried through to practicat ends. This s particularly true In
ratters of sustamabiitty, where sustainability themed benchmarks
and disclosures augrmert our wider corporate governance.

Get Living's approach to ESG benchmarking s guided

by participation in the GRESE, and supported by voluntary
disclosures on our social impact and the wide-ranging
sustainablility Best Practice Recommendations of the EPRA
(EPRA sBPR) We are investigating the recommendations of
the Task force for Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)
and include hght-touch disclosures in this report. We also make
mandatory disclosures under the Streamiined Energy and
Carbon Reporting framework, detaiis of which are

provided below.

5-star GRESB rating

For the third year running. Get Living participated in the
GRESB and was awarded a 5-star GRESRE rating for Standing
Investments. Our Development Assets wére also awarded a
4-star GRESB rating for the second consecutive year, placing
Get Living second from top In our Residential. Muiti-Family
peer group of eight companies.

As a an investor-led organisation, GRESB provides a ngorous
and rounded framework for sustainable practice and preparing
ESG data for the financiar markets. Get Living have benefitted

ERNANC

from the regular benchmarking process which collects, validates,

scores, and mndependently benchmarks ESG data.

AND

Participation in GRESRB has helped shape our policy

and approach to ESG leadership, including reporting, risk
management, stakeholder engagement, development standards.
build quanty, green bulldmg certification, energy efficiency.
water efficiency, waste management and total greerhouse
gas emissions,

Preparing for the Task force on Climate-related

Financial Disclosures

Get Living worked with external specialsts to investigate the
recommendations of the TCFD and carried out a gap analysis
In preparation for emerging mandatory reguirements

We have investigated the role of climate on Get Living's
governance, strategy, risk management and target setting,
dentifying a number of “quick wins” to improve our approach,
as well as deeper, systemic changes that we intend to implemeant
over the medium to long term. Climate strategy 1s interwoven
throughout our wider strategy.

Get Living PLC
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Table: Snapshot of aur sustainability journey

TCFD Recommendation

Response

See also

Governance

The Board’s role

Climate matters are raised at the Board's quarterly meetings as appropriate.
Clements of climate risk are alsc caplured in lhe Audil Sub-committee’s duties
regarding general risk management,

Corporate Governance
Report page 48

Management’s role

Climate strategy 1s represented within senior management by the COO, who
15 responsible for ESG (ncluding climate-retated cpportunities and risk). The
COO 1s supported by external advisers, the ESG Steering Committee and
the Head of Net Zero.

Executive Team
page 51

Strategy

Climate
opportunities
and risks

The broader topic of "sustairability” has been dent:fied as a principal risk that 15
actively managed ana regularly reviewed by senior management. "Sustamnability”
INciudes climate transition risks such as builld cost inflation ard changing customer
expectations, while physical cimate rmpacts are captured as sensitivities to other
principal risks, such as acute envirormental events impacting health and safety.
and irvestor sentiment impacting market risk,

Principal Risks page 40

Climate Impacts
on strategy and
financial planning

Working with external aavisors, Forvis, Get Living carned cut a TCFD
GAP Analysis in 2022, This identified a number of "quick wins” to improve
our approach and included strategic recommendatiors to banefit from the
Taskforce's wider recommendations

Sustainability goals are already included in every team member’s annual
appraisal to promote ownership of sustainability (and ¢chmate) at every level
of Get Living's culture Budget has aiso been allocated to improve EPC ratings,
reduce landlord electricity consumption and invest in ESG data quality
through smart metering infrastructure and processes.

Environmental
Sustaimability page 30

Scenario analysis

Get Living 15 conducting @ Scenaro Analysis for standing assets in 2023
Development assets are already investigated by specialist consultants to
dent fy and mitigate physicai chimate risks such as flooding, extreme heat
and high winds throughout the developmert cycle.

Risk management

Identifying
and assessing
climate risks

The Executive Team regularty reviews all principal risks and how these are mitigated
and managed across Get Living's busingss activities, The ESG Steering Committee,
which s chared by the COQ also provides support to senior management
regarding the identification and interaction of climate risks.

Managing Risk and
Internal Controls
page 40

Managing
climate risks

Get Living seeks to future proof assets against emerging physical and transition
climate risks through robust new bulld standards and improvements to the
energy efficiency of existing neighbourhoods We are working to guantify the
capital commitrments reguired to align with CRREM decarbonisation pathways
and are also Investing in training to Improve awareness of climate sensitivities
and impacts.

Environmental
Sustainability page 30

integrating climate
within wider risk
management

In ight of the TCFD Gap Analysis, we are working to '/mprove understanding

of “chmate” both within the "sustainability” agenda, and the broader business
strategy landscape. To this end, all principal risks are assessed for chimate
sensitivities to highlight the interaction between climate matters and traditionai
risk classifications such as market risk and health and safety.

Principal Risks page 40
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Environment, social and governance continued

SUSTAINABILITY AND
GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

Table: Snapshot of our sustainability journey continued

TCFD Recormmendation Response See arso

Metrics and targets

Climate metrics Detalled chmate metrcs are disclosed annually in Get Living's annual Sustainabiity Report
Sustainability Report, which aligns with EPRA sBPR standards.

Greenhouse Scope 1, 2 and 3 greenhouse gas emissions are disclosed annually SECR Staterment
gas emissions In accordance with the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting page 38
requirerments, which are inciuded n this report.

Targets for Get Living 15 investigating alignment with the Carbon Risk Real Estate Monitor
improvement (CRREM) methodology and aspire to set targets in ine with the UK's National
Determinad Contributions to the Paris Clhimate Accords.

EPRA’s sustainability Best Practice Recommendations

Get Living's annual Sustainabiiity Report for 2022 will cortinue to include detalled sustamability metrcs in line with the
European Public Real Estate Association's sustainability Best Practice Recommendations (EPRA sBPR) These include guality
assured statements on the portfolio's energy consumption, water consumption, carbon emissions, waste management, green
building certification, social impact, employment practices, procurement practices and governance. The report for 2021, which
was published In 2022, cap be found at https /www.gethiving.com/about/esg-policy/.

Streamiined Energy and Carbon Reporting

Get Living PLC emissions and energy usage statements are reported n the below tables for the year ending 31 December 2022
Absolute emissions/consumption, llke-for-lke and an intensity value for 2021 and 2022 are reported. These tables set out the
ermissions and consumption for the entity overall and the split between "Residential” and "Student Accommodation” asset types.
Like-for-llke and intensity values nciude all consuming assets owned for two consecutive years within the entity. The approach
taken follows guidance provided by the GHG Reporting Guidelines (BEIS, 2019)". See Appendix for further detaiis of the
reporting methodology,

Table 1: Get Living PLC Greenhouse Gas Emissions Statement for year ending 31 December 2022

Absolute armissions Like-for-ike/degree day adiusted Like-for- ke/degree day
(tonnes CO,e) emissions {fonnes CO e} adjusted mtensity (kgCGC,e/mZNLA)

Sector and GHG source 2021 2022 2021 2022 % change 2021 2022 % change

Scepe 1 813 1,178 738 970 31% 15.7 20.7 31%

Scope 2 2,889 2,848 2,860 2,714 -5% 101 9.6 -5%
Residential A

Scope 3 3,239 3,230 3,150 3,096 -2% 11.1 10.9 -2%

Total 6,841 7,256 6,748 5,780 0% 238 239 0%
Student Scope 1 237 218 237 250 6% 43.4 46.0 &%
Accommodation Scope 2 74 85 74 85 15% 13.6 15.6 15%

Scope 1 1,050 1,396 975 1,220 25% 18.6 23.3 25%
Total Scope 2 2,863 2,933 2,934 2,799 -5% 10.2 9.7 -5%
‘ Scope 3 3,239 3,230 3,150 3,096 -2% 111 10.9 -2%

Total 7,252 7,559 7,059 7,115 1% 24.4 24.6 1%

1 Like-for-like excludes assels that were purchased, sold or under refurbishment during the two years reported
I Intensity values are caleulated on & kgCO,e/m* basis for GHG emissions and kwWh,/m? for energy consumption

Il bttps-#assets publisning service gov uk/governmant /uploads/system/uploads/attacnment_data/file/791529/Env-reporting-guidance  inc SECR _31Marcr pd
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Table 2: Get Living PLC Energy Usage Statement for year ending 31 December 2022

Absolute consumption

(kwh n 000's)

Like-for-like/degree day ad Justed
consumption (KWh in 000's)

Like-for-like/dagree day

adjusted intensity (kwWh/m2NLA)

Sector and gnergy source 2021 2022 2022 2022 % change 2021 2022 % charge
Electricity 8,100 8,875 7,981 7,681 -4% 28.2 27.1 -4%
Res.dent sl District Heating
Landlorg & Gas 11,293 13,083 10,858 12,509 15% 38.3 44,2 15%
Tota!l Energy
Landlord 18,393 21,958 18,833 20,150 7% 66.5 71.3 7%
Electricity 6,363 6,888 5,999 5,842 -3% 22.8 22.0 -3%
Resident al District Heating
T & Gas 11,058 11,121 10,990 11,522 5% 41.4 434 5%
enants
Total Energy
Tenants 17,420 18,009 16,989 17,363 2% 63.9 65.3 2%
Electricity 348 439 248 439 26% 63.9 80.5 26%
Student Dnstrict Heating
Accommodation & Gas 1.282 1,195 1,292 1,371 6% 237.2 251.7 6%
Total Energy 1,641 1,634 1,641 1,810 10% 3011 332.3 10%
Electricity 14,811 18,202 14,329 13,961 -3% 49.6 48.4 -3%
Total Dnstrict Heating
& Gas 23,643 25,399 23,140 25,402 10% 80.1 88.0 10%
Total Energy 38,454 41,601 37,463 39,364 5% 1298 136.3 5%

in light of cur efforts to improve environmental data quahty, we have :ncreased the scope of energy data sources, whiist refining
the methodology of our carbon accounting (for instarce via the apportiorment of emissions across GHG Protocol scopes and
orgamsational boundaries)

Most materally, we have secured access to heat consumption data for East Village, which 1s included for the first time Aggregated

data was used on a plot-by-plot basis and apportioned to landlord and tenant spaces on an area basis. Consumption within

leasehold properties owned by Triathlon Hemes has also been excluded for the first time, following a detailed review of best practice
criteria (GHG Protocoi) relating to ermissions that fall within financial and operaticnal control of the business. Histonc data for 2027
15 re-stated to reflect these improvements and iike-for-like metrics use the revised historc data accordingly to ensure consistency.

Absolute consumption figures have increased to reflect the absorption of new develepment in East Village and New Maker
Yards, and increased occupancy of Portchester House in Elephant Central, Like-for-lke metncs include degree day adjustments
(adjusting for weather conditions), which suggest that beat demand has not reduced in proportion to the refatively mild winter,
with gas consumption growing ¢n a relative basis. However, as arids and other energy sources iImprove, absolute and like-for-
like degree day adjusted emissions metrics have benefitted from reduced carbon factor (the carbon emissions resuiting from
the usage of a particular form of energy), for both grid electricity and gas supplies. This means that for equivalent energy
usage, the carbeon emissions for both energy types will be lower than the previous year

It 1s envisaged that continued Improvements to utility data collection may create some initial volatihty in SECR metrics,

whiist generating operational nsights to reduce consumption in the medium-term.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

MANAGING RISK AND
INTERNAL CONTROLS

Get Living continued to strengthen its Internal controls framework
during the year, which enhanced its ability to manage risk.

Overview The Executive Team has considerad emerging rnisks and their
potential iImpact on the Group In this regard, one additional
principal risk has been idertificd, development risk, as the Group
has now taken responsibility for managing our development

The Executive Team analyses risks on a monthly basis and
reviews how these are mitigated and managed across all areas
of Get Living Like all busiresses, the Group faces a variety of
risks that have the potential to impact its performance and projects in-house.

ability to realise value in neighbourhcods This includes external

factors that may arise from the markets in which the Group Principal risks heat map

operates, government policy, regulation and general ecoromic Residual risk (assessed after 'Existing Controls’)
conditions, as well as internal risks that arise from the way n
which the Group s managed and structures its operations.
Risks are considered as a fundamental part of gecision making,
deterrmiming strategy and considering new opportunities

The Group has a range of internal controls and operat-onal
procedures that are designed to effectively manage rsk, but it 1s
recognised that risk cannot be totally eirminated A Risk Register
1s mairtained and updated monthly by the Executive Team with
contributior from senior management 't includes current and
future mitigations of the idertified risks, as well as potential
opportunities, and 1s discussed at each quarterly Board meeting
Our principal risks consist of the most significant nisks impact:ing
the Group and are considered acrass @ two year timeframe

| Alrnost certan |
n

Probable

Likelihood

The Executive Team recogrisas that it has imited ability to
control certain external risks that the Group faces, such as
governmenrt policy, but keeps the possible impact of such risks
under review, taking mitigating action where possible, and
considening them as part of the overall decision-making process.

Possible

The Audit Committee I1s responsibie for reviewing effectiveness
of the Group's Internal controls and risk management systems
on behalf of the Board.

Unlikely
m
T

}

Minor | Moderate | Major | Severe
Impact

Outlook

Qur risk assessment has evolved over the past twehlve months
to address the new and emerging risks largely driven by the
Macro-econamic environment, 2022 saw unprecedented
global shifts caused by the war in Ukraine and post-lockdown
economic supply constraints resulting in sharp nflationary
increases and a cost of Iving erisis with soarnng energy prices.
UK pohtical instabiity and policy changes led to interest rate
volatility and the largest single-meeting increase in the Bank
of England Base Rate in 30 years, disrupting financial markets
towards the end of 2022 and beyond. We will continue to
focus on the rnsks relevant to the Get Living business which
have the highest iikelihcod to adversely impact operations
and/or prevent value growth; the cost of living crisis and
increasing energy Costs Impacting on BtR market demand;
economic decline ana high cost of lending on property values
and avallability of capital: industry regulation and cost inflation
constraining revenue growth and operatioral efficiencies
preventing attractive investor returns.

Market

Financing and capital markets
Sustainability

Cyber security and technology
People

Regulatory

Health and safety

I O0TMTmMmoOUNn®m@p

Development
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A

Market

Residual risk rating
Hign

@ Increase

Inherent risk rating
High

@ Increase

Risk description

Declhine in market conditions, reduction \n demand for UK
real estate, changes in PRS consumer behavicur, changes in
political polcy regarding BtR homes, increased competition
and interruptions due to other developmenrt activities and
geopolitical issues that may adversely affect the Group's
portfolo valuat:on and performance.

Commentary on risk in the year

Despite headwinds of rising inflation and interest rates ncreasing
the cost of living In the UK, the BR sector experierced another
record-brealking year in terms of Investrment, with over €4 3 billion
invested in 2022*. Demand 1 the sector has continued to far
outstrip supply suppoerting prcing growth and mitigating the
valuation risk by offsetting yield pressure. The PRS market
shows resnience in the inflationary ervironment as it provides
more flexbility and a lower financial commitment compared
to home gwnership,

An expanding portfoho helps to mitigate agains: changing
factors that might increase barriers to entry. Get Living
opened Portlands Place in August 2022, adding a further
524 new homes to the heart of East Village in addition

to a further 289 homes launching at New Maker Yards in
Salford In Jure 2022 We continue to see development
expansion with the Group increasing its portfolio vaiue as
a result of significant capital expenditure, Newton Place

s due to reach practical completion ir the second half of
2023, whilst Elephant and Castle Town Centre 1s expected
toaunch in 2026

Mitigation

« Get Living has established & Pricing Comrruttee in the year
chaired by the Head of Portfehe Management which meets
monthly and sets the PRS pricing taking into account external
factors such as enquiry levels. reasons for move outs and
general market conditions

* We proactively keep up to date with and react accordngly to
changes to relevant leaislation including potential government
rent controls or sirmilar iimitations through active engagement
with policy makers, industry bodies and professional advisors;
the Renters' Reform Bill 1s being actively reviewed.

* We continually strive to understand the needs of the
customer and communicate with residents through custormer
satisfaction surveys

We invest in marketing campaigns to ensure a clear and
competitive market posit:on,

https #www savills coLk/researcn_articles/229130/339547.0

Financing and capital markets

Residual risk rating
Medium

inherent risk rating
Medium

@ Increase

Risk description

Inability to raise appropnate eguity or debt as required to
meet the needs of the business. Changing capital market
condtions could drive adverse movement in mterest rates
and have a negative impact on property valuations and
\can covenants

4m] No change

Commentary on risk in the year

Resilience in the PRS sector and swift recovery post-panderic
evidenced by high occupancy, collection rates and rertal growth
provides confidence to existing and potential lenders.

Debt markets were voiatile in the penod with nsing interest rates
and a reduction in the avallability of finance. We were significantly
protected from rising interest rates through hedging our floating
rate facilities

The Portiands Place developmenrt loans, with a totar balance of
£163.0 million at the year end, are due to mature In September
2023 The refinancing of this debt 15 1N progress with strong
lender interest and we anticipate ciosing this refinancing in
advance of the development loan maturity dates

Looking further ahead to March 2024, the £32. 6m New
Maker Yards Phase ! debt fachty wil require refirancing
whiist the £64 8m New Maker Yards Phase 2 facility will
require refinancing unless an option is taken to extend
the facility for one more year.

Mitigation

s« The composition of the Group’'s debt portfolio 1s monitored
to ensure compliance with covenants and cantinued
avallatylity of funds

« The Board Is reported to on a quarterly basis with regards
to current debt, covenant compliance and projections of
future funding requirerments to ensure earty warning of
potential 1ssues

*« We engage with debt advisors and lenders proactivety,
keeping abreast of market trends which feed into
underwriting assumptions.

« We approach potential lenders well In advance of
a refinancing reguirement to reduce refinancing risk.
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

C

Sustainability

Inherent risk rating Residual risk rating
High Hign

@ Increase

“»! No change

Risk description

Impacts of environmentai events due
to chimate change, ESG reguirements
on eperations and net zero carbon
obhgatiors. A fallure to anticipate and
respond to environmental risks could
damage our reputation and cause
disruption in our operaticns Growing
investor and lerder preferences for
sustairable properties may impact the
Group's ability to meet current and
future financing commitments

Commentary on risk in the year

Work 15 In progress to quartify the capital
commitments required to align wth the
Carbon Risk Real Estate Monitor (CRREM)
decarborisation pathways. We are aiso
investing In training to iImprove awareness
of climate sensitivities and impacts.

Get Living was awarded the top 5-star
GRESB rating for the third year running
for the operational portfolio in recogniTon
of our sustainability performance

Mitigation

+ Get Living's E5G Steering Committiee
considers sustanability, inciuding
physical and transitional clhimate
risk, and :s sponsored by the Chief
Operating Officer with support
from the Head of Net Zero.

* Physical chmate nsks are momtored
at an operational level and addressed
n development with screening and
mitigation measures assessed through
flood rsk assessments, microclimate
and wind safety studies and thermal
comfort standards,

Climate transition risks are addrassed
through robust new build standards and
improvements to the energy efficiency
of existing neighbourhoods.

« Weinvest in ESG focused traiming and
personal objectives for emprioyees

D

Cyber security
and technology

Inherent risk rating Residual risk rating
High Mechum high

@ No change @ Na change

Risk description

Critical system interruptions through
systems failure or major IT security
breaches could lead to exposure or
ioss of data held by the Group, leading
to operational disruption, reputational
damage and potential regulatory fines.

Commentary on risk in the year
Get Livirg has progressed the
recommendations from the latest
Cyber Audit report, This has
strengthened Get Living's operat'ng
position by adopting best practice
learnings 1in the NCSC guidance ard
implementing recommendations

Get Living 1s now conducting detaied
anatysis and threat assessment which
allows for real-time Al response to
threats and 24-hour monitoring.

Mitigation

+« Get Living ocperates in a secure
encrypted c'oud environment
moritored around the clock by
expenerced service partners and
all systems are fully backed up.

* Detalled araiysis and threat
assessment 15 conducted through
Darktrace which allows for real-time
Al response to threats and 24-hour
monitoring of both on site and
remote works and activities

* The Group relies on key systems
to ensure operational efficiency.

* Requiar Cyber Audits are carried
out by third-party firms.
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People

Inherent risk rating Residual risk rating
Low Low

@ No change @ No cnange

Risk description

Group performance could suffer due to
the loss of key staff through resignation
or extended periods of absence. Failure
to attract and retain a diverse workforce
could impact performance as it 15 key
that our employees can cornact with
our residents, communit-es and

wider stakeholders

Commentary on risk in the year

A HR-led policy review during 2022
resulted in an erkancement te cur
sickness and parentar leave. Regular
events and meetings led by the
Executive Team were implemerted

In the year to increase top-down
communication and encourage business
engagement We continued to promote
bealth and wellbeing across the
business through a number of events
and activities held during the year.

Mitigation
« We provide learning and deveiopment
support for ail employees as well
as specific leadership traiming
and executive coaching for
identified talent,

*» Diversity and mnclusion data s
continuously monitored, including
gender pay gaps.

« Appraisal structures are
N place to support employee
performance, devetopment
Internal career progression.

* Company pchcies and our employee
value proposition are regularly
reviewed to ensure they are relevant
for our people.

« Employee feedback s collected
through surveys and events and we
promote wellbeing activities,

* =xecutwve remuneration and long-term
ncentive plans are aligned with Group
performance and overseen by the
Remunearation Committee.



F

Regulatory

inherent risk rating Residual risk rating
High Medium

@ No cnange @ No change

Risk description

Fallure to monitor, adhere to and be
proactive to changes in the legislative or
regulatory environment, includirig the REIT
regime, TISE listing rules, GDPR, building
regulations, rental reform, consumer
protection law and Associatiaon of
Residential Letting Agents (ARLA} could
lead to operational disruption, complaints,
reputational damage and regulatory fines

Commentary on risk in the year
Quarterly governance review meaetings
were held throughout the year to actively
monitor regulatory compliance and review
forthcoming legislation.

Get Living engages Savills to ensure legal
and regulatory compliance across all
neghbourhoods

During the year two senior 'egal counsals
joined the team and subsequent to

the year end Get Living appointad a
Heada of Tax.

Get Living 15 working with advisors to
monitor and assess the rsk of potential
rental reform reguiatior, In relation o both
current and future governments,

Mitigation

= Regular advice 1s recelved from
professional advisors and we actively
engage with industry bodies to ensure
in-housa knowledge is maintained.

= We have invested In legal and corporate
affars tearms who proactively monitor
changes to relevant legislation and
conduct horizon scans to ensure the
Group 15 kept abreast of potential and
actual regulatory changes. A programme
of engagement with key policy makers
15 ONYOING.

« We are conducting a review of consumer
protection laws relevant to the residential
sector to ensure existing processes and
orocedures are fully complant. Action
points with training will be rolled out,
audited and updated on an annual basis

G

Health and safety

Residual risk rating
Medium

@ MNo change

Inherent risk rating
High

@ No change

Risk description
A rmajor health and safsty incident could
lead to loss or injury to residents, staff or

contractors as well as reputational damage,

financial loss and potential liability. We
part:cularly consider fire safety and our
responsibility to keep our residents safe
and ensure our buldings are compliant
with the latest bullding safety regulations.

Commentary on risk in the year

Get Living's Operations Director oversees
and mplements H&S policies with

the assistance of a dedicated Health

and Safety Manager. A health and

safety matrix has been developed and

implemented across all operaticnal argas.

The Group has continued to undertake
bullding surveys and risk assessments
to identify areas where fire safety
remediation or mprovement works are
required to our bulldings, commencing
necessary works based on advice from
internal and external experts.

Mitigation

+ Quarterly health and safety
meetings are held and chaired by
the CEQ, attended by & number of
representatives across the business.

*+ Each Get Living bulding undergoes an
annual health and safety audit as well
as a fire and general risk assessrment
with actions documented.

= Development project health and
safety responsibiity 1s managed by
principal contractors who control
sites, deliver training and manage safe
construction environments

» Get Living has convened a senior
management weekly forum to discuss
and provide direction on matters
relat:ing to the fire safety of the
external wall construction of buldings
within the Get Living portfolio.

« Advice 15 recarved from industry
axperts at least on a weekly basis.
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Development

Inherent risk rating
Medium low

O /A

Risk description

Inability to deliver quality BtR assets
with flexipble and sustainable designs
on time and within budget could have
a significant iImpact on performance
and future growth plans. In the current
environment, securing a contractor
1s challenging and construction cost
inflation makes it chatlenging to make
projects viable.

Residual risk rating
Medium

O N/A

Commentary on risk in the year
The Group established an in-house
development team during the year
bringing a weaith of experience and
expertise of project managerment
and censtruction.

Get Living was largely protected from
the adverse impacts of the inflationary
envirorment on construction costs due
to forward funding arrangements and
fixed price direct development projects,

Mitigation

= Get Lving has an in-howuse developrment
management team with sigmficant
experience and strong relationships
with third-party development and
construction advisors.

s The Group partners with reputable
contractors known to defiver
quality schemes

« ‘We actively monitor cost inflation,
interest rates, rents and y'elds as
well as anaiyse trends to identify new
potential risks as they emerge and
react accordingly.
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Operating performance Summarised results

The 2022 results delivered a strong performance for Get Living. Year ended Year ended
We rmade sigrificant progress through further investrment in 3 De“";::; 1 Decer;;;f
developments and capturing strong rental demand which £m £n§
contrbuted to significant rental growth and high stabilised
occupancy levels Rental income 83.4 £3.8
Dire opart + . 4,
Rentai income of £83 4 million for the year reprasents an M” ct Drnrmrfy rnsrs ‘ (26.5) (24.8)
increase of 30 7% when compared to 2021 (€63 8 million) Management fees (included
The exceptional leasing performance and delivery of within direct property costs) 5.7 6.4
new pipeline led to net rental iIncome of £62.6 million, Net rental iIncome 62.6 45.4
Q,
an increase of 37 9% versus 2021 (£45.4 milhon). Other ncome 15.8 )
We continued to invest in the iImprovement of homes and Other cost of sales (9.5)
neightbourhoods within our portfolio, with the continuation Management fees (included
of a refresh program upgrading the quahlty of our existing within direct property costs) (5.7 (5.4
homes in East Village. Administrative expenses (35.7) (28.3)
Get Living's costs of gperations continue to be carefully Operating profit before
managec: thFOLfJgh controldof overhfzdthcoécs TotaIE%oRsE as revaluation 2715 176
a proportion of income reduced wi e Group's cost ]
\ . (27.

ratio being 65 6% (31 December 2021: 73.2%). Net financing costs (367 (279
Subseguent o the year end the Group made a payvment of EPRA earnings (9.2 9.4
£18 9 million to HMRC as part of an agresment signed in Revaluation gan 136.0 £1.9
March 2023 to settle an ongomng tax enguiry, see note 18 of Fair value gain on dervatives 256 5.8
he f ral :
the fnancial statements IFRS profit before tax 152.4 583
Development programme
Portlands Place cpened its doors in August 2022, adding 524 EPRA cost ratio
new homes to the heart of East Village and closed the year Year ended Year ended
79% occupled reflecting the strong demand. In June 2022, 289 31 December 3] December

2022 2021
further homes were :aunched at New Maker Yards and clesed £m £
the year 94% occupied, increasing our total homes to 827 in
Middlewood Locks, Salford Direct property costs 26.5 24.8
The Newton Place development has made substantial void costs 1.8 -
progress during the year ahead of expected completion Management fees (5.7 (&.4)
in 2023, whilst construction at Elephant and Castle Town Administrative expenses 35.7 28.3
Centre commenced in January 2022 ard 15 progressng well, EPRA costs 54.7 46.7
All of this contributed to a 13.8% increase 1n total portfouc value Rental income 834 83.8
to £2.73 billion (31 December 2021 £2.40 bilion) EPRA Cost Ratio 65.6% 73.2%

In additicn to our In-progress developments in Lewtsham

and Elephant angd Castle. the Group has a strong pipelire of
opportunities to further grow the number of homes it provides
Get Living's continued investment will support the long-term
aemand for a more flexible and modern Wifestyie which renting
offers, as the cost of home cwnership Increases.

66

We made significant progress
through further investment in
developments and capturing
strong rental demand.”
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Business review continued

Property portfolio - Valuations

CBRE independently valued the portfoho at market value in
accordance with RICS Valuation Standards. The aggregate total
value of the Group's property portfolio tetalled £2.73 bithon
as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021 £2 40 bilhion),
The Increase I1s driven by a valuation gain of £136.0 mithon

in the year. £146 3 million of development spend and capital
nvested 1 asset management projects. This represents

a 13.8% increase 0 total portfolio value.

31 December 31 Decerrber

2022 2021

£m Em

investment properties 2,223.5 2,058.7
Properties In the course

of development 435.7 307.5

Total investment properties owned 2,659.2 2,366.2

Trading property 68.6 35.6

Total properties owned 2,7278 2,401.8

Capita commitments 546.6 6569.0

Total completed and committed 3,374.4 3,070.8

Debt facilities

At the beginning of the year furding draws commenced
on Newton Place and Elephart and Castle Town Centre
development debt faciiities to progress with construction.

The Partlands Place development loans, with a total balance

of £163 0 million at the year end, are due to mature in
September 2023, The refinancing of this debt s in progress
with strong tender interest and we anticipate closing this
refirancing in advance of the maturity date of the development
loars. Looking further ahead to March 2024 the £32.6 million
New Maker Yards Phase 1 debt facility will require refinancing
whilst the £64.8 million New Maker Yards Phase 2 facility will
require refinancing unless an opticn 1s taken tc extend the
facility for one more year.

Whilst there has been an increase i the cost of borrowing,
Get Living has benefitted from holding long term debt at
favourable fixed interest rates, with minimal exposure or
fioating rate debt facilities due to hedgirg in place Of the
total external !oan balance at 31 December 2022, £9.2% has
fixed interest, whilst the floating rate debt was 96 4% hedged.

Average cost of debt in 2022 1s 3.2% (31 December 2021 2.7%)
and weghted average matunty of debt is 6.5 years (37 December
2021 78 years).

Total debt

At 31 December 2022, the Group had access to debt facilities
totalbng £1,729.8 million (31 December 2021 €£1,722.0 million)
and drawn debt totalling £1.352.9 mullicn (31 Becember 2021
£1177 4 milion). £66.5 million (31 December 2021 £672 milhion)
of free cash was held as at the year end, resulting in Group net
celbt of £1,286 .4 milllon (31 Lecember 2021 E1110.2 milhion)

The Group had two assets on site under construction at the
year end with committed cevetopment costs of £546.6 million
(31 December 2021 £669.0 million)

Headroom on the Group's available debt facilities totals
£376.9 milhion (31 December 2021 £543 6 milhon)

The Group's aggregate Loan to Value ratio as at 31 December
2022, including all debt faciiities, was 47 2% (31 December
2021 46.2%).

Qutloock

Failowing a record firancial performance in 2022 with strong
rental iIncorme growth, Get Living 1s well positioned for further
growth and success with a strong balance sheet, competitively
priced debt and supportive investors

Subseguent to the year end, Austrahan superannuat.on
fund Aware Super has exchanged with QD UK Holdings
LP to purchase their 22% stake in Get Living and jown our
investar group which 1s a huge vote of confidence to
our business

wWe acknowledge the risks associated with upcoming
refirancing and other external headwinds and are confident
that we are well eguipped to face the challenges ahead

wWe will continue to capitalise on rental growth as demanrd

15 expected to continue into 2023 and look for cpportunities
to drive efficiencies in our operations and deliver strong
returns tc cur investors

2023 will see the laurch of Newton Place with Elephant and
Castle Town Centre fallowing in 2026, unlocking further
growth o support our ambitior to realise value through
operational scale.

Dan Greenslade
Chief Financial Officer
27 April 2023

The Strateqic Report was approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on its behalf by

James Boadle

James Boadle
Director
27 April 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance report

Enhanced and adaptable governance,
supporting Get Living's strategy.

Introduction

Effective corparale governance s o key requirement for
the Group For the vear ended 31 December 2022, under
The Companies (Miscellanecus Reporting) Regulations 2018,
Get Living has applied the Wates Corporate Governance
Principles for Large Private Companies (the “Wates Principles™)
as its framework for disclosure regarding its corporate
governance arrangerents. We continue to suppaort our
business to deliver on our strategy In an ever-changing
regulatory environment Corporate governance at Get Living
Is about running the business in the nght way n order to
realise value in our neighbourhoods for the benefit of all
our stakeholders and 1s treated as a core discipine that
complements our need to improve the performance of the
business on beralf of our stakeholders. In ths section we
provide detalls of our Board members, the Executive Team
and the role of the Board and its Committees.

The Board

The Board currently comprises three Non-executive Directors,
all of whom are independent from the management team of
the Group The Board 1s responsible for setting the cverall
Group strategy ard investment policy, monitoring Group
performance and authorising ail property acquisitions

To assist it i discharging these responsibilities, it receives
regular firancial and operational reports from the Executive
Tearn. It aiso menitors updates on regutatory 1ssues and
corporate governance rules and guidesines on a regular basis

The Roard meets At least Tour tmes per yedr and has adopted
a schedule of reserved matters for decision making.

The Board has established an Audit Committee and a
Remuneratior Committee and continues to support the
ongoing development of these Committees In support of
the adoption of the Wates Corporate Governance Principles.

Accountability and audit

The Board's responsiiiities with regard to the financial
staternents are set out from page 67 The Independent
auditor’'s report is given on pages 60 o 66.

Internai control

The Board recognises its ultimate respons:bility for the
Group's systermn of mternal control. it 1s actively developing
procedures for idertifying, evaluating and managng risks that
the Group I1s exposed to and has identified risk management
controls in the key areas of businaess objectives, accounting,
compliance and operations as areas for the continual review
These proceduras have operated throughout the year and

up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and audited
financial statements. It has, however, to be understood that
systems of internal control, however carefuily designeaq,
operated and superv'sed, can provide only reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstaterment or loss,

A description of the Group's operations and the strategy
which it employs to maxirmise returns whilst mimimising risks
can be found or pages 40 to 43,

Our governance structure

The Board

Responsible for the long-term
success of the business

Development of strategy

Determinegs the nature and extent
of significant risks

1

Audit Committee

I

Operating Committee

Remuneration Committee

Oversees guality of
financial reporting

Provides assurance on internal
controls, risk management
and audit processes

b

Approves routing business matters
between Board meetings

Sets remuneration policy

Approves level of remuneration and
Board appomntments

Ensures appropriate balance of skills
and expenence or Board

Each of the above Committees report on theair activities to the Board.
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Wates Principles application

The Board considers that Get Living successfully applies the Wates
Principles, through the corporate governance practices described above.

Principle One
Purpose and leadership

The Board impiements a five-year plan which supports our
vision to bulld the exemplary UK BtR platform defivering
quahty homes to our residents whilst contributing to local
communities and ensuring that Get Living values, strategy
and culture align with our overall purpose An annual Board
Strategy Away DOay has been introduced in the year, which
shares the vision. purpose and mission of the Board and
provides ar open forum to discuss the strategic direction
and expected challenges and opportunittes. Detalls of the
Board Strategy are set out on pages 14 to 16,

Principte Three
Director responsibilities

The Board meets on a quarterly basis ard has delegated the
day-to-day cperation of the business to the Executive Team.
The Executive Team meets at least monthly to review the
operational perfermance of the business.

The Board and Executive Team have a clear understarding of
ther accountability and responstbilities. To assist in discharging
their duties, the Board has established an Audit Committee
and Rermuneration Committee and has delegated appropriate
levels of authority to the Txecutive Team, The delegated
authonties and reserved matter procedures support effective
decision-making and independent challenge. The Group

has clear corporate governarce pract:ces In place, with clear
Iines of accountabiity and responsibility. Detalls of the Board
Committees are set out on pages 52 to 55

Principle Five
Remuneration

The Board promates executive remuneration structures
aligned to the long-term sustainable success of the Group,
taking into accourt pay and conditions elsewhere in the
busiress. The Remuneration Committee's role is to seek
and retain the appropriate calibre of pecple on the Beard
and Executive Tearm for the Group and recommends
remuneratior levels to the Board consistent with prevailling
market conditions, peer group companies and roles and
responsibilities. Details of the Directors’ pay policy 1s provided
In the Remuneratior Committee Repart on page 55.

Principle Two
Board composition

The Board currently comprises three Non-executive Directors
and an independent Charr, all of whom are ndependent from
the management team of the Group. The Remuneration
Comrmuttee reviews the structure, size and composition of the
Board and its cornmittees and rmakes recommendations with
regard to any changes considered necessary in the
identification and nomination of new Directors, the
reapoointment of existing Directors and appontrment of
members to the Board's committees. It also acts as a forum to
assess the roles of the existing Directors in office to ensure that
the Board and Executive Team are balanced in terms of skilis,
knowledge. experience and diversity. The Chair is responsible
for the effectiveness of the Board Detalls of the Board and
Executive Team composition are set out on pages 50 and 51,

Principle Four

Opportunity and risk

Strategic opportunities are identfied through the five-year
strategy planning process which includes input from all
areas of the busiress. The five-year plan is reviewed and
acknowledged by the Board on an annual basis.

The Executive Team ragularly reviews risks ard how these
are mitigated and managed across all areas of Get Living's
business activities. Risk 15 considered at every lavel of the
Group's operations and the risk management process ensures
prompet assessment and response to risk 1ssues that may be
identified at any level of the Group's business. The Board's
approach to oversight of the identification and mrtigation of
risks can be found in the Strategic Report on pages 40 to 43,

Principle Six
Stakeholder relationships and engagement

At Get Living, istening to and engaging effectively with our
stakeholders 15 key to ensuring the right decisions are made.,
As a result, the rejationships with our stakeholders are key to
the long-term success of the Group. The Board and Executive
Team are responsible for overseeing meanngful engagement
with stakeholders, including employees, and having regard to
their views when taking decisions. Details of the Company’s
stakeholder engagement are set out in the 5172 statement

on pages 28 and 29.
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James Boadle
Non-executive Director

James s Senior Vice
President, Europe and a
member of the European
ieadership team at Oxford
Properties ("Oxford™) Oxford
s the real estate arm of
OMERS. one of the largest
Canadian Pensior plans

—e Is respensible for logistics
ard residential strategies
across Europe, as well as

the development of Oxford's
wider Eurcpean strategy

James has over 15 years’
track record in the real
estate sector with giobal
transaction experience
across all major asset classes,
inciuding residential, office,
retall and ndustrial, and has
ied Oxford's iInvolvement into
the UK residential private
rented sector through
DOOR. Prior to joining
Oxford, James spent seven
years at real estate advisary
firms Sawviils and CBRE.

James i1s a member of

the Investment Property
Forum {IPF} ard the Royal
Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (RICS).
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Mabel Tan
Nor-executive Director

Mabel 1s Director of Asset
Management for Qatari Diar
Europe, a whoily cwned
subsidiary of Qatarn Diar
Real Estate Investrnent
Company which 1s owned
by the Qatari Investrment
Authority. the sovereign
wealth fund of the State

of Qatar It 15 the specialist
real estate arm of the Qatar
Irvestment Authority with
a significant presence in
the UK and the US.

Mabel has over 20 years'
experence in finance and
Investments, Pricr to joining
Qatari Diar in 2008, Mabel
developed new commerciai
projects, including Jvs and
acquisition opportunities
for Group RCIl. a division

of Wyndham Worldwide.

Mabel s a board member
of varigus entities .n the UK
and Montenegro.
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Rafael Torres Villalba
Non-executive Director

Rafael 1s & Senior Portfolio
Manager at APG Asset
Management, focusing on
APG's European residential
investment. APG 1s the
pension fund marager for
the Dutch civil servants
pension fund ABP.

Rafael has been working for
APG's real estate group for
more than 20 years, working
on both Asian and European
real estate. After heading the
European real estate team
for close to 15 years, he has
taken responsibility for scme

of the residential investments

in APG's portfolic His skillset
entails both transactional

as well as portfoho
management skills

Rafael 1s a board member
of the Spanish PRS Socim
Viveno and Oslo based
shoppling centre company
Steen & Strom.
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Jeremy Helsby
Nor-executwve Char

Jerermy provides strateg.c
advice ard support for
Get Living as it continues
to defiver an iIts ambitious
growth plans.

Jeremy has immersely deep
reat estate and operational
expert:se gained from his
40-year tenure at Savills,

" years of which were spenrt
as Chief Executive, prior

to his retirement in 2019



The Executive Team

—AD
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Rick de Blaby
Chief Exaecutive Officer

Rick joined Get Living :n 2017
as Executive Vice Chairman
hefore being appointed

as Chief Execut.ve Officer

ir 2079 He 1s focused on
growing Get Living's platform
across the UK, creating new
BtR neighbourhoods that
change the way we live

in cities.

With a demonstrated track
record of regenerat.ng urban
areas, Rick has 40 years of
real estate devetopment

and investment experierce
across poth residential and
commercial property. Prior
to Get Living, he was CEQ
of United House Group and
CEO of MEPC.

EMPOW

Dan Greenslade
Chief Financial Officer

Dan joined Get Living as
Chief Financial Officer :n
2022 and :s responsible for
all aspects of Get Living's
financral management,
reporting and debt strategy
With more than 20 years

of finance experiance,

Dan brings a deep track
record of bulding a robust
finance operation to support
a company durng its
growth phase.

Before joining Get Living,
Jan was Director of Group
Finance at Logicor, a
leading European ocwner
and manager of logistics
real estate, where he spent
more than five years. Prior
to Logicor, Dan spent over
four years at Quintain. He
qualified as a Chartered
Accountant at PwC.
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Ailish Christian-West
Chief Cperating Officer

Allish was appointed as
Director of Real Estate
at Get Living in 2020
before becoming Chief
Operating Officer in
2022 She s accountable
for Get Living's existing
£2.8 billhon bulld-to-rent
partfoio, including retall
and public realm space
She provides strategic
leadership to operational
asset management,
developments and ESG

Athsh has more than

20 years' experience in
UK real estate. Prior to
Get Living, she was Head
of Property at Landsec
and during the year was
President of Revo, the
placemaking and retail
property orgamsation.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Audit Committee report

Stephen Murphy (Chair)

MONITORIN

Members of the Audit and Risk Committee

(the “Committee”)
During the year, two meetings were held.

Members of the Committee
» Stephen Murphy {as Char)

* Nick Sissling (replacing Alisor Lambert effective
18 October 2022}

+ Rafael Torres Villalba

Responsibilities
The main roles and responsiilities of the Aucdt
Committee include:

« monitoring the 'ntegrity of the Group's annual and interim
financial statements, ensuring they are farr, balanced and
understandable and reviewing significant financial reporting
1ssues and Judgements contaimed therain;

* reviewing the Group's systems of finarcial controi and
risk management;

» making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
of the external auditor and apbroving its remuneration and
terms of engagement;

» monitoring and reviewing the external auditor's
independence, objectivity and effectiveness, taking into
account professional and regulatory requirercants; ard

* annually considering the need for an nternal audit function.

—PORTING AND RISK

Report on the Committee’s activities
during the year

During the year. the Committee discharged its
responsibilities by

s reviewing the Group's draft financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and draft unaudited interim financial
staterments for the period to 30 Jure 2022 prior to discussion
and approval by the Board, and revewing the external
auditor's report on the arnual financial statements;

* advising the Board on whether the Annual Report s far,
balanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's performance,
position, business model and strategy;

« reviewing the continuing appropriateness of the Group's
accounting policies.

« considering the potential impitcations of forthcoming
changes in accounting standards for the Group,

s reviewing the auditor's plan for the audhit of the Group's
December 2022 financial statements, receiving and
reviewing confirmations of auditor mdependence and
approving the terms of engagement and proposed
fees for 2022,

» considering the gualifications, expertise, resources and
independence of the auditor through reviews of its reports
and performance; and

= recommending the reappointment of the auditor

Get Living PLL.C
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Significant accounting matters

The Committee considers all finarncial information published
in the Annual Report and unaudited intenim report and
considers accounting policies adopted by the Group,
presentatior and disclosure of financial iInformation and, In
particular, the key jJudgements made in preparing the financal
statements, For Decomber 2022, the pronary risks identified
were In refation to the valuation of the property portfolic
(ncluding the net realisable value of trading property), going
concern and revenue recognition,

Valuation of the property portfolio

The Group has property assets of £2.7278 miilion,
including investment property of £2,659.2 millicn and trading
property of £68 6 millior, as detaled in the Group balarce
sheet, As explained in note 12 to the financial statements,
investment property s independently valued by CBRE in
accordance with RICS valuation standards in the United
Kingdorn and |AS 40 investment Property The Audit
Committee reviewed ard discussed with management the
judgements and assumptions made In respect of the property
valuat:on, reviewed the valuer's repoert and the auditor's
comments thereen, and concluded that the valuation is
approphate.

Net realisable value of trading property

“he Group's trading property Is stated at the lower of cost
and ret reaisable value ("NRV™), NRV 15 calculated with
reference to the expected selling price, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estmated costs necessary to
make the saie, discounted to the net prasent value. The Audit
Committee reviewed and discussed with maragement the
Judgements and assumptiors made 1n respect of the net
realisable vaue of trading property and concluded that the
valuation s appropriate.

Going concern

The Committee has reviewed Managameant's going concern
assessment for the perod to 30 June 2024 in crder to
assess the requirements of the Group over that period and
the approprateness of adopting the going concern basis of
accounting n preparing the full year financial statements.

Despite the buoyanrt rental market, driven in part by a market
supply and demand imbalance, the going concern assessment
has been performed against the backdrop of a subdued gicbal
econcmic outlook. The Directors have therefore considerea

a base case, a downside scenano, and performed reverse
stress testing, In consideration of the potentiat future risks of
economic uncertainty and further recession relatad to macro-
economic events, the cmsis in Ukraine and aftermath of the
globai pandemic driving global supply constraints leading to
high inflation and a cost of Iving crnisis, along with high interest
rates as a result of UK political instability and policy changes.
The Rirectors have aiso considered the payment subsequent
to the year end of £18.9m to HMRC, and the receipt of E70m
funding from shareholders in March 2023 :n the gong concern
assessment The Directors aiso evaluated potential events and
© conditions beyond the period ending 30 June 2024 that may
cast significant doubt or the Group's ability to contirue as a
going concarn, with no significant transactions or events of
material uncertamty dentified.

The Directors are confident in the Group's ability to refinance
debt facilities expiring during the going concern period

The Directors have held discussions with a number of potential
lenders on the refinancmgs and a series of competitively
priced indicative guotes have been received (subject to

credit committee approval) The Directors are confident that
the market appetite for lending against PRS assets remains
strong and that Get Living FLC 15 well placed to secure the
reguired financing on both the Porttands Place and the New
Maker Yards Phase 1 and Phase 2 debt facilities which fall

due in the going concern period. However, If the Group 1s not
successful In refinancing the debt facibties, 1t will be reliant

on shareholders providing funds to support the repayment

of existing debt facilities, in addition to the sharehoider
funding assumed n the base case scenario. The Directors have
therefore concluded that there 1s a material uncertainty with
respact to refinancing the Portlands Place, New Maker Yards
Phase 1 and New Maker Yards Phase 2 debt facilities which may
cast significant doubt over the Group and Company's ability
to continue as a going concerr.

The Beoard believe that, subject to the materai uncertamnty
relating to acheving the ref'nancing described above, the
Group wil be able to manage 1ts business risks suecessfully,
ard the Group's forecasts and projections show that the Group
will be able to operate withir the ‘ever of its avallable hguidity
and coverant requirements. Accordingly, the Directors continue
to adopt the going concern basis N preparing the arrual
report and financial statements, however, the matters described
above result ir the existence of a matenal uncertairty which
may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue
as & going concern.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognised revenue of £99.2 millon of which

£83% 4 million relates to rental income. The Audit Committee
reviewed and discussed with management revenue recognition
and the auditor’'s comments thereon and concluded that the
revenue recognition 1S appropriate.

Review of risk management

and internal control processes

The Audit Committee i1s responsible for reviewing the
adeguacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk management
processes and systems of internal control

Followmng 1ts awn assessment and the management repert
and the work it performed on risk management and mternal
control procedures, the Commuttee believes that the key
risks facing the business have been correctly wdentified and
disclosed in the Risk management section of the Strategic
Report on pages 40 to 43

In addition, the Committee believes that, although robust, the
Group's systems of internal control are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate, the risk of faillure to achieve the Group's
business objectives. Therefore, the systermn can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or |oss.
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Audit Commiltee report continued

Financial reporting

The Board i1s responsible for the Annual Report The Auciit
Committee I1s asked to review the Annual Report and consider
whether it 1s fair, balanced and understandabie and provides
the necessary information for shareholders to assess the Group's
position, performance, business model and strategy.

In undertaking its assessment, the Committee considered:

= the systemns and controls operated by management around
the preparat:on of the accounts,

* the procedures included in these to bring relevant
:nformation to the attention of those who prepare
the accounts,

» the corsistency of the reports; and

« whether they are In accordance with the informaticn
provided to the Board during the year.

It alsc considered whether the Annual Report had beer written
in clear and congise language ard without unnecessary
repetition of information, and that market-specific terms ard
any nor-statutory measures had been adequartely defined

or explained

The Audit Committee has reviewed the contents of the
December 2022 Arnual Report and financial statements andg
confirmed to the Board that, in 1ts view, the report s farr,
balanced and understandabie and grovdes the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's positon.,
performarce, business model and strategy

Auditor independence

The Group's policy ensures iIndependence and cbjectivity

of the external auditor and comphance with the FRC Ethical
Standards; the Group may procure certain non-audit services
from the external auditer. All other proposed engagements
must be submitted to the Committee for approval prior to
engagement. Details of the amounts pad to the external
auditor during the year for audit ang other services are set
out In rote 9 to the Group financiai statements

The external auditor was engaged for tax related services
being the only non-audit assignments during the year. Its
ergagement was not deemed 0 COmpromise 1ts obhjectivity
and independerce as sufficient safeguards were 1n place.

Effectiveness of external auditor

The effectiveness of the audit process Is dependent on
appropriate audit risk identification at the start of the audit
cycle. The Committee received from Ernst & Young LLP a
detailed audit pian, identifying its assessment of these key
risks. For 2022 the primary risks identified were in relation
ro the valuation of the property portfolio, going concern and
revenue recognition.

The Board takes responsibility for exercising yudgement
when necassary in greparing the Annual Report and financial
statements. It prepares and reviews papers provided to the
auditor setting out its Judgemeants and approaches taken

to specific items. The work undertaken by the auditor in

this area to test management's assumptions and estimates

15 challenged by the Audit Committee, which assesses the
effectiveness of the audit process through the reporting
received from Ernst & Young LLP at year end. The Committee
s satisfled with the effectiveness of the auditor and therefore
recemmends 1ts reappointment.

The Committee assesses the effectiveness of the external
auditor on an annual basis Following the comp.etion of the
December 2022 year end audit, the Committee conducted its
review and considers that the audit was appropriately planned
and scoped efficient'y and effect vely performed by £rnst &
Vourg LLP The Committee is satisfied that Ernst & Young LLP
continued to perform effectively as the external auchtor

Audit tender policy

The Audit Committee will consider the need for a competitive
tander for the role of external auditor at ‘east every ten years

ard recommend to the Board f a tender process 15 felt to be

appropriate.

The tender process will be adrministered by the Audit
Committee which will cansider whether to seek major
nvestors' views on the audit firms to be invited to tender
and success cniteria to be used by the Group 10 the course
of the tender

If a tender s conducted as part of a normal tender cycle,
the :ncumbent auditor will be irvited to particpate in
the tender unless prehibited due to specific factors such
as independence.

The Audit Committee will make a recommendation to the
Board of its preferred appoimntee

The current external auditor, Ernst & Young L LP (EY) was
apponted in 2018 Graeme Downes 15 the audit partner and
has held the role since 2022

Internal audit

The Audit Committee considers arnualiy the requirement
for an internal audit function and the Board, on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, baving regard to
the matters considered above, has concluded that one s not
currently reguired

The Audit Committee
27 April 2023
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Remuneration Committee report

Jeremy Helsby (Chair)

ALIGNING TO
FRFORMANC:

Members of the Remuneration Committee
(the “Committee™)

During the year, four meetings were held, and these were
attended by sharehoider representatives

Members of the Committee
« Jeremy Helsby (as Chair)

+ Mabel Tan

* James Boadie

* Rafael Torres Villalba
» Stafford Lancaster

The Remuneration Committee's roie 1s to seek and retan the
appropriate calibre of people on the Board and Executive
Tear for the Group and recommend remuneration leveais

to the Board consistent with prevaihng market conditions,
peer group companies and roles and responsibilities. Executive
rermuneration structures are aiyned to the long-term sustainable
success of the Group, taking Inte account pay and condibions
alsewhere in the business. A recommendation 1s then made
to the Beard.

The Rerruneration Committee also acts as a forum to assess
the roles of the existing Directors in office to ensure that the
Board 1s balanced in terms of skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity.

SUSH

N

Responsibilities of the Committee
The principal responsibiitias of the Committee are:

+ setting the remuneration framewaork or poiicy for all
Directors, Executives and sen:or managers;

= reviewng the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of the
remureration policy,

« within the terms of the approved policy, determining the
total individual remuneration package of each Director,
Executive and semor manager;

» agreeing the policy on the recovery of expenses incurred
whiist performing duties, and

* reporting to shareholders or the implementation of the
remuneration policy In accordance with relevant statutory
and corporate governance requirements

Committee’s activities during the year

The Committee met four times dunng the year to discuss
the remuneration of the Executive Team, which included
approving the grants of long-term incentive plans, setting
specific targets for the annual bonus and reviewing progress
against the long term incentive plan. The Committee also
considered external, publicly availlable survey information of
remuneration levets paid by sirmilar companies in making any
recommendation to the Board. The Committee agreed that
there 1s no remuneration for the Directors for the year. This
15 In line with previous reporting periods

The Remuneration Committee
27 April 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Directors’ report

The Directors present their Annual Report including audited
Group financial statemenits for the year ended 31 Decermber 2022,
This report shouid be read together with the Corporate
Governance Report on page 48.

Directors
The Directors who served during the year, and at the dale of
this report, were:

» James Boadle (appointed 17 October 2019}
» Mabel Tan (appointed 18 August 2020)
» Rafael Torres Villalba (appointed 30 June 2021)

Future developments

In the coming year, the Diractors will continue the proactive
investrment and management of the BtR schemes and

will continue to work on the bullding phases of its BtR
developments nciuding Newtor Place and Elephant and
Castle Town Centre. Detalls of these developments are
included in the Portfolio Review section from pages 26 to 27

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis. The Directors have prepared cash flow
forecasts for the perod to 30 June 2024 in order to assess
the requirements of the Group and Company over that
periad (the “going concern period”). Despite the buoyant
rental market, driven in part by a market supply and
demand imbalance, the going concern assessment has
been performed against the backdrop of a subdued global
economic cutiook. The Directors have therefore considered
a base case, a dowhside scenario, and performed reverse
stress testing, In consideration of the potential future risks of
economic uncertainty and further recession related to macro-
economic events, the crisis in Ukraime and aftermath of the
glokbal pandemic driving global supply censtraints leading
to high inflaticn ang a cost of iving crisis, along with high
‘nterest rates as a result of UK political instabiity and policy
changes The Directors have also considered the paymeant
subseguent to the year end of £18 9m to HMRC, and the
receipt of £7.0m funding from shareholders in March 2023
in the going concern assessment.

In the base case scenario”

The Directors have performed a detalied going concern
review based on the Board approved 2023 budget, which
reflects current trading trends at high cccupancies for
stabilised assets, a strong taunch of lease-up assets and
continued strong rental growth, with revenue on stabilised
assets forecast to Increase approximately n ine with
nflationary trends between 2022 and 2023 The impact of
inflatron on costs over the going concern period has been
incorporated into this scenario. Key assumptions in the
base case scenaric include:

* The Group successfuily refinances the debt facilities on
1ts Portlands Place asset ahead of the maturity date of
September 2023, and its New Maker Yards Phase 1 and
Phase 2 debt facilities ahead of ther matunty date in
March 2024 The Group has the option to extend the New
Maker Yards Phase 2 facility for one year to March 2025,
subject to meeting certain condibons which the Group
are confident can be achieved.

« The Group recerves further capital from its investors to
meet the costs of carrying out fire safety remedial works.

» The Group receives further capital from 1ts investors to
rmeet non-contractual commitments spectfically for the
development of other plots at East Village. If funding
Is not cbtaned. the Group has the nption not to enter
into these transactions.

In the downside scenario, the Board has considered
a severe but plausible scenario which considers the
following assumptions:

* Reduced occupancy across the Group's assets and
downward pressures on pricing, modelled based on ar
extended economic downturn This scenario assumes a
10% decrease from the base case in PRS, student and retail
revenues This scenario also models a 10% ncrease in void
unit and 15% Increase In bad debt costs.

» Varous mitigation measures that would need to be exercised
incluaing the deferrai of certain discretionary operating
costs, development and capital expenditure. The Directors
are confident these mitigating actions can be executed In the
necessary timeframe -f required and are within the control of
Management The use of these mitigations would not have g
resyltant iImpact on the forecast revenues.

+« There are no breaches of loan facihty covenants.
s The Group receives no further fundirg frem sharehclders.

Based on the downside scenano, assuming the debt faciity
refinancings N the going concarn period are achieved and the
controllable mitigations are actioneg, the Directors assess that
the Group has sufficient cash reserves to operate as a going
concern. This jJudgement 1s based upon

+» Reference to the approved budget for the year ended
December 2023, through which shareholders have agreed
to provide funding for fire safety costs and non-contractual
commitments for development plots

*» The Directors have considered the financial ability of the
investors and assess they have sufficient cash resources
to provide the funding committed.

« In the scenano where no further shareholder funding is
received the Group bas sufficient cash reserves tc meet its
llabilities after executing the mitigating actions which are
within the control of Management

The Group also performed a reverse stress test over the
impact of a fall In 1ts property valuations during the going
concern pericd, with an unprecedented percentage fall not
even seen during the Covid-19 pandemic reguired to result

In a loan to value covenant breach, a decrease not historically
seen by the Group. This 1s therefore considered to be a
remote possibility during the going concearn period.

The Directors also evaluated potential events and conditions
beyond the period ending 30 June 2024 that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, with no significant transactions or events of material
uncertainty identified.

The Directors are confident in the Group's ability to refinance
debt facilties expiring during the geing concern period. The
Directors have held discussions with a number of potential
lenders on the refinancings and a series of competitively
priced indicative guotes have been received (subject to
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credit committee approvai). The Directors are confident that the
market appetite for lending against PRS assets remains strong
and that Get Living PLC 1s well placed to secure the required
financing on both the Portlands Place and the New Maker

Yards Phase 1 and Phase 2 debt facilities which fall due in the
going concern pertod However, If the Group 1s not succassful

in refinancing the debt faciities it wall ba rohant on sharehuidurs
oroviding funds to support the repayment of existing debt
faciities, in addition to the shareholder funding assurned In the
base case scenaric The Directors have therefore concluded that
there 15 a materal uncertainty with respect to refinancing the
Portlands Place, New Maker Yards Phase 1 and New Maker Yards
Phase 2 debt facihties which may cast significant doubt over the
Group and Company's ability to continue as 2 going concern,

The Board beleve that, subject to the material uncertainty relating
tc achieving the refinancing described above, the Group will be
able to manage its business risks successfully, and the Group's
forecasts and projections show that the Group wili be able to
operate within the level of its avallable haquidhty and covenant
requirements. Accordingly, the Directors continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the annual report and financial
statemants, however, the matters described above result In the
existence of a materal uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt over the Group's ability to continue as a going concern

The consolidated financial statements do not include the
adjustments that wouia result If the Group and Company
were ynabie to continue as a going concern,

Financial risk management objectives and policies
Financial risks inciude interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. These risks, and management objectives and pohcies
inrelation to these rnisks, are described further in nete 23 to
the financial staterments.

Charitable and social donations

The Group made charitable donation contributions of £31k
(December 2021 £ml) and community project contributions
of £188k (December 2021 £157k) during the year.

Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use

On a lke-for-like basis, Greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) for

the Group increased by 1% (December 2021 decrease of 5%)
whilst energy usage increased by 5% during the year (December
2027 1%) which suggests that head dermand has not reduced

IN proporticn with the relatively mild winter. The measurement
approach taken follows guidance provided by the GHG and
INREY Sustainability Reporting Guidelines. Please refer to cur
Statement of GHG Emissions and Energy Usage in “sustainabihty
and governance” section of the Strategic Report

Stakeholder engagement

The Group continuad to foster business relationships during
the year Please refer to the Group Section 172 statement on
pages 28 and 29.

Dividends
Ne dividends were recommended or paid to shareholders
during the year (December 2021 nul)

Staff policies
The Group seeks to involve all empiloyees in the developrment
of the Group’s business. The Group undertakas to provide

employees with information of concern to them that is likely
to affect ther interests

The Group supports the principle of equal opportunities in
empioyment and opposes all forms of discrimination. Every step
1s taken to ensure that Individuals are treated equally and fairly,
AN fecisinae on rocrutmaent, Gan iy, promation and career
development are based only on objective and |job-related critera
The Group gives full and fair consideration to applications for
employment from disabled persons and also seeks to continue
to employ, with suttable training, If appropriate. any person who
becomes disabled whilst employed by the Group.

Subsequent events

Subsequent to year end QD UK Heldings LP, one of the Group's
cantrelng parties, exchanged on a transaction to dispose of its
entire shareholding in Get Living PLC to Aware Super. There are
no further subseguent events that impact the Group

Subseguent to the year end the Group made a payment

of £18 9 million to MMRC as part of an agreement signed in
March 2023 to settle an ongoing tax enguiry The settlemeant
of this balance confirms that the Group had a present
cbligation at the end of the reporting period and therefore the
Group has recognisad a provision for £18 7m, refer to note 18

Directors’ statement as to disclosure

of information to auditor

The Directors who were members of the Board at the time

of approving the Directors’ report are referred to on page 56,
Each of the Directors in office at the date that this Annual
Report and financial statements were approved confirms that

* to the best of each Director's knowledge and belief, there
15 no relevant audit information (that s, information needed
by the Group’s auditor in connection with preparing Its
report) of which the Group's auditor 1s unaware, and

+ each Director has taken all the steps a Director might
reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of
relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's
auditor 15 aware of that information,

Directors’ indemnity

The Group has In place approprata Directors’ and Officers’
llabihty Insurance cover in respect of potential legal action
against 1ts Directors. These indemnitias are qualifymg
third-party indemnity provisicns as defined by Section 234
of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnities were valid
throughout the year and are currently vahd.

Auditor

In accordance with Section 485 of the Compames Act 20086,
a resclution for the reappointment of Ernst & Young LLP as
auditor of the Group is to be proposed at the forthcomimng
Annual Gereral Maeting

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf
of the Board.

Vames Baadle

James Boadle
Director
27 April 2023
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Statement of Directors responsibilities

The Dhirectors are responsbie for preparing the Annual Report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
United Kingdom law and regulations.

Company law reguires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that taw the
Directors have elected to prepare the Group financial
slatements in accordancea with UK-adopted intarnationa:
accounting standards (IFRSs), and the Company financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicatle law), including Financial Reporting
Standard 107 Reduced Disclosure Framework {(FRS 10D,

Under company iaw the Directors must not approve the
financial staternents uniess they are satisfied that they give
a true ancg fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
the Company ard of the profit or ‘oss of the Group and the
Company for that period

in preparing these finarcial statements the Directors are
required to

= select suitable accounting policies In accordance with 1AS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors and then apply them consistently;

* make judgertents and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

» presert information, Including accounting polices,
a manner that provides relevant, relable, comparabte
and understandable information;

* provide additional disclosures when compliance with
the specific reguirements in IFRSs and 'n respect of the
Company financial statements, FRS 101 s insufficient
to enable users o0 undarstand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and condit.ons on the Group
and Companry financial position and financial performance,

= n respect of the Group financial statements, state whether
UK-adopted internaticnal accounting standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the iinancial statements:

» in respect of the Company financial staterments, state
whether appiicable UK Accounting Standards including
FRS 107, have been followed, subject to any material
departures disciosed and explained in the financial
statements, and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it 1s Inappropriate to presume that the Company
ana/or the Group will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explam
the Company's and Group's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any tire the financial position of the
Company and the Group and erable them to ensure that
the Company and the Group financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets cf the Company and the Group and
hence for taking reascnable steps for the prevention ard
detection of fraud and cther irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also
responsible for preparing a Strategic Report and a Directors’
report, that compry with that law and those regulations The
Directars are responsible for the mainterance and integrity
of the corporate and financial '-rformation included on the
Company's website
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent auditor’s report

to the members of Get Living PLC

Opinion
N our opiron.

* Get _iving PLC's group financial statements and parent company financial statements (the “financial statements”) give a true
and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the group's profit
for the year then ended;

* the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting stardards:

* the parent company financiat staterments have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generaily
Accepted Accounting Practice; and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements of Get Living PLC (the ‘parent cocmpany’) and its subsidiaries {the 'group’) for the year
ended 31 December 2022 which comprise

Group Parent company

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022 Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022

Consolidated statement of comprehensive :ncome for the Statermment of changes in equity for the year thern ended
year then ended

Consolioated statement of changes In equity for the year then ended Statement of cash flows for the year then ended

Consolidated statement of castk flows for the year ther ended Related notes 1to 16 to the financ:al statements including
a summary of significant accounting pohcies

Related notes 1 to 38 to the finarcial statements, Including a
summary of significant accounting policies

The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements 1s apphcable law
and UK adopted international accounting standards. The financial reporting framewcerk that has been appled in the preparation
of the parent company financial statements 15 applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101
"Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Gererally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internaticnal Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs (UK)) and applicable law Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report We are independent of the group and parent company in accordarce with the ethical
requirements that are relevart to our audit of the financial statements In the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied
to hsted entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these regquirements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 2 in the financial statemeants, which indicates that there 1s a material uncertainty relating to the
refnancing of the Portlands Place, New Maker Yards 1 and New Maker Yards 2 debt facilities which fall due -n the going concern
period As stated in note 2, these events or conditions, along with the other matters as set forth in note 2, indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast sigrificant doubt on the Group's and parent Company’s ability te continue as a going
concern. Our opimon 1s not modified in respect of this matter.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the director’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements 1s appropriate Qur evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Group and parent
company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting Inctuded:

+ We obtained Management's going concern assessment, including the cash flow forecast and coverant calcuiations covering
the going concern period to 30 June 2024,

* We understood the process followed by Management to prepare the Group's going concern assessment, including the going
concern period considered by Management, identifyirg, and assessing the impact of a severe but plausible downside scenario in
their cash flow forecasts and covenant caiculations in order to assess the forecast hauidity and covenant comphance of the Group.

« We challenged the appropriateness of Management's base case and severe but plausible downside forecasts by assessing
historical forecasting accuracy, the reasonableness of assumptions, including forecast occupancy, rental rates and cperating
costs, by reference to histoncal performance, post year end occupancy rates, external iIndustry forecasts and the perspective
of our Chartered Surveyors In assessing the potential reductions in property valuations in the going concern period,

« We challenged Management's consideration of a severe but plausible downside scenario, ard performed cur own additional
stress testing to cash collections and valuations where appropriate to test the impact on liquiaity and covenant compliance.
We also carried cut reverse stress testing and assessed the likelihood of such conditions arising that would 'ead to the group
utiising all lguidity or breaching 1ts financial covenants during the going concern period
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Material uncertainty related to going concern continued

¢ We evaluated whether the covenant requirements of the debt facilities would be complied with under the scenanos prepared
by Management and cur additional stress testing scenarios including assessing the impact of the timing of these events.

* We challenged the avallability of mitigating factors included in the cash flow forecasts such as removing cash flows relating to
uncommitted development costs and eévaluated Management’'s ability to control the level and tming of these outflows as mitigating
actions if required. We assessed this throvgh our understanding of the business anid Lhe presence of any contrary evidence.

* We challenged the ability of the investors to provide funding If required, by researching the financial health of the investors
and assessing any Indicators that the financial support would not be forthcoming.

« We challenged Management’s view on the probability of being abie to refinance the Portlands Place, New Maker Yards 1 and
New Maker Yards 2 debt faciities in the going concern period Our audit procedures include the perspective of EY Debt
Advisory Specialists on the probability of being able to refinance, understanding how far discussicns have progressed with
prospective lenders and assessing the historical trends of debt refinancing when reguired

s We reviewed minutes of board meetings with a view to wdentifying any matters which may impact the going concern
assessment. We inspected Management’s assessment of tax exposure relating to land and property transactions to ident:fy
any matters which may impact the going concerr assessment

¢ We Inspected evidence to support the £18 9m tax settlerment paid to HMRC and receipt of £70m shareholder funding, both of
which occurred after the year end

* We reviewed the Group's going corcern disclosures included in the arnual report 1n order to assess whether the disclosures
were appropriate and in conformity with the reporting standards.

Going concern has also been ident:fied as a key audit matter.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report, However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, our responsibitities and the responsibilities
of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the reievant statement I1s rot a guarantee as to the group’s
ability to contirue as a going concern.

Overview of our audit approach

Audit scope « We performed the audit of the group as If it were a single aggregated set of financial informatron

Key audit matters + Vatuation of the property portfolio
» Revenue recognition
+ Going concern basis used In the preparation of the financial statements

Materiality » Overall group materality of £29.7m which represents 1% of total assets.

An overview of the scope of the parent company and group audits

Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our allocation of performance materiaiity determine cur audit
scope for eack company within the Group. Taken together, this enables us to form an opinion on the consclidated financial
statements We performed the audit of the group as If It were a single aggregated set of financial iInformation. The audit was
performed using the matenalty level set out above and covered 100% of group revenue, group profit before tax and group total
assets (December 2021: 100% of group revenue, group profit before tax and group total assets)

Climate change

Stakeholders are increasingly interested in how climate change will mpact Get Living PLC The Group has determined that

the most significant future Impacts from ciimate change on therr operations will be from impacts of ESG reguirements on
operations, net zerc carbon cbligations and the potential impact of sustamable lending requirements. These are explained

on pages 40 - 43 in the principal nisks and uncertainties which form part of the "Other information”, rather than the audited
financial statements. Our procedures on these unaudited disclosures therefore consisted sotely of considering whether they are
materally inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained it the course of the audit or otherwise appear
to be matenally misstated. in line with our responsibilities on “Cther information”

In planning and performing our audit we assessed the potential impacts of climate change on the Group's business and any
consequentral materal impact on its financial statements

The Group has explained in the Strategic Report governmental and societal responses te chimate change nsks are still developing,
and where the degree of certainty of these changes means that they cannot be taken into account when determining asset and
liability valuations and the timing of future cash flows under the requirements of UK adopted internationai accounting standards.

Qur audit effort in considering the impact of climate change on the financial statements was focused on ensuring that the effects
of material climate risks disclosed on page 42 have been appropriately reflected in the valuation of the property portfolic and the
goinNg concarn assessment where values are determined through modelling future cash flows, including those related to climate

risks. Details of our procedures and findings on the valuation of the property portfolio are included i our key audit matters below.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent auditor’s report continued

to the members of Get Living PLC

An overview of the scope of the parent company and group audits continued

Climate change continued

We also challenged the Directors’ considerations of climate change risks in ther assessment of going concern and associated
disclosures. Where considerations of climate change were relevant to our assessment of going concern, these are described above.

Based on our work we have not 1dentified the impact of climate change on the financ:al statements te be a key audit matter or
to impact a key audit matter.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those rmatters that, In our professional jJudgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financiai
staterments of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to
fraud) that we 1dentified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on the overall aucht strategy, the ailocation of
resources In the audht; and directing the efforts of the engagement tearn. These matters were addressed In the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in our opimon thereor, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In
addition to the matter described 1n the matenal uncertainties related to going concern section, we have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Risk

Valuation of the property portfolio
Investment property
2022 £2,653.2m (December 2021 £2,366 2m}

Trading property
2022, £68.6m (Secember 2021 £35.6m)

Refer to the Audit Commuttee Report (pages 52 to 54), Accounting policies (pages 74 and 76); and Note 12 and 14 of the
Consohdated Financial Statements (pages 81 to 83)

Investment properties are held at far value, Trading properties are held at the lower of cost and net reahzable value (NRV),
thowgh EPRA measures are also disclosed 0 the anpual report which reflect the fair value of trading properties. The valuat on
of the property portfolio cortains a high degree of estimation uncertainty. Addit.onally, the potential for manipulation of the
underlying data provided to the third party valuer and influence on the significant judgements to meet investor expectations or
perfarmance targets or to avoid an impairment of trading properties give rise to a fraud risk.

In addition to the above, for all properties in deveiopment, there 15 an aaditional risk around compieteness of forecasts costs to
complete, and the allocation of capital expenditure between investment property and trading property.

Our response to the risk

We included Chartered Surveyors on our audit team and held discussions with the Group's external valuer, CBRE, to assess and
challenge the appropriateness of the methodology adopted for each property

working with our EY Chartered Surveyors, we assessed

+ The appropriateness of the methodoiogy adopted for the property valuations, including holding meetings with C3RE.

= We challenged whether the assumptiors (yields, market rent, sales and cost assumptions for developments) adopted by the
external valuers fall within a reasonable range based on knowledge ard evidence from the market. This included performing
benchmarking of the key inputs of the valuation against comparable build to rent schemes

* We searched for transactional evidence which contradicted the inputs adepted by the valuer and challenged the valuer during
our meetings with them,

+ We reperformed vaiuation calculations, Including sensitivity anaiysis over key assurptions, to determine a reasonable range of
values for the entire portfolio of properties

For operational properties:

« We agreed the contracted rental income aft the valuation date to the assumed contracted rent per the valuation report.

* We assessed the 6-month trailing rents achieved across the properties and compared this to the market rents assumed by CBRE.

« We challenged the completeness of Management's identification of remediation works as a result of pullding and fire safety legislation
through selecting a sample of fire nsk assessments across the entire portfolio to assess the completeneass of the provisicns.

* For each property with remediation works required. we inspected the results of the fire risk assessments performed by
Managements external specialist.

« We challenged Management over the comgleteneass of the nsks identified and the required costs to remedsiate the fire safety 1ssues.
This iIncluded obtaining evidence to support the remediation work such as signed contracts and forecast costs to complete.

* We read the contracts to determine whether the scope of works was sufficient to address the remediation works reguired per the
fire risk assessments
« We corroborated the costs to complete were appropriately included in the valuation of the property portfolio
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Key audit matters continued

Our response to the risk continued

For properties under development:

« On a sample basis, we vouched development expenditure to supporting evidence and determine whether these have been
capitalised appropriately, including whether the allocation between investment and trading property was appropriate

« We assessed the completeness of the costs to compiete, including inspection of board minutes for contract variations.
performing comparisen of costs over time and vouching a sample of forecast costs to committed contracts or other
supporting evidence.

» Compared total forecast costs at the year end in comparison to the pnor year and investigated material changes

« Assessed Management's spiit of the costs to complete for developments where costs are incurred across both investment and
tracding properties

* ‘We performed site visits and attended meetings with property development managers for a sample of properties We
nspected the stage of development, understood the key deveiopment risks and chailenged the developrment managers on
the costs to complete.

We also carried out the following procedures:

« We performed a walkthrough and ident:fied the key controls over data used in the valuation of the property pertfolio and
Management's review of the valuatiors.

= We made inauiries with the valuer to determine whether any undue pressure had been placed on them to arrive at a particular
valuation

« Reconclled valuations to the financiat statements and reviewed this for any caveats or limitaticns in scope, unusuai terms
or conditions.

« We evaluated the competence of the external valuers i performing the vaiuation of Investiment preperties, incuding
corsideration of their gualif cations, expertise and ndependence

In addition to the above procedures, we performed the following procedures for trading property:

* We obtained the net realisable value (NRV) calculatiors from Managemert and assessed whether the properties were
appropriately measured at the lower of cost and NRV. We assessed the reasonableness of the cash flows used to calculate the
NRV, including the agreed sales price and development costs to complete

Scope of our procedures
The whole Group was subsect to audit procedures over the valuation of the property portfolio.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee

Based upon the audit procedures performed, we concluded that the valuation of the property portfolio has been recogrised on
an appropriate basis as at 31 December 2022

The investment properties are appropriately recorded at their fair value The trading properties are appropr:ately recorded at the
lower of cost and NRY and are appropnately disclosed at fair value 1in the EPRA disclosures.

Risk

Revenue recognition
Rental income
2022 £83 4m (December 2021 £63.8m)

Trading property disposal
2022 £5.7m (December 2021 M

Revenue from development contracts
2022 £39m (December 2027 nil)

Other income
2022 £6.2m (December 2021: £6 9m)

Refer to the Audit Committee Report (pages 52 to 54), Accounting pohcies (page 76), and Note & of the Conschdated
Financial Statements (page 79)

Investor expectations and profit based targets may place pressure on Management to distort revenue recognition. This may
result In overstatement or deferral of revenues to assist in meeting current or future targets or expectations

We consider that the risk lies within the revenue being overstated through fictitious leases, any top-side adjustments, and
incorrect cut off
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Independent auditor’s report continued

to the members of Get Living PLC

Key audit matters continued

Qur response to the risk

We performed a walkthrough of the process and key controls over revenue recognition which have been designed by the
Group to prevent and detect fraud and errors In revenue recognition

We performed data analytics over the whole population of journals posted to revenue during the year to search for evidence
of Management override or iInappropriate journal postings This involves investigating manual journal postings to revenue and
Journals with unusual account pairings.

For rental income

» Wae obtained and used data from the property management system to form a highly granular expectation for the revenue recognised
for every single lease using our lease analyser We compared this detalled expectation at the tenant level to the General Ledger.

« We audited the integrity of the tenancy schedule downloaded from the property management system, agreenng a sample
of lease information to the original lease documents or subseqguent lease amendments and traced our sample through to
cash receipts. Using this data we recalculated the expected rental income and deferred income balances, comparing this to
the reported figures In the general ledger.

= From our sample we recalculated the total expected rertal income for the year, and agreed this to cash receipts in
December 2022 to corfirm the completeness of the rental iIncome recognised We also considered any lease terms that
could iImpact revenue but were not identiflied by Management.

For the trading property disposal.

« We obtained and read Managemenrt's techmical accounting paper for the saie of NOS, Including an assessment of the timing
of revenue recognition and determine whether the sale of NQ5 has been accounted for in accordance with iIFRS 16

s We reconciled the revenue recognised to rolevant clauses in the lease agreement and cash receipts through the bank
statement.

« We inspected the lease agreement and other supporting agreements related to the sale We searched for eviaence of any
residual vaiue held by the Group after the sale and whether any value should be recognised on balance sheet.

« We performed cut-off procedures on the tirming of development costs, focusing on costs -ncurred during the month of sale
and whether they were allocated to tracing property pre or post sale

For revenue from development cortracts:

» ‘We nspected Management's technical accounting paper, .ncluding an assessment of the igentified performance obligations,
allocation of the transaction price and the timing of revenue recognition to determime whether the construction income has
been accourted for in accordance with the underlying contract, the stage of completicn and IFRS 15

= ‘We reconciled total revenue forecast by management to the revenue contract We inspected the entire agreement to
dentify any terms or conditicns that would 'mpact the revenue recognition that were not identified by Management

= We chailenged Management's treatment as to whether Get Living retain the control over the services provided, and
whether they are the ‘principai’ or ‘agent’

« We recalculated the revenue recognised in accordance with the terms of the contract and verified completion of
performance obligations through evidence to support completion,

For cther income:

* We obtained Management's schedule of the allocation for the property mamntenance costs between Get Living and the Non-
Controlling Interest, Including how these costs were apportioned between each property

* We performed test of details, including sample testing, relating to the property maintenance costs incurrad and the amounts
recharged o the non-controlling interest. For the sampie selected, we obtained evidence which supports the value and
tuming of the cost incurred and assessed whether the costs can be recharged in accordarnce with the underlying agreement

» We tested a sample of the revenue transactions related to the Non-Controthng Interests properties and obtained evidence to
challenge whether the revenue was being recogrised in the Group financial statements appropriately, and, to search for any
potential overstatement of Group revenue

» We searched for any evidence of claims, correspondence or credit notes from the Non-Controlhing Interest through
nspection of board minutes, post year end bank statement testing and inguiries of the external property management team.

Scope of our procedures
The whole Group was subject to audit procedures over revenue recognition

Key ohservations communicated to the Audit Committee

Based upon the audit procedures performed, we concluded that revenue has been recognised on an appropriate basis in the year.
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Our application of materiality
We apply the concept of materality in planning and performing the audit, in evaluating the effect of identified misstatements cn

the audit and in forming cur audit opimon.

Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in the aggregate could reasonably be expected to influence

the economic decistons of the users of the financial statements Materiality provides a basis for Jelermining the nature and

extent of our audit grocedures.

The table below sets out the materiality, performance materiality and threshold for reporting audit differences applied on cur audit
Basis Materiality (Em) Performance materiality (Em) Reporting threshold (§m)

Group (overal!) 1% of total assets £29.7 £22.3 £1.5
(December 2021:  (December 2021: £26.2) {(December 2021: £19.6) (December 2021: £1.3)

1% of total assets)

Group (spectfic) 3% of EBITDA EC.BO £0.67 £0.05

Related to revenue, expenses
and working capital balances

Parent 1% of total assets  £12.8 £9.6 £0.6
Company (Decermber 2021: (December 2021: £12.8) (December 2021: £9.6) (December 2021: £0.6)

1% of total assets)

When establisning our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude of uncorrected misstatements that we judged would be matenal
for the financial staternents as a whoie We determined that an asset-based measure would be the most appropriate basis for determiring
overall materality given that key users of the Group's financial statements are primarily focused on the valuation of the Group’s assets.
Based on this, we determined that it s appropriate to set the overall materality at 1% of total assets (2021 1% of total assets) We applied
overall materiality to all finarcial statement line iterms excludirg those related to revenue, expenses and working capitai balances

In the current year, we determined that for revenue, expenses and working capital balances a misstatement of less than overall
materality for the financial statements as a whale could Influence the economic decisions of users. For these accounts, we believe that
1t 15 Most appropriate to use a profit-based measure as profit 1s alsc a focus of users of the financial statements. This change was made
in order to more closery align with what we assess to be a primary focus of users of the financial statements, being a specific focus or
balances which impact upon EBITDA . Based on this, we determined that it 1s appropriate to set the specific materaity at 3% of EBITDA,

During the course of our audit, we reassessed imitial materiality which has not resulted in a change from our planmng materiality.

Performance materiality
The application of matenality at the indiwdual account or balance level It s set at an amount to reduce to an approprately fow
leve! the probability thatl the aggregate of uncorracted and undetected musstatemenits exceeds materiaiity

On the basis of our sk assessments, together with our assessment of the Group’s overali control environment, cur jJudgement
was that performance materiality was 75% (2021 75%) of our planning materiahity, namely £22.3m (2021 £19.6m) and £0.67m
respectively for overall and specific materiality levels We have set performance matenality at this percentage Gased on our
expectations of identifying material misstatements and the controi environment supporting the prevention of material misstatement

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified misstatermenits are considered as betng clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences in excess of £1.5m
(2021: £1.3m) and £0.05m respectively for overall and specific materiality levels, which s set at 5% of planning maternality,
as well as differences below that thresheld that, in cur view, warranted repcrting on qualitative grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected rmusstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light
of other relevant quaiitative considerations in forming our opinion.

Other information
The other information comprises the information included In the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other informatior centained within the annual report.

Cur opimicn on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Cur respensibility 1s to read the other information and, 1In doing so. consider whether the other information 1s materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to

pe materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether this gives nse to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a mater:al misstatement of the other information, we are required to repart that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent auditor’s report continued

to the members of Get Living PLC

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In cur opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

» the Information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

» the strateqic report and directors’ repcrt have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
in the hght of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment cbtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires Js to report

to you If, '\n our opinion

« gdequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adegquate for cur audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

+ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

» certamn disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our aucht

Responsibilities of Directors

As explamed more fully in the directors’ responsibihities statement set out on page 58, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the directors determine 1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial statemeants that are free from matenal misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group and parent company’s ability to
continue as a gomng concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting urless the directors either intend to hguidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to cbtain reasonabie assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from materal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance 15 a

high level of assurance, but 1s nat a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UKD will always detect a matenal
misstatement wher it exists Misstatemeants can arise from fraud or error anc are considered material if, individually or ir the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic deaisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statermnents.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularties. including fraud, are instances of non-complance with iaws and regulations. We design procedures in ine with

our responsibilities, cutlined above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting 2 material misstatement
due to fraud Is higher than the nsk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by,

for example. forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or threugh coliusion. The extent to which cur procedures are capable of
detecting irregularities, including fraud 15 detalled below However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of
fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the company and management.

* We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the group and determined that
the most significant are those which are directly relevant to specfic assertions in the financial statements are those that relate
to the reporting framework (UK adopted mternational accounting standards) and the relevant tax regulations in the Umited
Kingdom, including the UK REIT regulations and UK Buillding and Safety regulations.

* We understood how Get Living PLC I1s complying with those framewoerks through enguiry with Management, and by
identifying the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulaticns, We also identified those members of
Management who have the primary responsibility for ensuring compliance with laws and regulatiors, and for regorting any
known instances of nan-compliance to those charged with governance.

+ We assessed the susceptibinty of the group’s financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might occur
by reviewing the Company’s principal risks and uncertainties, enguiry with Mapagement and the Audit Comrmittee durnng the
planning and execution phases of cur audit.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements continued
Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud continued
« Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with such laws and reguiations,

Our procedures involved the following

- Inquiring of members of Management, and when appropriate, these charged with governance regarding their knowledge of
any non-compliance or potertial non-comphance with laws ard regulntinns thal could affect the financ:al statements

- Reading minutes of meetings of those ¢charged with governance.
- Obtaming and reading correspondence from legal and regulatory bodies including HMRC.
- Performing Journal entry testing.

A further description of aur respansibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Courcil's website at https//www frc org uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required
to state to them In an auditor's report and for no other purpese. To the fuilest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to aryone other than the company ard the companry’s members as a body. for our audit work, for this
report, or for the cpinions we have formed

644/ 4 '%‘.,nj LL“F

Graeme Downes (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behaif of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

28 April 2023
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group statement of comprehensive income

2022 2021
Notes £m £m
Ravenueg & 99.2 70.7
Cost of sales 7 (36.0) (24.%)
Gross profit 63.2 459
Acdministrative expenses (35.7) (28.3)
Valuation gain on investment property 12 136.0 6l.5
Operating profit 8 163.5 79.5
Finance costs 10 (36.7) (27.0)
Change in fair value of derrvatrves 21 25.6 5.8
Profit before taxation 152.4 58.3
Tax charge 11 (16.1) 0.2)
Profit for the year 136.3 58.1
Total comprehensive income for the year 136.3 58.1
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 136.3 58.1
Non-controlling interests —_ —
Total comprehensive income for the year 136.3 58.1
Basic and diluted earnings per share (£) 35 136.36 58.03
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Group statement of financial position

{As restated™)

2022 2021

Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Investment property 12 2,659.2 2,366.2
Property. plant and equipment 13 2.4 28
Trade and other receivables 15 5.8 10.5
Derivative financial instruments 21 31.7 2.3
Total non-current assets 2,699.1 2,381.8
Current assets
Trading property 14 €8.6 356
Inventory 0.1 0.1
Trade and other receivables 15 142.3 115.8
Derwvative financial instruments 21 0.5 -
Restricted cash 16 13.5 15.9*
Cash and cash eguivalents 16 66.5 85.1*
Total current assets 291.5 252.5
Total assets 2,590.6 2,634.3
Current liabilities
Trade and cther payabies 17 (93.2) (126.0)
income tax payable €0.5) (0.73
Loans and borrowings 20 (270.0) (97.8)
Derivative financial instruments 21 -_ (0.3
Provisions 18 (33.0) —
Total current liabilities (396.7) (224.8)
Non-current liabilities
Long-term other payabies 19 (7.9) (1223
Loans and borrowings 20 (1,072.3) (1,067.3>
Derivative financial instruments 21 - (0.6
Total non-current liabilities (1,080.2) (1,080.1)
Total liabilities (1,476.9) (1.304.9)
Net assets 1,513.7 1.329.4
Equity
Share capital 27 1.0 1.0
Distributabte reserve 27 7836 7836
Consolidation reserve 27 (10.8) (10.8)
Retained earnings 26 150.5 14.2
Other equity reserves 25 589.3 541.3
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,513.6 1.329.3
Non-contrelhing interests 28 0.1 0.1
Total equity 1,513.7 1,329.4

* Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash nave peen retrospectivaly restated as at 31 Decemoer 2021 followmng a clarification oy [FRIC on the presentation of maries
rhat nave legal or contractual restrictions on tneir use dut are ohysically accessible, see note 16 for further informator

The financial staterments on pages 68 to 106 were approved by the Board of Directors for 1ssue on 27 April 2023 and were signed
on its behalf by

Vames Boadle

James Boadle
Director
27 April 2023
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group statement of changes in equity

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Other MNon-
Share Distributable Consohdation Retained equity controling Tota
capital reserve reserve earnings resaerves Totat interesis equIty
Notes £€m £m £ £m Em £m £m £rm
At 1 January 2021 1.0 783.6 08 (13.M 7791 960.3 Ul 969.4
Tulal comprehensive
incerme for the year — — — 58.1 - 58.1 - 58.1
Other equity
contributions 25 — - — — 3019 3019 - 301.9
At 31 December 2021 1.0 783.6 (10.8) 14.2 541.3 1,329.3 .1 1,329.4
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - — 136.3 - 136.3 — 136.3
Cther eguity
contributicns 25 - — — - 48.0 48.0 — 48.0
At 31 December 2022 1.0 783.6 (10.8) 150.5 589.3 1,513.6 0.1 1,513.7
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Group cash flow statement

{As restated™)

2022 2021

Notes £m £rm
Operating activities
Prafit before raxation 152.4 58.3
Adjustments te reconcile profit before taxation to net gash flows:
- Lapreciation 13 1.7 1.1
— Valuation gain on investment property 12 {136.0) (61.9)
— Finance costs 10 36.7 27.0
— Change in fair value of dervatives 21 (25.6) {5.8)
— Profit or disposal of trading property (4.5) —
Working capital adjustments:
— Development expenditure on trading property (31.1} {5.1)
— Proceeds receved from sale of trading property 5.7 -
— Increase In other non-current receivables (2.1) (10.5>
— Increase in trade and other receivables (24.2) {21.6)
— Increase In trade and other payables 29.9 435
— Decrease in other long-term payabies (4.5) (24.9)
— InCrease in provisions 14.3 -
— Tax paid - (1.8
Net cash inflow from operating activities 12.7 4.3
Investing activities
Cash acquired from acquisition of group of assets 24 - 12.9
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 2.0 (1.3}
Development expenditure (201.2) (157.3)
Decrease/(increase) -n restricted cash 24 (2.2)"
Net cash outflow from investing activities (200.8) (147.9)°
Financing activities
Eauity funding from shareholders 25 48.0 159.6
Crawdown of loan faciities 22 160.4 516
Loan and hedge arrangement fees (5.4) —
interest paid on loan facitities 22 (28.2) (24.5)
Proceads on saie of derwvative financial instruments 22 1.0 —
Purchase of derivative financial instruments 22 (6.2) —
Other finarcing costs (0.1) (3.9)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 169.5 182.8
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {18.6) 29.2*
Cash and cash eguivaients at the start of the year 85.1 45.9"
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 66.5 85.1*

Casn ard cash equivalents ard restricted cash have veen retrospechively restated as at 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 following a clarficatior oy (IFRIC on the
presentation of rmomes that nave tegal or cortractual restrictions or ther Lse put are physically accessible, see note 18 for further infarmation
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes 1o the financial statementis

1. Corporate information

Get Living PLC (the "Company”) s a public imited company, iIncorporated, domiciled and regrstered under the laws of England
and Wales with the registered number 11532492, The Company's registered office 1s at 6th Floor Lansdowne House, Berkeley Sguare.
tonder Wil 6ER, United Kingdam.

The Company 1s a UK Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT) and its ordinary shares are listed on The International Stock Exchange (TISE)

The Company, together with its subsicharies (the “Graup™), 15 Involved 0 the iInvestment and management of UK bulld-to-rent
(BLR) proper Lies in London at East Village and Elephant Central, and Manchester at New Maker Yards, alongside the ongoing
management of BtR developments at East Village. Elephant and Castle Town Centre, and Lewisham at Newton Place

The Group's firanciat statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 April 2023
and the Group Statement of Financial Position was signed on the Board's benalf by James Boadle

2. Basis of preparation
The Group's firancial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK adepted internationa! accounting standards

The financial statements have been prepared for the year ended 31 December 2022, with the comparative peried being the year
ended 31 Decamber 2021 The financial statements are presented in mililons of Sterling (Em) and all values are rounded to the
nearest hundred thousand Sterling (£0.1m), except where otherwise indicated

The firancial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for investmert properties and derivative financial
instruments which are measured at fair value

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts

for the period to 30 June 2024 n order to assess the requirements of the Group and Company over that period (the "going
concern period™). Despite the buoyant rental market, driver in part by a market supply and demand mbalance, the going

concern assessment has been performed against the backdrop of a subdued giobal economic cutlook The Directors have
therefore considered a base case, a downside scenario, and performed reverse stress testing, in consideration of the potential
future risks of economic uncertainty and further recession related to macro-economic events; the crisis ir Ukraine and aftermath
of the giobal pandemic driving global supply constraints «eading to high inflation and a cost of living crisis, along with hugh interest
rates as a result of UK political instability and peiicy changes. The Directors have alse considered the payment subseguent to the
year erd of £18 9m to HMRC, and the receipt of £7.0m funding from shareholders in March 2023 in the going corcern assessment

In the base case scenaro.

The Directors have performed a detalled going concerr review based on the Board approved 2023 budget, which reflects

current trading trends at high occupancies for stabilised assets, a strong launch of lease-up assets and continued strong rental

growth, with revenue on stabiiised assets forecast to increase approximately in line with inflationary trends between 2022 and

2023 The impact of inflation on costs over the going concern period has been incorperated into this scenario, Key assumptions

in the base case scenaric includa

» The Group successfully refinances the debt facilities on its Portlands Place asset ahead of the maturity date of September 2023,
and 1ts New Maker Yards Phase ! and Phase 2 debt facilities ahead of their maturity date in March 2024 The Group has the
option to extend the New Maker Yards Phase 2 facility for one year to March 2025, subject to meeting certain conditions which
the Group are confident can be achieved

» The Group recerves further capital from ts investors to meet the costs of carrying out fire safety remedial works.

« The Group recewves further capital from its investors to meet non-contractual commitments specifically for the development of
other plots at East Village. If fuhding 1s not obtained, the Group has the option not o enter into these transactions.

In the downside scenario, the Board has considered a severe but plausible scenario which considers the following assumptions:

» Reduced occupancy across the Group's assets and downward pressures on pricing, modelled based on an extended
economic downturn This scehario assurmes a 10% decrease from the base case in PRS, student and retalf revenues This
scenario also models a 10% increase 1n void unit and 15% increase in bad debt costs.

» Various mitigation measures that would need to be exercised including the deferral of certain discretionary operating
costs, development and capital expenditure The Directors are confident these mitigating actions can be executed in the
necessary timeframe If required and are within the control of Management. The use of these mitigations would not have a
resultant impact on the forecast revenues

+ There are no breaches of loan facility covenants,

+ The Group receives no further funding from sharehoiders
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2. Basis of preparation continued

Going concern continued

Based on the downside scenano, assuming the debt facility refinancings in the going concern period are achieved and the
controllable mitigations are actioned, the Directors assass that the Group has sufficient cash reserves to operate as a going
concern. This judgement 15 based upon.

« Reference to the approved budget for the year ended December 2023, through which sharenolders have agreed to provide
funding for fire safety costs and non-contractual commitments for deveiopment plots,

* The Directors have considered the financial ability of the investors and assess they have sufficient cash resources to provide
the funding committed.

e |In the scenar:c where no further shareholder funding i1s received the Group has sufficient cash reserves to meet its habihties
after executing the mitigating actions which are within the contrel of Management,

The Group also performed a reverse stress test over the impact of a fall \n its property valuations during the goirg concern
period, with an unprecedented percentage fall not even seen durng the Cowvid-19 pandemic required to result In a lean to value
covenant breach. a decrease not historically seen by the Group. This 1s therefore considered to be a remote possibility during
the going concern pericd.

The Directors also evaluated potential events and corditions beyond the period ending 30 June 2024 that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, with no significant transactions or events of material
uncertainty identified

The Directors are confidert in the Group's ability to refinance debt facilities expiring auring the geing concern period. The Directors
have heid alscussions with a number of potert:al lenders on the refinancings and a sernes of competitively priced indicative guotes
have been recerved, subect to credit committee approval The Directors are confident that the market appetite for lendirg agairst
PRS assets remains strorg and that Get Living PLC 1s well placed to secure the reguired financing on both the Portlands Place and
the New Maker Yards Phase ! and Phase 2 debt faciities which fall due ir the going concern period However, if the Group 15 not
successful n refinancing the debt facilities, it will be reliant on shareholders providing funds to support the repayment of existing
debt faciities, in addition to the shareholder funding assumed n the base case scenario The Directors have therefore concluded
that there 1s a material uncertainty with respect to refinancing the Portlands Place, New Maker Yards Phase 1 and New Maker Yards
Phase 2 debt faciities which may cast significart doubt over the Group and Comrpany’s abilty to continue as a going concern

The Board believe that, subject to the materal uncertainty relat:ng to achieving the refinancing described above, the Group wili

be able to manage its business r'sks successfully, and the Group's forecasts and projections show that the Group wll be able to
operate within the level of its avalable hlauidity and covenant requiremenrts. Accordingly, the Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis In preparing the annual report and firanciai statements, however, the matters described above result in the existerce
of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt over the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,

The consoldated financial staternents do not Include the adjustments that would result if the Group and Company were unable to
continue as a going concern

Judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements N accordance witt UK adopted international accounting standards requires the use of crntical
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets ard habihities,
rcome and expenses Estimates ard assumptions concerming the future, and the accounting results of those estimates may
not equal the related actual results

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement ar complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements, are disclosed :n the relevart notes forming part of these financial statements as discussed below

Key judgements

Classification and transfers between investment and trading property

The Group considers the intention at the ocutset when each property 1s acguired i order to classify the property as either an
investment property or a trading property Where the intention 1s to trade the property within the ordinary course of business,
the proparty Is classified as trading property. Where the intention 1s to hold the property for its long-term rental yield or capital
appreciation, the property s classified as an investment property

Where there 1s a change In use of the property, a transfer between investment property and trading property takes place. A change
N use occurs when the property ceases to meet the definition of iInvestment property and there is evidence of the charge in use
The transfer will take place when there are observable actions toward effecting a change in use, for example the commencement
of development with a view to a sale.

Tre classification of the Group's properties 15 a stgnificant jJudgement which directly impacts the statutory net asset positior,
as trading properties are held at the lower of cost and net realisable vaiue, whilst investment properties are held at fair value,
with gains or losses taken through the Statement of Comprehensive Income Refer {6 note 14 for further information.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements continued

2. Basis of preparation continued

Key judgements continued

Taxation

The Group applies judgemeant in identifying uncertainties over iIncome tax treatments, particularly those relating to land and property
transactions. The Group determined that 1t 1s probable that its tax treatments Gncluding those for the subsidiaries) will be ultimately
accepted by the taxation authorities. A provision for a settlement agreed with HMRC after the Statement of Financial Position date
has been recogrised (note 18). The Directors have made a judgearnent based on therr assessment that no further provisicn I1s reguired

Other judgements

Sale of trading property

Proceeds received for the sale of trading property are recognised when the buyer assumes control of the property Should
exchange of title occur before the practical completion of the property, the Group assesses whether the disposal of trading
property and subseguent development by the Group constitutes a single contract or two separate contracts The profit or
loss on disposal 's calculated as the difference between the sales proceeas and the carrying amount of the asset at the date
of disposal, with this being taker through the Staternent of Comprehnensive Income. Refer to note 14 for further information.

Property acquisitions and business combinations
Where a property 1s acquired through the acquisition of corporate interests, management considers the substance of the assets
and activities of the acguired entity 1In determining whether the acguisition represents the acquisition of a busiress.

The Group accounts for an acguisition as a business combinat:on where an integrated set of activities 1s acquired in addition to the
property. More specifically, consideration s made of the extent to which significant processes are acquired and, in particular, the extent
of serv:ices provided by the subsidiary IFRS 3 sets out an optional concentration test designed to simplify the evaluation of whether
an acguired set of activities and assets i1s not a business An acquired set of activities and assets i1s not a busiress If substantially all
of the farr value of the gross assers acguired 1s concentrated 1n a single identifiable asset or group of similar iIdentifiatle assets

Where such acguisitions are not deemed to be an acquisition of a business, they are not treated as business combinations. Instead,
they are treated as asset acguisitons, with the cost to acquire the corporate entity being allocated between the identifiabie assets
and habilities of the entity based on their relative farr values on the acqu:s.tion date. Accordingly, no goodwill arises. Refer to note 24
for more informationr,

Key estimates
The key accounting estimates with a rnsk of a material change to the carry:ng value of assets and liabiities within the next year
in terms of lAS 1 'Presertatior of Financial Statements’ are detalled below

Fair value of investment property
The fair value of the Group's -nvestment property 15 a key source of estimation uncertainty; however, :n accordance with the
accounting policy of the Group, investment property 15 revalued at each reporting date by CBRE Limited as third party specialists.

Market value 's defined as the estimated amount for which a property should exchange on the date of valuation betweer wiling
buyer and seller in an arm's length transaction without compulsicn The Group considers the use of professioral external valuers, In
accordance with the latest RICS Vauation Standards ir the United Kingdom, sufficient to reduce but not eliminate the uncertainty

The Group continues to review fire safety reguirements in ail homes to ensure they are safe tc occupy, and fall in iing with
government guidance and professioral advice. Whilst nore of the Group's bulldings are currently considered unsafe, such
a classification at a later date would be expected to maternally affect the value of the Group's Investmeant properties

In response to the reguirements of fire safety regulation the Group continues to perform remediation works where 1t considers 1t
appropriate for ensuring all buildings rermain safe. Where the Group has considered it appropriate to carry cut remediation work
the cost to perform these remediation works is Included as a deduction from the farr value of the investment property as a cost
to complete. Despite the use of specialists and a dedicated internal team there 1s a degree of uncertainty Involved in estimating
the cost of these works to be performead due to their inherently complex nature The existing estimates have been based on
surveys performed by specialists and Management's best estimate.

Refer to note 12 for further irformation.

Derivatives

The Group has entered financng facilities where the interest expense s based on vaniable reference rates such as SCONIA. This
provides a key source of estimation uncertainty, However, the Group has entered into derivatives to mimimise the volatility of its
exposure to these interest rate movements, The derivatives are valued at the reporting date by an external consultant usinrg

a discounted cash flow model and market information (see notes 21 and 23).

Other sources of estimation uncertainty

The following areas of estimation urcertainty are not presented to comply with the reguirements cf paragraph 125 of 1AS ]
‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ as 1t 15 not expected there is a nsk of a matenal adjustment to the carrying amaount of
assets and llabihties within the next financial year They are prasented as additicnal disclosure of estimates used In the accounts.

Net realisable value of trading property
The Group's trading property Is stated at the iower of cost and net realisable value ("NRV"). NRV 15 calculated with reference to
the expacted selling price, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, discounted
to the net present vaiue.
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2. Basis of preparation continued

Other sources of estimation uncertainty continued

Provisions - fire safety remedial works

When recodnising a provisicn with respect to fire safety remediation works undertaken by the Group on behslf of non-
controlling mterests, the Group determines the best estimate for the value of the future economic cutflow. The Group takes
a prudent approach and considers all avallable iInformation in making such an assessment. Assessments are revisited at each
reporiing date. Refer to role 18 Tor further information

3. Accounting standards

a) New and amended standards and interpretations effective in the current financiai year

The Group considers new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations which are applicable for the first time In
the year ended 31 December 2022 These were found to be either not relevant or not have a matenal impact on the consohdated
financial statements of the Group.

b) New and amended standards and interpretations issued but not vet effective

The relevant new and amended standards and interpretations that are 1ssued, but not yet effective, up to the date of 1ssuance
of the Group’s financial statements are disclosed beiow. The Group Intends to adopt these new and amended standards and
interpretations, If applicable, when they become effective. The Directors do not expect the adoption of these standards and
interpretations to have a materal Impact on the consohldated or Company financial statements in the period of initial apphcation.

+ |[FRS 17 insurance Cortracts including Amendments to IFRS 77 (1 January 2023)

« Amerdments to IAS * Presentation of F.nancial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2. Disclosure of Accounting policies
(" January 2023)

Amendments to |1AS 8 Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition of Accounting Estimates
(" January 2023)

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Deferred Tax reiated to Assets and Liabiltties anising frem a Single Transaction
{1 January 2023

= Amendments o IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts. Intial Apphication of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - Comparative informat:on
(1 January 2023)

= Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases. Lease Liability m a Sale and Leaseback (! January 2024)

* Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabihities as Current or Non-current Date
and 1ts Deferral of Effective Date; ard Nor-current Liabilities with Covenants (1 January 2024)

4. Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Consolidation

Subsidiaries are consciidated from the date of acguisition being the date on which the Group obtams contrel and continue

to be consolidated until the date wher such control ceases. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using

consistent accounting policies. Ali intra-group balances and transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions and dividends are ehminated in full.

The st of subsidiaries of the Group I1s Included in note 37

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group Control exists when the Group ts exposed, or has rights to, variable returns

from its invalvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

Non-contreiling interests represent the portion of a subsidiary’'s equity which 1s not attributable to the Group. They are presented
separately in the consolidated financial statements (note 28)

b) Asset acquisitions and business combinations under common control

The Group accounts for an acguisition as a business combination where an integrated set of activities I1s acquired in addition to
the property. More specificaily. consideration 1s made of the extent to which significant processes are acquired and, in particular,
the extent of services provided by the subsidiary Business combmnations under commen contral are accountad for using the
pooling of interests method, any difference between the total book value of the net assets obtained and the consideration paid
is accounted for in the Group financial statements as a consolidation reserve.

Where such acquisitions are not deemed to be an acquisition of a business, they are not treated as business combinations.
Instead, they are treated as asset acquisitions and the cost to acguire the corporate ertity 15 allocated between the identifiable
assets and liabiliies of the entity based on their relative fair values on the acguisition date Accordingly, no goodwill arses.

Management reviewed the acquisition of New Maker Yards Phase 2 (note 24) during the prior year in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS 3, and concluded that it met the criteria of an asset acquisition rather than & business combination and
have accounted for it as such The acguisition was treated as a transaction under common control in accordance with IFRS
3 as the combinihg entities were ultimately controlied by the same parties both before and after the combination and the
common contrel 1s not transitory
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes (0 the financial statements continued

4. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

c) Investment property

Investment property 1s mtially recognised at cost, inclusive of transaction costs, and subsequently measured at fair value.
Gains or losses ansing from changes in fair value of investment property are included n the Statement of Comprehensive
Income In the peried in which they arise. No depreciation or amorfisation is provided in respect of investrment property.

The Group has entered into residential property leases anits investment property portfolio The Group has determined, based
on an evaluatior of the terms and conchitions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the

economic #ife of the residential property and the present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially
all of the fair value of the residential property, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties
and accounts for the contracts with tenants as operating ieases.

d) Trading property

Property acguired or being constructed for sale in the ordinary course of business, rather than to be held for rental or capital
appreciation, 1s held as trading property and 1s measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value ("NRV"). Principally, this
1s property that the Group develops and intends to sell before, or on compietion of, development. Cost incurred in bringing each
property to its present locat.on and condition includes:

« frachold and easehald nghts for land;
« amounts paid to contracters for development; and

* planning ard design costs, costs of site preparat.on, professional fees for .egal services, property transfer taxes, development
overheads and other related costs

NRV 1s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business, based on market prices at the reporting date, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, discounted to the net present value. The NRV of a trading
property 1s determined by a professional exterral valuer at each reporting date If the NRV of a trading property I1s lower than
Its carrying value, an impairment loss 1s recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. If, In subseguent pericds, the
NRY of a trading property that was previousiy impalired increases above its carrying value, or f the circumstarces that caused
the write-down cease to exist, such that all or part of the write-down 15 ne longer needed, 1t shall be reversed to that extent.

Where the Group develops affordable housing units as part of local council requirements of the Group's wider development
schermes with a view to sale in the ordinary course of business, these units are hesd as trading property as they are to be transferred
to third parties at or prior to completion. Where the expected cost of deveioping affordable units exceeds the amount recoverable,
the expected excess cost 15 assumed in the cost to complete of the prermium asset classified as investment property up te the point
at which practical completion on the premium asset 1s reached Following practical completion of the premium asset, expected
excess costs of any remaining affordabie housing units under construction are recognised as a separate labihty with the related
capital expenditure being alioccated to the premium asset.

Trading property 1s disposed of when control transfers o the buyer. Profit or loss on disposal is calculated using the carrying
value of the trading property as at the date of disposal

e) Revenue recoghnition

Rental :income from operating leases I1s recogrised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-ine basis over the term
of the lease, In line with IFRS 16, Lease agreements are all-nclusive, and contain income for other services. However, the term of these
services is the same as the lease term, so the recognition period 15 the same, and the value of the services 1s included within service
charge and cther related income, see note 6

Interest income 15 recognised using the effective interest rate method

Revenue from contracts with customers, as defined 1n IFRS 15, includes several of the Group's income streams:
s Service charge and other related income from PRS and retall tenants,

s« Other iIncome being service charge iIncome earnad from third parties for estate management services;

» Roverue from development contracts, and

« Revenue received for the sale of trading property.

All service charge and cther related iIncome 15 recorded as income over time in the period in which the services are rendered,
with payrment i line with monthly rental income receved Revenue 1s recognised over time because the tenants benefit from
the services as soon as they are rendered by the Group

Where a single payment is received from a tenant to cover both rent and other services, the service charge and other related
Incorne component 1s separated and reported as service charge and cther related iIncome It has been assessed that the Group 1s
acting as a principal 1IN service charge and other related :ncome arrangements, since the provision of these benefits 1s incorporated
into the provision of rental property as a package of services, accordingly service charge income and expenditure are presented on
a gross basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The actual service provided during each reperting pericd 1s determined
using cost incurred as the mnput method
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4. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

e) Revenue recognition continued

Ravenue ganerated from development contracts 1s recognised over time as the Group develops assets controlled by customers
Ravenue 15 determined using the input method by comparing costs incurred to date against total expected costs to be incurred
over the Iife of the contract

Proceeds receved for the sale of tfrading property are recogrised when the buyer assurnes control of the property. Should exchaiiye
of title occur before the practical completion of the property, the Group assessas whether the disposal of trading property and
subsequent development by the Group constitutes a single contract or two separate contracts. Total consideration received
wheare property 15 disposed of via a long leasehold 1s the sum of upfront premiums and the present value of any future payments.

f) Taxes
Current tax assets and lakilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid o the taxation authonties.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on any non-REIT taxable incocme for the period, using tax rates applicable at the
Statement of Financial Position date. any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years, and any charges arising
from the requrrements to meet the REIT regime rules

Deferred tax 15 calculated using the rate substantively enacted at the Statement of Financial Position date Deferred tax
assets are not recognised where there i1s a high degree of uncertainty as te their future utilisation

g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and eguipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciatiorn Deprec:ation of res.dential fixtures
and fittings, retaill assets, and office fixtures and eguipment 1s charged at 25% per annum on a straight-l.ne basis. Plant and
machirery 1s depreciated between 0% and 25% on cost per annum, dependent on the asset's useful ife. The carrying values
of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment If events or changes in circumstances indicate the carry'ng value may be
greater than its value in use,

h) Cash

Cash and cash eguivalents 'n the Statement of Financial Position comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits
with an or:ginal maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes 1in value Cash and cash
eguivalents Inciudes amounts accessible by the Group, even where there are legal or contractuai restrictions on their use

Restricted cash is cash held by the Group in des.gnated accounts, to which the Group has no physical access, which are held for
loan comphiance requirements and are only accessible by the relevant lender

Cash and cash eguiwalents and restricted cash have been retrospectively restated as at 1 January 2021 ard 31 December 2021
following a clarnfication by IFRIC on the presentation of momes that have legal or contractual restrictions on their use but are
neverthelass physically accessibie, see note 16 for further informatior

i) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Cbigations for loans and borrewings are recognised when the Group becomes party to the related contracts and are measured
initially at the fair value of consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs,

After imtial recogmtion, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. The discount between the redeemable amount and the net proceeds 1s accreted over the term of the loan
and charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

i) Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised on the Statement of Financial Position at fawr value when the Group has become party to
the contractual provisions of the instrurments They are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method If the time value of money may have a significant impact on their value.

The Group must make judgerents on the recoverability of its trade and other receivables &t the reporting date and has a policy of
providing for iImpairment based on the expected credit loss model, using a provisions matrix. The Group assesses on a forward-looking
basis the expected credit losses associated with its trade receivables. The Group apphes a simplified approach in calculating expected
credit losses and recogrises a provision for impairment for the lifetime expected credit losses on imtial recognition of the receivable In
determining the expected credit losses the Group takes into account any recent payment behaviours and future expectations of likely
default events (1.e. not making a payment on the due date) based on individual customer circumstances, actual or expected insolvency
filings or Company voluntary arrangaments and market expectations and trends in the wider macro-economic environment .n
which customers operate. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the estimated
future cash flows. The movement in the provision is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive income

Trade receivables baiarces are written off when the prebability of recovery s assessed as being remote.

k) Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses interest rate dervative financial instruments to hedge I1ts exposure to movements In interest rates. All classes of
derivatives are imtally recognised at fair value, which 1s considered to be equal to cost on initial acquisition, and subsequently
rermeasured to their prevalling far value at each Statement of Financial Position date Changes in the fair value of derivative
financial instruments are recognised In the Statement of Comprehensive Income as they arise

Annual Report 2022
77



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes 1o the financial statements continued

4. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

k) Derivative financial instruments continued

Dernvatives are derecognised either when they are sold to a third party or the terrmination date s reached. On a saie to a third
party the price paia 1s considered to be the fair value at that date with any difference between the carrying value and the price
paid being taken as a change 1n the fair value of the dervative On reaching terrmination ail derivatives have a ril fair value and
so no further adjustmert 1s reguired tor deraéogniuon

The Group does not apply hedge accounting

1) Borrowing costs

The Group recognises borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or development of a

gualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset Other barrowing costs are recognised as an expense :n the Consolidated
ratement of Comprehensive Income

m) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, If it 1s probable
that an qutflow of resources embodying ecoromic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligatron wWhen the Group expects some or all of a provision to be resmbursed, for example, under an INsurance
contract, the reimbursement 's recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement ‘s virtually certain The expense
reiating 1o a provision 1s presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income ret of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time vaiue
of money 1s materal, provisiors are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the nisks specific to the
hability When discounting is used, the increase n the provision due to the passage of time I1s recognised as a finance cost, except on
varlable consideration on property acquisitions.

n) Segmental information

IFRS B requires operating segments to be reported in a manner consistent with irternal financial reporting. The Board 1s responsible
for reviewing the Group's \nternal reporting 0 order to assess performance and allocate rasources; and 1s the chief operating decisicn
maker The Board ultimatery reviews and monitors the performance of the Group by reighbourhood, and across the entire portfolio
on a basis consistent with the Group financial staterments. Properties in East Village, Elephant Central, New Maker Yards Phase 1, New
Maker Yards Phase 2, Elephant and Castle Towr Centre, and Newtcon Place are held to generate rental Income ard capital returns

and are aggregated into one operating segment as all propert.es are, or are being developed, to be predominantly residential assets,
some of which include retal components. The offering across all sites s similar, the properties share similar economic charactenstics,
there is a similar type of customer across all neighbourhocds and the regulatory environment across all neighbourhoods 1s consistent
Consequently. the Board concluded there to be oniy one operating segmenrt

All revenue from continuing operations is attributable to, and all non-current assets are ‘ocated n, the country of domiciie of the
Group, the United Kirgdom. There s no indwidual tenant or customer of the Group that contributes greater than 10% of total revenue.

o) Leases

Group as a lessor

Leases In which the Group aces not transfer substantialty all the risks ana rewards incidertal to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases This Includes residential and retall rentai contracts, with rental iIncome being accounted for on a straight-ine
basis over the lease term.

p) Other equity reserves
Sharehoelder funding receved by the Group 15 repayabie only upon hquidation of Get Living PLC and 1s therefore classified as equity

q) Key Management remuneration

The Group has a cash settled long-term incentive scheme for certain Executives The awards have a three year grant pericd and are
linked to the long-term performance of the business. At the end of each fimancial year, the estimated total payout under the scheme
15 calculated and 1s charged to the income statement as an employes expense over the grant period. This s subseguertly adjusted
at each financial year end based on the performance of the business.

The Group has a co-investment scheme for certain Executives and this 1s accounted for as a cash settled share-based payment
scheme The grant fair value of the share-based payment awards 1s recogrised as an employee expense at the date of grant. Any
cash proceeds received are credited to share capital and share premium.

5. Fair value hierarchy
IFRS 13 sets out a three-tier hierarchy for financial assets and habilities valued at fair value. These are as follows:

= |evei 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices {(unadjusted) in active markets for iIdentical assets
or habilities,

= |evel 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than guoted prices included within level T that are
obsearvable for the asset or lhability either directly { 2. as prices) or indirectly (ie derived from prices); ard

» level 3 fair value meaasurements are those derved from valuation technigues that include inputs for the asset or hability
that are not based on observable market data (Unobservable inputs).
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5. Fair value hierarchy continued

Derivatives

The fair value of the swaps and caps entered into in relation to loan balances 1s derived from the present value of future cash
flows discounted at rates cbtained by means of the current yvield curve appropriate for those instruments. As all significant
Inputs required to value the swaps and caps are observable, they all fal! within level 2. Information in respect of the fair value of
financial instruments s iIncluded In notes 21 and 23,

Investment property

The fair value of investment property falls within level 3. The investmert property valuation 1s a third party valuation, which s
based on a discaunted cash flow model In accordance with RiCS Valuation Standards, Sixth Edition in the United Kingdom, and
includes a number of uncbservabie inputs and other valuation assumptions Further detalls of these assumptiors and significant
unobservable iInputs are included in note 12.

Loans and borrowings

The fair value of loans and borrowngs falls within level 3 Loans are recognised initially at farr value less attributable transaction
costs The fair values of any floating rate financial nabilities aperoximate their carrying values. The fair values of the fixed rate loans
are assessed based on a discounted cashflow model using the prevailing market rate of ‘nterest, determined with reference to recent
transactions and negetiations cccurring within the Group for loans with sirmifar terms. Information in respect of the farr value of loans
and borrowings 1s iIncluded ir notes 20 and 23,

6. Revenue
2022 2022
£m £m
PRS and student rental income 63.5 44.7
Retail rental income 2.9 2.9
Service charge and other related income 17.0 16.2
Total rental income 83.4 63.8
Revenue from development contracts (note 14) 39 —
Trading property dispasal (note 14) 5.7 ~
Other iIncome 6.2 6.9
Revenue 99.2 70.7

PRS and student rental incorme primarily arises from private tenart leases under Assured Shorthold Terancy ("AS™") agreements.
These lease agreements range from one to three years in tenure.

PRS and student temants make a single payment under ASTs, which covers rent and other services The compoenent relating to the
service charge and other services i1s separated ard reported as service charge and other related ircome. These combined make up
the total rental Income the Group earns from lease arrangements,

Revenue reiating to non-iease Income 1s recogrised in the period n which the performance obligations are satisficd. There was i
revenue recoanised from performance obligations settled in previous periods (2027 £rel)

ASTs have a minimum six-month break clause on the tenant side Student AST agreements are for the duration of the academic

year The Group has also 1ssued leases for retaill units, having terms up to 24 years with agreed break clauses, which are located
within the investment properties. Break clauses are assumed to be exercised at the earliest opportunity for the calculation of

minimur lease receivabie disclosed in the below table,

There are no arrangements in relation to contingent rent in the year Rental contracts include a clause to allow the Group to seek
compensation f premises are not left in good conditior. There are no recevables or contingent assets recognised at 31 December 2022
or at 31 December 2021 1n relatior to this clause.

Minimum lease recevable 1s analysed as follows:

2022 2022

£m £m

Within one year 31.1 21.4
Between one and two years 1.9 1.6
Batween two and three years 1.8 1.6
Between three and four years 1.7 1.5
Between four and five years 1.6 1.4
After more than five years 15.7 14.6
538 42,1
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7. Cost of sales

2022 2021
£m £m
Service charge expense 15.5 15.1
Void costs 1.8 —
Other property costs 9.2 ./
Direct property costs 26.5 24.8
Development costs (note 14) 8.3 —
Cost of trading property disposais (note 14) 1.2 —
Cost of sales 36.0 24.8
Other property costs includes management fees of £5.7m (2021: £6 4m)
8. Operating profit/(loss)
Operating profit 1s stated after charging:
2022 2021
£m £m
Salares and wages 12.0 9.0
Social security costs 1.3 1.1
Employer's pension contribution 0.3 0.3
Depreciation 1.7 1.1

The average number of employees 10 the Group during the year was 157 (2021:140).

Directors’ remuneration

The Directors of the Parent Company are also directors of other entities controlled by the shareholders (see note 29) that are
not part of this Group For the current year, the Directors received no remuneration, reimbursements, or pension contributions
from the Parent Company or any of its subsidiaries for thair services as Directors of the Parent Company (2021 £nil).

Key management personnel
The Group corsiders all inchividuals that have authonty and resporsibility for planning, directing, and controlling the Group's acthvities,
be it direct o indirect, to be key management personnel Key managerent personnel compensation i1s analysed as follows.

2022 2021

£m £m

Salaries and wages 1.6 1.1
Other long term incentives 0.5 0.2
Share based payments 0.1 0.1
Termination payrments - 0.1
Total compensation 2.2 1.5

The Company has a long-term incentive scheme for certain Executives that :s cash settled and not linked to shares. The awards have
a three year grant per:od and are inked to the long term performance of the business The Company has a co-irvastment scheme for
cartain Executives and this has been accounted for as a cash settled share based payment scheme, refer to note 30 for further detarls.

Employers pension contributions during the year were less than £0.1m.

9. Auditor remuneration

2022 202
Services provided by the Group's auditor: £'000 £000
Audit fees:
Audit of Parent Company and corsolidated financial statements 556 214
Audit of subsidiary undertakings 236 468
Non-audit services:
Other assurance services 20 20
Tax advisory services 20 63
Tax complance services 472 327
1,304 1.092

In the current year the auditor reallocated therr split of fees between the parent entity and its subsidiaries.
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10. Finance costs

2022 2021

£m £rm

Interest on loans and borrowirgs 43.2 31.9
Less: capitalised borrowing costs (note 123 (10.7) (7.2>
325 24.7

Amortised arrangement fees 1.7 1.8
Other finance costs 25 0.5
36.7 27.0

The capitalised borrowing costs relate to borrowings used to fund property development. Borrowing costs are capitalised at the

rate specific to the berrowings and are capitalised up to the pomnt of practical completion

11. Taxation

2022 2021
£m £r

Current tax charge 16.1 0.2
Deferred tax credit - —
Tax charge for the year 16.1 0.2
Factors affecting the tax charge for the year
Profit before taxation 152.4 58.3
Profit before taxation multiphed by main rate of UK corporation tax of 19% (2021: 19%) 29.0 111
Effect of:
REIT exempt net property rental {(gains) (1.1} (1.0%
Farr value adjustments 0.1 (1.1)
Capitalised borrowing costs €2.0) (1.4)
Non-aliowable expenses 0.6 0.8
Valuation gan on investment property {25.8) (11.83
Losses not recognised (0.8) 3.3
interest cover ratic charge 0.5 0.8
Adjustments in respect of prior periods - over-provision (0.8) (0.5)
Adjustments in respect of prior pericds - tax settlement (see note 18) 16.4 -
Current tax charge in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 16.1 0.2

The Company I1s a UK Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT). As a result, the Group does not pay United Kingdom corporation tax
on the profits and gains from its qual fying rental business in the United Kingdom provided it meets certain conditions Non-

gualifying profits and gains of the Group continue to be subject to corporation tax as normal.

The Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets at 31 December 2022 in respect of fixed asset temporary differences and tax
losses carried forward of £32 7m (20271 £23.9m). These deferred tax assets have not bean recognised due to the uncertainty of
future taxable profits from the non-REIT businass, Deferred tax 1s calculated at the rate substantively enpacted at the Statement

of Financial Position date of 25% (202 25%).

Please refer to the Taxation section within Key Judgements in note 2 for further information on tax. For definitions see Glossary.

12. Investment property

2022 2021

£m £m

Opening balance 2,366.2 2,001.8
Acquisitions - New Maker Yards Phase 2 (note 24) - 1198
Capital expenditure 146.3 1755
Capitaiised borrowing costs 10.7 7.2
Valuation gain on invastment property 136.0 61.9
Closing balance 2,659.2 2,366.2

The Group acguired the New Maker Yards Phase 2 site in the prior year {note 24), acquinng investment property with a value

at that date of £119.8m
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Notes 10 the financial statements continued

12. Investment property continued

Capital expenditure of £146 3m (2021: £175.5m) ncludes £6.0m {2021 £60.0m) with respect to the East Village site, £82.2m
(2021 £83 Om) attributable to the development of Newton Place, and £56.4m (2021; £22 5m) attributable to the development
of Elephant and Castle Town Centre. with the remaimng capital expenditure reiating to cperational properties.

The fair values of the investment property held by the Group were undertaken In accordance with the latest RICS vaiuation
standards in the United Kingdom by CBRE Limited, who are quahfied for the purpose of the valuation in accordanee with
the RICS valualion standard | he ree arrangement with CBRE for the valuation of the Group's properties 1s fixed, subject

to an adjustment for acauisitions and dispasals,

This vaiuation comprises residential units of £21874m (2021 £2,0211m), properties In the course of development of £435.7m
(2021 £307.5m) and retail units of £361ImM (20271 £376m)

The properties in the portfolio were valued on erither an iIncome capitalisation or a residual value appraisal approach

The key uncbservable :nputs into the residential and commercial valuation are as follows:

2022 2021

Estimated rental Est mated rental
values (£ per 2022 values (£ per 2021
Assetl square foot) Discount rate (%) square foot) D scountrate (%)
Clympic Bomes, East v llage - residential 37.91 3.50 31.80 3.00
Olympic Homes, East Village - commercial 20.00-25.00 9.00-9.25 15.00-25.00 2.00-8.25
Victory Plaza, East Village - residential 38.66 3.50 32.80 3.10
Victory Plaza, East Village - commercial 11.10-38.01 5.75-8.00 10.50-38.00 6.50-8.25
Portlands Place, East Village - residential 43.37 3.50 33.85 3.2
Portlands Place, East Village - commercial 16.00-20.00 8.00 20.00 7.00
Elephant Central - residential 49.67 3.50 39.70 3.15
Elephant Central - commercial 15.00-45.00 5.50-9.00 15.00-45.00 5.00-8.00
MNew Makar Yaras Phase 1 - residential 23.77 4.25 21.59 4.15
MNew Maker Yards Phase 1 - commercial 13.50-47.22 6.50-8.50 13.50-15.00 5.75-9.00
New Maker Yards Phase 2 - residential 24.39 4.30 21.73 4.15

The key uncbservable nputs nto the development valuation are average construction costs of £255 per sg ft (2021 ranging from
£245 to £295).

Sensitivity to key unobservable inputs
The effect of increasing and decreasing both the discount rate and the estimated rental value or the valuation of ‘nvestment
properties s shown in the following table,

2022 2021
Change in unobservabie 'nput £m £rr
An increase in the discount rate of 50 basis points (282.2) (294.7}
A decrease In the discount rate of 50 basis points 374.0 406.6
An increase Iin the est:mated rental value of 10% 216.8 210.9
A decrease in the estimated rental value of 10% (217.1) (211.13

Where estimates have been used, an Increase/decrease In the value of fire safety remediation work costs deducted from
the fair value of investrment property as a cost to complete of 10% would cause a corresponding decrease/increase of £17Tm
(202% €13m) to the vaiuation of Investment properties.

13. Property, plant and equipment

Residental fSxtures Office fixtures Plant and

and fittings Retall assets  and equipment machinery Total
£m £m £m Em £m

Cost
At 1 January 2021 2.6 3.0 1.6 0.8 8.0
Additions 0.1 - 1.8 — 2.0
At 31 December 2021 2.7 3.0 3.5 0.8 10.0
Additions 0.6 = 0.4 0.3 13
At 31 December 2022 3.3 3.0 3.9 11 11.3
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13. Property, plant and equipment continued

Residential fixtures Office Aixtures P'ant and
and fits ngs Retal assets  and egu pment machinary Toral
£rr £m £m Em £m
Depreciation
At 1 January 2021 1.7 2.8 10 n& £.1
Depreciation charge for tho yoar 0.4 0.1 0.6 — 1.1
At 31 December 2021 2.1 2.9 16 0.6 7.2
Depreciation charge for the year 0.4 0.1 1.0 0.2 1.7
At 31 December 2022 2.5 3.0 2.6 0.8 8.9
Net book value
Balance at 31 December 2022 0.8 - 1.3 0.3 2.4
Balance at 31 December 2021 0.6 0.1 1.9 0.2 2.8
14. Trading property
2022 2022
£rm £m
Opening balance 35.8 30.5
Capital expenditure 34.2 5.1
Disposal during the year (1.2) —
68.6 35.6

Closing balance

"he Group's trading property balance :ncludes: €67 Om (2027 £35 6m) being a new acadermic bullding that :s to be sold to the
University of the Arts Londor as part of the Elephant and Castle Town Centre Development; £76m (2021 £nil) being a station
box that 1s to be soid to Longdon Underground Limrted ornce completed, Enil (2021 £mil) of affordable housing at East Village
that was disposed of during the year

During the year the Group disposed of affordable housing trading property at East Village to a thra party Consideration received
for the disposal was £5.7m and the trading property had a vawe at the date of disposal of £1.2m, generatirg a profit or disposai
of £4 5m. The profit on disposal has been recharged to the premium assets for which the affordable housing has been created as
part of the wider development and for which excess costs have previously been recharged The Group continued to develop the
property for the third party after the sale, separately recogrising revenue of £3.9m ard cost of sales of £8 3m (see notes & and 7)

15. Trade and other receivables

2022 2021
£m Emr
Non-current receivables
Other receivables 5.8 10.5
5.8 105
Current receivables
Trade receivables 5.1 2.7
Expected credit loss provision {1.5) (1.3
3.6 1.4
Otber recervables 123.1 89.2
Prepayments 12.7 21.5
Accrued income 0.7 —
Othar taxes - VAT 2.2 3.7
142.3 115.8

Non-current other receivables

Non-current other receivables includes £3.2m as an advanced payment to the developer for the Elephant and Castle Town Centre
development (2021 £10.0m) that 15 expectad to be settled in 2024. The balance also includes £1.6m with respect to costs pad n
advance for land to be owned n a future period (2027 £nil).
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15. Trade and other receivables continued
Trade receivables
Trade and other receivabies are non-interest bearing

Trade receivables are lease recewvables due from tenants The expected credit loss provision was calculated using the
provisions matrix in ine with the expected credit loss model The assessed credtt risk has not significantly changed
between years.

Included within trade receivables 1s £0.9m (2021 £0.6m) of contract assets In relation 1o service charge income and £0.5m
(2021 £ril) of contract assets i relation to revenue from development contracts. All contract asset amounts are realisable
within one year

Current other receivables
Current other recevables inciudes £11.5m (2021, Non-current other receivabie of £10.0m) as an advanced payment

to the developer for the Elephant and Castle Town Certre development that will be repaid in 2023

Current other receivables due within one year includes a baiance of £€852m being shareholder equity that has not been
settled in cash, whereby the sharehclders have committed eguity to guarantee the performance of the New Maker Yards
Phase 2 group companies of payment obligat:ons under both a bullding agreement and a facility agreement to the sum
of this amount. Following practical completion of New Maker Yards Phase 2, the third party guarantees have signif.cantly
reduced and will be fuliy unwound during the 2023 year (note 32).

There s a balance of £0 9m (2021 £0.9m) within other recevables relating to retention monies held in escrow In respect
of New Maker Yards, for which thare is a corresponding payable in trade and other payables (note 173

There 15 a balance of £14 3m (2021 £nil) included within other receivables being amounts expected to be recovered from non-
controlling interests to offset the fire safety provision recognised {see note 18).

Racoverability of other receivables Fas been assessed using the expected credit loss model The impairment of the other receivables 1s
irrmatenal. The assessea credit nsk has rot significantly changed between years.

Prepayments
Prepayments includes £6 9m of prepaid loan arrangement fees (2021 £121m).

The prior year prepayments batance includes £4 8m in respect of prepald development fees for the Elephant and Castle Town
Centre Development, which form part of investment property capital expenditure \n the current year

Credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reportirg date 1s the carrying value of trade receivables plus other receivabies

16. Cash
(As restated®)
2022 2021
£m £m
Cash and cash equivalents
Unrestricted cash at bark 53.4 67.2
Cash restricted under legal or cantractual terms:
— Sinking fund 8.9 10.9
— Loan reguirements 4.0 4.0
— Tenant deposits 0.2 3.0
66.5 85.1
Restricted cash
Restricted cash - loan requirements 13.5 15.9
13.5 15.9

Cash and cash equivalents represents amounts physically accessible by the Group as at the Statement of Financial Position date.
Within cash and cash equivalents are £131m (2021 £17.9m) of amounts that the Group considers to be restricted under legal or
contractual terms.

The sinking fund consists of amounts held by estate management companies within the Group with recaipts into the fung
coming from the Group and Triathlon Homes LLP The furd s intended for future major reparr works that will be required on
the properties In East Village (see note 17)

Loan reguirements consist of funds held In designated bank accounts to ensure the Group meets specific lcan requirements. Where
the Group 1s able to physically access monies they are included within cash and cash equivalents, where the Group Is unabile to
physically access monies they are included within restricted cash.
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16. Cash continued
Tenant deposits consist of amounts paid by tenants of the properties where security deposits are required under the respective
tenancy agreement.
* Restaterment
Cash and cask equivalents and restricted casn nave been retrospectively restated as at 31 Decarnper 2621 following a clarificatior by IFRIC on the presentation of monies

that have legal or contractual restrictions or their use but are pnysically accessible. As a result of this the sirwing furd, a portion of cash hald tor loan remurements
and tenant deoosits haye neer reclassified fram soctricted cask to wus v und vasl. syuivdients. : #é total value of the reclassification as at 31 December 202115 £17.9m

e total value of the reclassification in the Group Statement of Financial Position as at 31 Decermoer 202115 £17.9m wnich .ncreased the cask ard cash equivalent
fram £6/2m to £851m and decreased the restricted casr frorm £33 8m to £15 $m. Within the Group ¢ash flow staterment for the year ended 31 Decemoer 2021, tnis
reclassification also resglted ir £11m tncrease s net casn gutflow from investing achiwities from £746.8m to £147.9r and a decrease 1n the overall ret movement ir casn
and cash equivalent fram £40.3m to £39.2m. As at 1 .anuary 202), tne total vatue of the reclassification 1s £19 Om wnicn increased the casn and cash eguivalent from
£26 9rr to £45.9m and decreased the restrcted cash from £32.7m to £13.7rm

This prior year restatement did not have an 'mpact on the reported net assets, net current assets or net profit.

17. Trade and other payables

2022 2021

£m Em

Trade payabias 2.7 4,0
Deferred income 29.1 14.1
Accruals 36.9 41.5
Other payables 15.7 32.0
Other payalbies - DCMS settlement - 28.7
Other payabiles - Sink'ng fund 3.3 —
Other payables - Deveiopment retentions 5.5 5.7
93.2 126.0

Trace payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled :n accordance with the Group's terms of business

Deferred income

Deferred income includes £3.4m (2021 £ml) in relation to amounts recerved from London Underground Lirited to fund the
development of work at the Elephant and Castle Town Centre development. Deferred income ircludes £4 8m (2021 £3 3m)
of cortract abilities in relation to service charge income All contract hakility amounts are o be settled within one year.
The remaining deferred iIncome balance of £20 9m relates to rental income

Accruals

Within the accruals balance of £36 9m (2021 £415m) 15 a development cost accrual of £119m (2021 £37.4m) i relatior to the Group's
ongoing developments of new property and £0.4m (2021 £ni) of contract habilities in relation to costs from development contracts.
The prior year accruals balance included £9 8m in relation to the nception of third party debt financing for Elephart and Castle

Town Centre

Other payables

Withir the other payables balance of £15 7m (2021 £32.0m) 1s £nil for amounts due to the developer for the Elephant ard
Castle Town Centre development (2021: £10.0m). £6 Orm in respect of accrued bank loan nterest (202) £6.0m). and £nil relating
to excess development costs (2021 £3.0m).

Other payables - DCMS settlement

A settiement deed was signed In January 2020 between the Group and the Secretary of State for Digital, Culture, Media and
Sport {DCMS, previously the Clympic Deiivery Authority) In relation to the 201 sale and purchase agreement for SVDP Limited.
The deed states that the Group must pay a total agreed sum of £29.0m, with £0.3m payable or the date of the deed and the
remainder payable in March 2022 The DCMS settlement payable at 31 December 2021 reprasents the £28.7m amount payable
on 31 March 2022, discounted at the government risk-free pre-tax rate, which 15 based or the three-year GBP government bond
rate, and adjusted for risks specific to the liability. The balance was fully settled in March 2022,

Other payables - Sinking fund

The sinking fund 1s held by the subsidiary, East Village Management Limited, to provide funds to meet the costs of future major
repairs, replacements and scheduled works The balance represents the contribution made to the sinking fund by Triathlon
Homes LLP, which holds a non-controlling interest in East Village Management Lirmited. Management have reviewed the likely
tming of future expenditure and consider it approprate to ¢lassify the sinking fund as a current hability as at 31 December 2022
(2021 Nen-current iability, refer to note 19) The funds are held ir a separate bank account as disclosed e note 16
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Notes 1o the financial statements continued

17. Trade and other payables continued

Other payables - Development retentions

The development retention liabilities are due to the contractor of the development property in relation to works done during
the construction period, and are llabie to be settled as 50% upon practical completion and 50% two years follow'ng practical
compietion (see note 19). Developrment retentions as at the year end date are summarised as follows.

As at 31 December 2022

Within one year More than one Total due
Assat {Em) year (Em) (Em) Tranche 1 due Tranche 2 due
Portiands Place - 2.7 2.7 Settled February 2024
Plot N0, East Village 0.3 0.3 0.6 February 2023 February 2025
New Maker Yards Phase 1 0.9 - 0.8 Settled Due
New Maker Yards Phase 2 1.3 - 1.3 Settled November 2023
Newton Place 2.7 2.7 54 October 2023 October 2025
Elephant and Castle Town Centre 0.3 2.2 2.5 Several® Several*
Total 5.5 7.9 13.4

The Elepnant and Castle Town Centre retention llapility Pas multiple suo trarches with settlement dates dependert on sectional practical comoletion
As at 31 December 2021

With n one year  Maore than one

Asset {Err) year (£m) Tota due (frm) Tranche 1 due Tranche 2 due
Portiands Place 2.8 2.7 5.5 February 2022 February 2024
Plot NO&, East Village - — — ~ebruary 2023 February 2025
Elephant Certral 2.0 — 2.0 Settled March 2022
New Maker Yards Phase 1 0.9 — 0.9 Settied Due
New Maker Yards Phase 2 - 1.3 1.3 Settied Novernber 2023
Newton Place — 3.2 3.2 October 2023 October 2025
Elephant and Castle Town Centre — 0.5 0.5 Saeveral” Several”
Total 5.7 7.7 13.4

The Eleshant and Castle Town Centre “atentior hability mas multiple sup trancnes witn settlament dates deperdent o sectional oractical cormpletior

18. Provisions

2022 2021

£m £rm

Provisions - Fire safety remediation works 14.3 —
Provisions - Tax enquiry settlernent 18.7 —
33.0 —

The fire safety remediation works provision of £14 3m (2021 £nil) represents work to be undertaken by East Village Management
Limited (“EVML") on behalf of non-controlling interests for the purposes of fire safety remediation works at East Village
neighbeurhood properties net ownad by the Group. A receivable of egusl value has been recognised, being amounts expected te
be recovered from non-controling interests to offset the fire safety provision recognised (see note 15). The value of the provision
has been deterrmined with reference to contracts entered into subseguent to the year end

There were no amounts spent during the year in relation to the provision (2021 £mil) Cash outflows In reiation to the provisior are
expected to cccur primartly in the 2023 year.

Subsequent to the year end the Group made a payment of F18.9 millon to HMRC as part of an agreement signed n March 2023 to settle
an ongoing tax enguiry. The settlement of this balance confirms that the Group had a present obligation at the end of the reporting penod
and therefore the Group has recogrised a provision for £18.7m, which includes the tax settlement of £16 4m and interest accrued or this
balance to 31 December 2022 of £23m The £18.9 milion patd included £0.2rn of interest accrued in the pericd after 31 December 2022,

19. Long-term other payables

2022 2021

£m £m

Other payables - Development retent:ons (see note 17) 7.9 7.7
Sinking fund (see note 17) - 4.5
7.9 12.2
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20. Loans and borrowings

2022 2022
£m £rm
Current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 270.0 98.0
Deferred Igan arrangement faes - (0.2)
270.0 37.8
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 1,082.9 1,079.4
Deferred loam arrangament fees (10.6) (12.1)
1,072.3 1.067.3

Drawn down

Orawn down

Facility hmit at 2022 at 2021

Secared asset Date entered nto Maturity (Erm) (Em) (€M)
Elephant Central August 2018 July 2034 190.0 180.0 130.0
East Village September 2019 September 2029 550.0 550.0 550.0
East Village November 2019 August 2034 187.0 187.0 187.0
East Village March 2015 September 2023 99.9 98.6 90.1
East Village January 2016 September 2023 67.5 64.4 62.3
New Maker Yards Phase 1 March 2019 March 2023 326 32.6 32.6
New Maker Yards Phase 2 March 2019 March 2023 68.2 64.8 £65.4
Newton Place February 2021 Aprl 2026 160.0 76.3 —
Elephant and Castie Town Centre December 2021 Aprl 2027 365.0 79.6 —
N/A January 2022 Cn dermand 9.6 9.5 —
1,729.8 1,352.9 1,177.4

T Durng tha year a loar of £9.6m was received frorm T34 Residentiar Limited, ar entity under common cortrol. The loar s repayable or demanrd and 1s not secured against
any of the Group's assets, The 1oan represents the advarcemenrt of a government grant that was awarded to T3 Residential Limited to nelp fund the developmant of
affordable nousing at the Elephant and Castie Town Centre Davelooment

During the year the Group exterded the matunty date of both the New Maker Yards Phase 1 and New Maker Yards Phase 2 loans

to March 2023 In February 2023 the Group exercised ar option to further extend the New Maker Yards Phase 1 and New Maker

Yards Phase 2 loans maturity dates to March 2024

The New Maker Yards Phase 2 loan facility agreement inciudes a further one-year extersion options to March 2025 The Elephant
and Castle Town Centre loan facility agreement includes a one-year extension option to April 2028

21. Derjvative financial instruments

The movement in the fair vaiue of the gerivative financial \nstrurments 1s as foliows:

2022 2021
£m £m

Non-current assets
Non-current assets 31.7 2.3
Current gssets 0.5 —
Current habilities - (0.3)
Non-currert nabilities -~ (0.6)
Net derivatives valuation 32.2 14
Net derivatives valuation
Opening balance 1.4 (2.7
Acquisitions - New Maker Yards Phase 2 (see note 24) - (1.7
Purchase of dervatives 6.2 —
Dhsposai of derivatives (1.0) —
Change in fair value of denvatives 25.6 5.8
Closing balance 32.2 1.4
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21. Derivative financial instruments continued
The Group holds a number of swap arrangement to hedge floating rate interest payable on several of 1ts lcans.

Notional arrount (Em) E*fective date Termmination date Fixed rate
35.6 13 March 2019 13 March 2024 1.2%
74.5 15 March 2019 15 March 23024 1.5%
32.3 25 February 2022 25 Aprif 2026 0.8%
323 25 February 2022 25 April 2026 0.8%
The Group also holds the following interest rate caps’

Notional amount (Em) Effective date Termination date Cap rate
65.8 1 March 2022 71 July 20286 1.5%
161.0 13 October 2022 30 September 2023 4.0%

Notional amounts are stated as at 31 Decermber 2022, All of the financial derivatives inctuded in the above table were vaiued by
an exterral consultant using a discounted cash flow model and market iInformation, the primary level 2 iInput being interest rate
curves. The Group does not apply hedge accounting so movements in fair value are taken drrectly to the Group's Statement of

Comprehensive Income

22. Liabilities - reconciliation of cash and non-cash movements

Cash flows Non-cash flows
Change
from
rong-term
interest  Dervative Dervative 0 Faryaue Amortisaton Inzerest
2071 Drawdown pa.d purchases dsposals  short-term changes of :0an fees charged” 2022
Emr £m £m £m £m £rm £m £m £m £m
Short-term liabilities
oans and borrowings 98.0 151 — — - 152.4 — - 4.5 270.0
Loan arrangement fees (0.2) — — — — (0.3) — 0.5 — -
Accrued loar interest*? 6.0 — (28.2) — — — - — 281 5.9
103.8 15.1 (28.2) — - 152.1 - 0.5 326 275.9
Long-term liabilities
Loans and borrowings 1,079.4 145.3 — — — (152.4) — — 10.6 1,082.9
Loar arrangement fees (12.1) — — — — 0.3 — 1.2 — (10.6)
1,067.3 145.3 — — — (152.1) — 1.2 106 1,072.3
Derivatives used to
hedge borrowings
Derivative financ:al
instruments (1.4) — — (6.2 1.0 - (25.6) — — (32.2)
Total liabllities from
financing activities 1.169.7 160.4 (28.2) (6.2) 1.0 — (25.6) 1.7 43.2 1,316.0

Interest charged includes monr-utilisation fees ard is ret of accrued Interest of £4 3m which 15 not capitalised on the loan balance but 1s included in other payaoles (see rote 173

* accrued loan interest relates to interest on poth long-term fiabilities ard snert-term llaoilities
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22. Liabilities - reconciliation of cash and

non-cash movements continued

Cash flows Non-cash fows
Loan and Interest Balances Farr value Accrued Amort.sation Interest
2020 Drawdown hedge fees pad acquired** cnanges  loanfees ofloan fees charged* 2021
£m Em £rm £m £m £m £m £m £m Em
Short-term liabilities
Loans and borrowings 32.6 4.5 — - 60.9 — - - — 98.0
Loan arrangement fees {0.1) — — — 0.2 - — 0.1 — (0.2)
Accrued lcan interest™ 4.3 — — (24.5) - — — — 26.2 8.0
36.8 4.5 — (24.5) 60.7 - — 0.1 26.2 1038
Long-term liabilities
woans and borrowings 1,029.4 47.1 — — — — — — 2.8 1,079.4
Loan arrangement fees (13.8) - —_ — — — — 1.7 — (12.1)
10156 47.1 — - — - - 1.7 — 1,067.3
Derivatives used to
hedge borrowings
Dervative financial
irstruments 2.7 — — — 1.7 (5.8) — — — (1.4)
Total liabilities from
financing activities 1,055.1 51.6 — (24.5) 62.4 (5.8 — 1.8 2%.1  1,169.7

interest crarged InciLdes ron-utilisation “ees ard is net of acc-ued interest of £6 O whicn s rot capitatised on the loan palarce but 15 included I other payanles {see note 17)

® Accrued loan irterest relates to rterest on ootr long-term habilit es and shert-term hatilities

==*During tne 2021 year the grouo acquired New Maker Yards Phase 2 ard resultartly pecame narty to ts loar obligations {see rote 243,

23, Risks and financial instruments

The Group's key finarcial risks arising from its operating activities and its financial instruments are

* credht risk,
» higuichty risk, and

s market risk (ncluding Interest rate rnisk and currercy nsk).

The Directors have averall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework.

Categories of financial instryments

2022
Carrying value Fair value
£m £m
Financial assets
At fair value through profit or loss:
Derivative financtal instrurnents (level 2) 32.2 32.2
Financial liabilities
At amortised cost:
Loans and borrowings - fixed rate (level 3) 926.0 779.9
Loans and borrowings - floating rate (leve! 3) 416.3 416.3
2021
Carrying value Fair value
£m £m

Financial assets
At farr value through profit or loss:
Derwvative financial instrurnents (level 2) 2.3 2.3
Financial liabilities
At armortised cost:
Loans and borrowings - fixed rate (level 3) 915.1 960.2
Loans and borrowings - floating rate (level 3) 250.0 250.0
At fair value through profit or loss: *
Derivative financial instruments (level 2) 0.9 0.9
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23. Risks and financial instruments continued

Management assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, financial assets included In trade and other recervables
and financial habilities included N trade and other payables (all at amortised cost) approximate therr carrying amounts largely due
to the short-term maturities of these nstruments. The difference between the fair value and the carrying amount of non-current
trade and other receivables and long-term cther payables is immaterial. The fair values of the fixed rate loans and borrowings have
been calculated based on a discounted cashflow model using the prevailing market rate of interest, determined with referance
to recent transactions and negnfiations occurring within the Group for loans with similar terms.

Financial Instruments that are measured subsaquent to initial recogmition at fair value are disciosed as levels 1 to 2 based on the
degree to which the fair value I1s observable (see note 5).

Credit risk

The Group services the private rental property sector as it rerts its investment properties to third party private residents. The PRS
industry s highly competitive and rehes on payment of financial obligations by private individuals. whose econemic circumstances
can alter from tbime to time. If a tenant expenences financial diff culties this may result in arrears which, ultimately, are pursued
through a legal process which can end in repossession of the property. The Group mitigates this risk by conducting comprehensive
credit checks. Currently, for those tenants that do not pass credit checks, the Group reguires receipt of a deposit pr:or to tenancy
commencement and will insist on guarantors as required. The effectiveness of the Group's policy in this regard s evidenced by the
Group's consistently high collection rates of 97% (2021: 97%).

The Group considers the credit worthiness of counterpart:es holding balances that are included within other receivables,
ensuring that amounts are not advanced unless full recoverability s anticipated.

The credit risk on Ilguid funds 15 imited because the significant countarparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk 15 the risk that the Group will not be abie to meet its finarcial obligatiors as they fall due The Group aims to mihgate
Iguidity nsk by mantaining adeguate reserves, banking faciliies and raserve barrowing faciites, by cortinuousiy monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the matunty profies of financial assets and habinties. For details of the Group's avaltable debt
facihties, including undrawnr arrounts, see nete 20

The foilowing table represents the contractual urndiscounted cash flow:

Carrying Contractual Less than One to Two to Over flve

amoaunt cash flow ohe year two years five years years

2022 £m £m £m £€m £m £m
Trade and other payables 720 72.0 64.1 2.7 4.1 11
Loans ard borrowings 1,342.3 1,558.3 291.1 23.3 225.7 1,018.2
Total 1,414.3 1,630.3 355.2 26.0 229.8 1,019.3
Carrying ContractJal Less than Cne to Two to Over five

amount cash Pow ane year two years fve years years

2021 £mr £m £m £m £m £m
Trade and other payables 122.5 1225 110.3 2.9 8.8 0.5
Loans and borrowings* 1.166.7 1,451.5 122.0 182.0 79.6 1,067.9
Derivative financial instruments 0.9 0.9 0.3 0.6 — -
Total 1.280.1 1.574.9 232.6 185.5 88.4 1,068.4

Included withir Ioars apd barrowings 1s a carrying amount of £16m which is classified as trade and other payables on the Statament of Financial Position at 31 December 2021
This balance relates to accrued interest and nor-utilisatior faes on loan faciities Aot yet utilised and the cortractual cashflows are 3150 snown 0 the loans and borrowings
lire of the above note,
Market risk
Market risk 13 the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, will affect the Group's Income or the value of its
investment properties and holdings of financial Instruments. The objective of market risk management s to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Currency risk
The Group has no significant assets or labihties denominated in currencies other than Pounds Sterling and was therefore not
exposed to currency risk at the Statemert of Financal Position date

Interest rate risk

The Group's Interest-bearing financial assets and habilities expose It to risks associated with the effect of fluctuations in the
prevalling levels of market interest rates on its financial position and cash flows The iong-term other payables are not subject
to interest rate risk as they do not bear interest
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23. Risks and financial instruments continued

Interest rate risk continued

The interest rate profile of the Group's financial assets and liabilities, exclud:ing short-term payables and receivabies,
as at 31 Decomber 2022 was

Total carrying
value (before

unamortised
Fixed rate Floating rate loan issue
items items costs)
2022 £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash at bank - 66.5 66.5
Monies heid in restricted accounts and deposits - 135 135
Total - 80.0 80.0
Financial liabilities
Loans and borrowings (before the effect of the
derivative and excluding accrued nterest) 936.6 418.3 1,352.9

{As5 rastated™)
Tata: carrying
value (befora

Jnamort sed

Fxed rate Float ng rate loan 1ssde
items iterrs costs)

2021 £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash at bank - 85.1* 85.1*
Restricted cash — 15.9* 15.9*
Total - 101.0 101.0
Financial liabilities
Loans and borrowings {before the effect of the
derivative and excluding accrued interest) 927.0 2504 1,177.4

* Cash ard cask eguivalents ard restricted casn nave beer retrospectively restated as at 31 December 2021 following a clarificatior oy IFR C or the prese~tatior of
monies tnat nave legal or contractual restrictiors an therr use but are physicaily accessiple, see nate 16 for further informatron

The Group makes use of derivative fimanciai instruments where possible to minimise the Group's overall exposure to

Irterest rates.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The Group has derivative arrangements in place to fix the interest rate on the majority of its variable rate loans with high

hedge efficiency. Therefore the Group’'s loans arnd borrowirgs as at 31 December 2022 are not subject to sigrificant changes

N interest rate movements However. the interest rate derivatives are subject to movements In floating interest rates based on
SONIA (see note 2) The impact on the farr value of the derivative financial instruments «f interest rates increase/decrease by
50 basis points would be an increase/decrease in the gain on derivative financial instruments of £4.6m (2021: £3.5m).

Fair value measurements
The following table presents the Group’s assets and flabihities that are measured at fair value.

Total gain/
2022 Assets Liabilities (losses)
Recurring fair value measurements £m £m Em
Level 2
Derivative financial instruments 32.2 - 25.6
202° Assets Liabihties Toral lgsses
Recurr.ng fa.r value measurements £m Em £m
Level 2
Derivatve financial instruments 2.3 (0.9) 5.8
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Notes 10 the financial statements continued

24. Asset acquisition between entities under common control
On 15 September 2021, the Group acquired the entire share capital of Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Phase 2 Topco
Limited (MWL2 TopCo'), collectively known as New Maker Yards Phase 2, from Middlewood Locks LLP (MWL LLP') for a total

consideration of £142.5m

Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Phase 2 Topco Limited 1s a private imited company registered in the British Virgin Islands.
Middlewood Locks LLP and its subsidiaries are entities 1iointly contralled ultimately by Uie same shareholders (note 29)

The acguisition was for the New Maker Yards Phase Z site In Salford, Manchaster with a view to completing the development of
this property as a residential scheme, aiongs.de the Group's existing New Maker Yards Phase T property

The acquisition was not treated as an acquisition of & business as the acguired group held one property asset with neghgible
operations As such, the transaction was treated as an asset acguisition between entities under common control and the
identifiable assets and lliabilities of the acgured group were recorded at their fair values on the acquisition date.

Ern

Fair value of net assets acguired:

Investment property 119.8
Trade and other receivables 85.2
Cash and cash eguivalents 12.9
Loan net of arrangement fees (60.7)
Trade and other payables (13.2)
Dervative financial .rstruments (1.7

142.3

Net assets acquired

Ng cash was transferrea in corsideration for this transaction as it was funded through Shareholder funding of £147 3m (note 25).

25. Other equity reserves

2022 2022

£m £mr

Opering balance 541.3 239.4
Equity contribution for asset acguisition {note 24) _ 1423
Qther eguity contribution 48.0 159.6
Closing balance 589.3 541.3

Diuring the year there was a cash equity contribution from shareholders in the crdinary course of business of £480m
(20271 £159 6m) Shareholder funding 1s Interest free and repayable only upon hgudation of Get Living PLC. In the prior year
there was also a non-cash contrbution of £142 3rm - respect of the acquisition of New Maker Yards Phase 2 (see note 24)

26. Retained earnings
The retained earnings reserve represents cumulative profits, including unrealised profit on the remeasurement of investment

properties and investmenrt properties under construction.
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27. Share capital and other reserves

Ordinary shares Share
Nurrber of of £1 each premiurr
ordinary shares fm £rr
Allotted, called up share capital:
At 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022 1,000.000 1.0 -

Hoiders of ordinary shares are entitled 1o ore vote per share The Company s authornsed to issue unhimited shares

Far the purpose of the Group's capitai maragement, capital ncludes ssued capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Group's capital management 1s to maximise shareholder vaiue. There are
no debt covenants that place any restriction over capital.

Distributable reseryes
The distributable reserve was created in 2018 by transferrng share premium of £950 7m to distributable reserves through a capital
reduction. During the year, a total dividend of £nil (2021 £nil) has been paid to shareholders from the distributable reserve

Amounts avallable for distnbution consist of the Company's realised profits within retained earnings and the distributatle reserve
(see note 12 10 the Company's financial statements)

Consolidation reserve

'n November 2018, the Group was formed through a recrganisation in which the Company became a new parert entity of the Group.
“he Group financial statemenrts were prepared using the pooling of Nnterests method, with the difference in share capital and reserves
resutting from the use of the pooling of :nterests methoa of £10 8m being recorded as an adjustment to the conselidation reserve
In the period ended 31 March 2012

28. Non-controlling interests
“he non-controlling interest relates to the estate management company for East Village, EVML The non-controlling interest
represents the units operated by Triathion Homes LLP - shared ownership and social housing

The cumulative non-controlling Interest of EVML at 31 December 2022 was £01m (2027, £07m)

The non-contrelling interest reserve represents corresponding cumulative profits from EVML's company operations.

29. Controlling parties
At 31 December 2022, Get Living PLC was jointly controiled as follows:

() by DOOR, SLP a limited partrership registered and incorporated in Jersey;
O by QD UK Holdings LP, a imited partnership registered and incorporated in Scotland; and
() by Stichtng Depositary APG Strategic Real Estate Pool, 2 pens.on fund asset manager based in the Nethertands.

Subseqguent to the year end QD UK Holdings LP, one of the Group's controlling parties, exchanged on a transaction to dispose
of its ertire sharehoiding in Get Living PLC to Aware Super, an Australian superannuation fund.

30. Related party disclosures
Transactions between the Group and its related parties that are recognised n the Staterrent of Comprehensive Income and
Staterment of Financial Position are summarised below

2022 2021
£m £m
Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
Advisory fees charged by Qatar: Diar Europe LLP and expensed (0.8) -
Development advisory fees charged to entities under commeoen control 0.5 —
2022 2027
£m £mr
Group Statement of Financial Position
Advisory fees charged by Qatar Diar Europe Lo.P and capitalised to investmenrt property 0.8 1.9
Recevable from QD UK Haoldings LP 0.4 -
Developrment advisory fees receivable from entities uncler common control 0.5 -
Shareholder equity not settled n cash 85.2 85.2
insurance proceeds payable to shareholders (1.3) (1.33
Loan from T3 Residential Limited (9.6) -
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30. Related party disclosures continued
Qatar Diar Europe LLP 1s a whoily owned subsidiary of Qatari Diar Real Estate Investrment Company which has control over
QD UK Holdings LP as a imited partner

Total fees of £1.6m were Incurred with respect to services provided by Qatart Diar Europe LLP In the year ended 31 Decemiger 2022
(2021 £12m), of which £0.8m (2021 Enil) were expensed and £0 8m (2021 £1.9m) were capitalised to investment property.
As at 31 December 2022 there were nn fees payahle o Matar Diar Europe LLD (2021 Gial).

During the year the Group iIncurred expenses of £0.8m (2021 £nil) on behalf of QD UK Holdings LP. The Group recharged £0.8m
(2021 £nil) of these expenses to QD UK Holdings LP of which £0.4m (2021: £nil} remains recerwvable as at the Staterment of Financial
Position date.

The Group recognised other iIncome of £0.5m as a result of development advisory services provided to entities under common
control (2021 £nil),

There 15 a balance of £85 2rm nciuded within other recevables being shareholder eguity that has not been settled in cash, whereby
the shareholders have committed equity to guarantee the due performance of the New Maker Yards Phase 2 group compantes
of payment obiigat:ons under both a building agreement and a facility agreement to the sum of this amount Following practical
completion of New Maker Yards Phase 2, the third party guarantees have significantly reduced

The Group received Insurance proceeds from a third party, which as at the statement of financial position date were payable to
shareholders and were therefore recogmsed as an other payable.

During the year a loan of £9 6m was received from T3 Residentiai Limited, an entity under common control. The loan is repayabie
on demand and ‘s not secured against any of the Group's assets. The loan represents the advancement of a government grant
that was awarded to T3 Residential Limited to help fund the development of affordable housing at the Elephant and Castle Town
Centre Development.

Get _iving operates a co-investment plan for certain members of the Executive Tearn The plan allows the participart to invest
nto the Company over the term of the pian. The plan allows for a subscrption for units that vest on a hiquichty event or at the
end of sever vears by reference to Net Asset Value per share The amount of co-investment held on the Statement of Firancial
Dosition as at 31 December 2022 15 £0 4m (2027 £ml) The amount of the co-investment scheme expensed to the Statement of
Cormprebensive Income s Inciuded within salaries and wages for key management persornel, see note 8

During the year ended 31 Decermber 2021, there was an asset acquisition between entities under common control which 1s disclosed
nnote 24,

See note 37 for the list of subsidiary undertakings of the Company

31. Capital commitments
The Group has the following current commitments under its deveiopment projects.

2022 2021

£m £rm

Newton Place 72.1 132.8
Elephant and Castie Town Centre 440.0 505.7
New Maker Yards Phase 2 _— 3.2
East Village 34.5 27.3
Total 546.6 £69.0

Capital commitments reprasent contractually committed development expenditure, including amounts agreed under forward
funding contracts and a commitment to purchase the existing academic bullding owned by the University of the Arts London
for £70.5m, with the cash outflow for this purchase anticipated to be in 2024 Al armounts aside frem the commitment to
purchase an academic buliding are already caprured In the financial statements as either a deduction to the farr value of
Investment property or @ provision in the Statement of =inancial Position.
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32. Contingent liabilities

As part of the acquisition of New Maker Yards Phase 2 (note 24) the Group became party to guarantee agreements relating to
financing arrangements and development contracts Initially there was a maximum aggregate lability of £85 2m payable under
these guarantees which 1s backed by shareholder loans to the sum of £85.2m (see note 15). Following practical completion of
the New Maker Yards Phase 2 deveiopment, the total guarantee putstanding as at 31 December 2022 15 £2 3m (2021, £5 7m).

The Group was subject to an cngoing tax enguiry at the Statement of Financial Pos:tion date that subsequently resulted
v a future outflow of economic rescurces, accordingly a provision has been recognised, refer to note 18.

3. EPRA performance measurements

In accordance with the latest published EPRA gudehnes {EPRA Best Practices Recommendations) the Group has presented the
appropriate measures baing EPRA Net Reinstatement Value ("EPRA NRV™), EPRA Net Tangtble Assets ("EPRA NTA"), EPRA Net
Disposal Value ('EPRA NDV™) and EPRA Loan to Value ("EPRA LTV").

The EPRA NRV secks to highlight the value of net assets on a long-term basis and assumes that entities never sell assets and airs to
reprasant the value reguired to rebuild the entity. Assets and llabilities that are not expected to crystallise in normal circumstances,
such as the fair value movements on dervatives, are therefore excluded. Since the aim of the metric 1s to also reflect what wouid
be needed to recreate the company through the investrment markets based on its current capital and financing structure, related
costs such as real estate transfer taxes should be included. EPRA NRV will be the primary EPRA measure used by the Group.

The EPRA NTA calculation assumes entities buy and setl assets, with fair value movements on derivatives being excluded
It 1s the board's intention to hold all -rvestment properties for the tong term and not to sell them.

The EPRA NDV seeks to represent the full extent of habilities and resuit:ng sharehotaer value If company assets are sold and/
or If isbilities are not held until matunty For this purpose, the EPRA NDV provides the reader with a scenar ¢ where financia!
Irstruments and certain other adjustments are calculated as to the full extent of liabilities, net of any resulting tax.

2022

£m
EPRA Net Asset Value measures EPRA NRV EPRA NTA EPRA NDV
Total shareholders' equity 1,513.6 1,513.6 1,513.6
Deficit of fair value of trading property over carryirg value 35 35 3.5
Derivative financiai nstruments {32.2) (32.2) —
Deficit of fair value of fixed interest rate debt over carrying vaiue - - 146.1
Real estate trarsfer tax 79.0 - -
EPRA measure 1,563.9 1,484.9 1,663.2
Per share measure (£)* 1,564 1,485 1,663

The EPRA NAV per snare, EPRA NRY per share, EPRA NTA per share and EPRA NDWV per share are calculated by drviding the EPRA performance measure oy the number
of ordirary shares 1in .ssue at the end of the reporting period, oeirg 1.000,000 shares

2021

£m
EPRA Ne: Asset Value measures EPRA NRV EPRA NTA EPRA NDV
Total sharehoiders' equity 1,329.3 1,329.3 1,329.3
Denvative financial instruments (1.4) (1.4) -
Excess of farr value of fixed interest rate debt over carrying value — - (45.1)
Real estate transfer tax 75.6 — —
EPRA measure®™ 1,403.5 1,327.9 1.284.2
Per share measure (£)* 1,404 1,228 1,284

“he EPRA NAY per share, EPRA NRV per share, EPRA NTA per share and EPRA NDV per snare are calculated by dividing the EPRA performance measure by the ~umber
of ardinary shares in 1ssue at the end of the reporting pencd, beirg 1L000,000 shares

** AL 31 December 2021, tne farr value of trading property I1s egual to the carrying value
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Notes (o the financial statements continued

33. EPRA performance measurements continued
The EPRA LTV seeks to present a gearing metric that 15 comparable between entities through standardisation of calculation

2022 202°
EPRA LTV measure £m £m
Net debt
Include:
L.oans and borrowirgs 1,342.3 1,165.1
Net payabies - 12.6
Exclude:
Cash ard cash eguivalents (66.5) (85.1)
Net debt 1,275.8 1.092.6
Investment property portfolio and other eligible assets
Investrnent properties at fair value 2,659.2 2,366.2
Traching property 68.6 356
Net recewvables 135 —
Restricted cash 13.5 15.9
Total investment property portfolio and other eligible assets 2,754.8 2,417.7
EPRA LTV 46.3% 45.2%

24, Net asset value per share
Net asset value per share s calculated as eguity attributabie tc owners divided by the number of ordinary shares in 1ssue at the
and of the reporting period As at 31 December 2022, net asset value per share 1s £1.514 (2021 £1.329)

35. Earnings per share

Earnings per share s calculated as profit after taxation attributable to equity holders of the parent of £136.3m (2021 £58°'m)
divided by the weighteda number of shares in issue durirg the year ended 31 Decermber 2022 of 1000,000 srares
(20271000000 shares) Basic earmings per share and diruted earrings per share amount to £136.36 (2021 £58 03)

36. Subsequent events
Subsequent to the year end QD UK Holdirgs LP, one of the Group's controllirg parties, exchangea on a transactior to dispose
of its entire shareholding in Get Living PLC to Aware Super.

Subsequent to the year end the Group made a paymert of £18 9 millior to HMRC as part of an agreement signed in March
2023 to settle an ongoing tax enquiry. The settlement of this balance confirms that the Group had a presert obligation at the
end of the reporting period and therefore the Group has recognised a provision for £18 7m, refer to note 18,

There are no further subsequent events that impact the Group
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37. Subsidiaries

Country of Class of 2022 2021
Subsidiaries of Get Living PLC ncorporation Status shares held ownership % ownership %
Get Living London £V Hoeidco Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London EV NO1 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living Londcon EV NGZ Limited UK ALLive O dinary 100 mnn
Get Living London EV NOZ Limited UK Active Crdinary 100 100
Get Living London EV NO4 Limited LK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London EV NO5 Limited™* LUK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Livirg London EV NO6 Limited UK Active Crdinary 100 100
Get Living London EV NO7 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living Londen EV N0O8 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London EV N0O9 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London EV N10 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London EV N13 Limited UK Active Crdinary 100 100
Get Living London EV N14 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Lwving London EV N15 irmited UK Active Crdirary 100 100
Get Living London EV N26 Limited UK Active Crdirary 100 100
Get L.ving London EV1 Holdco Limited UK Dormant Ordirary 100 100
Get L ving London V2 Holdco Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London wimited UK Active Cradinary 100 100
Newincco 1234 Lirited UK Active Crdinary 100 100
QDD Athletes Village UK Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD East Village UK Limited UK Dormant Crdinary 100 100
QDD {viilage Plots) Holdco Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV Holdeco Limited UK Dormant Orchinary 100 100
QDD BEV NO1 uimited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NO2 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 106
QDD EV NO3 Limited UK chive Ordinary 100 160
QDD Ev NO4 Lirmted UK Active Orcinary 100 100
QD0 EV NO7 Limited UK Active Crdinary 100 100
QDD EV NO9 uimited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QOO EV N10 Lirmited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD BV N13 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV N14 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV N15 Limited UK Active Crdinary 100 100
Q00 BV N26 Lymited UK Active QOrcinary 100 100
QOD EV NO5 Holdco 1 Limited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NO5 Holdco 2 Limited UK Dormant COrdinary 100 100
QDD EV NOS Limited UK Active Crdinary 100 100
QDD EV NO& Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NO6 (992) Limited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NO6/NO8 Holdco 1 Limited WK Active COrdinary 100 100
QDD EV NOE/NO8 Holdco 2 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NO6/N0O8 Holdco 3 Limited UK Active Crdinary 100 10Q
QLD EV NO6/N08 Holdco 4 Limitedt UK Active Crdinary 100 100
QDD EV NO8 Haldco Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD Ev NO8 Limited LK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NO8 (985) Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EVI Investment UK Limited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
QDD EVZ Investment UK Limited UK  Dormant Ordinary 100 100
QDD Holdco Limitea™ BvI Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD Lirmvaed BvI Active Crdinary 1C0 100
Stratford Village Development (GP) Limited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
Stratford Village Development LP1 Limited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
Stratford Village Development LP2 Limited UK  Dormant Ordinary 100 100
Stratford Village Development Partnership UK Active Ordinary 100 100
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37. Subsidiaries continued

Country of Class of 2022 2021
Subsicharies of Get Living PLC ‘ncaorporat.on Siatus shares he.d ownership % ownership %
Stratford Village Property Holdings 1 timited UK Dormant QOrdinary 100 100
Stratford Village Property Holdings 2 Limited UK Daormant Ordinary 1040 100
SVYDP Limited UK Dormant COrdinary 100 100
Sast Village Managerment wimited UK Active Limited by 58 8
guarantee
Dv4 813 uimited® BvVI Active Ordinary 100 100
Dwv4 Eadon Co. Limited BvVI Active Ordinary 106 100
V4 Eadon Development UK Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Elephant Central Management Limited UK Active Limited by 100 100
guarantee
Tribeca Square (Commercial) 175 Co. Limited Bv! Active Qrdinary 100 100
Tribeca Square (Commercial] 990 Co. Limited Bwi Active Ordinary 100 100
Tribeca Sguare (Mawes House) 175 Co. Limited B’ Active Ordinary 100 100
Tribeca Sguare (Mawes House) 920 Co. Limited 3! Active CQrdmnary 100 100
Tribeca Sguare (Portchester House) 175 Co. Limited BvVi Active Orchinary 100 100
“ribeca Sguare (Portchester House) 990 Co. Limitea 3vI Act ve Qrdinary 10¢ 100
Tribeca Square (Raglar and Tantallon house) 8VI Active Ordinary 100 100
175 Co. umited
Tribeca Square (Raglar and Tantallon Rouse) 3VI Active Ordinary 100 100
9490 Co. Limited
Get Living Group (Middlewsod Locks) Topco Limited 3VI Active Ordinary 100 100
(Previcusly Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks)
Phase 1 Topco Co. Limited)”
Get Living Group (Middlewood _ocks) BvI Active Ordinary 100 100
Phase 1 Holdco Co. Limited
Get Living Group {(Middlewood Locks) BvI Active QOrdinary 100 100
Phase 1 Co. Limited
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Prase 1 999 BvI Active Ordinary 100 100
Holdco Co. Limited
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) | 999 BvI Active Ordinary 100 100
Co. Limited
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Phase 1 175 Byl Active Ordinary 100 100
Hoidco Co. Limited
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) | 175 Co. Limitea BWv: Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living Group (Migdiewood Locks) Reversiorary BV! Active Ordinary 100 100
Co. Limited
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) F Reversionary B! Active Ordinary 100 100
Co. Limited
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) J Reversionary BVvi Active Ordinary 100 1c0
Co. Limited
MWL Estate Maragement Limited UK Active Limited by 100 160
guarantee
Get Living (Middlewoed Locks) Phase 2 Topco Limited Bvt Active Ordinary 100 100
(Previously Get Living Group {(Middlewood Locks)
Holdco Co. Limited)
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Co. Limited Bwvi Active Orchnary 100 100
Get Living Group (Middiewood Locks) Residential Bvi Active Ordinary 100 100
Co. Limited
Get Living {(Middlewood Locks) Phase 2 Holdeo By Active Qrdinary 100 100
Co. Limited
Get Living (Middlewood Locks) Phase 2 Co. Limited Bv! Active Qrdinary 100 100
Get Living (Middlewood Locks) Developments Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living (MWL) One Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living (MWL) Two Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living Group (Migdlewood Locks) Phase 2 999 UK Active Ordinary 100 100

Hoidco Limited
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37. Subsidiaries continued

Country of Class of 2022 2021
Subsidiaries of Get Living PLC incorporation Status shares held ownership % awnership %
Get Living Group (Middlewosod Locks) G 998 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) H 899 Limited LK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Phase 2 175 UK Active ordinary 100 10
Holdco Limited
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) G 175 Limited UK Active Qrdinary 100 100
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) H 175 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisham Holdco Limited” Jersey Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisham Holdeo 1 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisham Holdco 2 Limited UK Active Crdinary 100 100
GL Lew:sham D1 Holdco Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewssham D1 250 Limited UK Active Qrdinary 100 100
GL Lewisham C Holdco Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisham C 250 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisham D2 koldco Limited UK Act-ve Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisham D2 250 Lirmited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisham E Hoidco Limited UK Active Qrdinary 100 100
GL Lewisham E 250 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL tewisham Common Parts Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisham Developmert UK Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisharm Gateway Managemert Limited UK Active Limited by 100 100

guarantee
GL E&C Holdeco Limited® Jersey Active Qrdinary 100 100C
GL Elephant Two (Holdco) Limited Jersey Active Ordinary 100 100
Elephant & Castle Development UK Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Elephant & Castle Properties Co. Limited BvI Active Ordinary 100 100
Eiephant & Castle 990 Urni Co Limited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 106
Elephant & Castle Properties Limited UK Active Crdinary 1G0 100
Elephant Three (Holdco) Limited Bw! Active Ordinary 100 100
Elephant Three Development UK Limited UK  Dormant Crdinary 100 100
Elephant Three Properties L.mited BvI Active Ordinary 100 100
E&C Mancoe Limited UK UK Lirmited by 1C0 100
guarantee

Directly owned by Get | iving PLLC

** Newly incorparated during the period ended 31 Decernber 2022
Ownership % 1s equatl to the voting nghts held.

Subsidiaries have the following registered offices:

UK incorporated 6th Floor Lansdowne House, Berkeley Sguare, London W14 6ER.

British Virgin Islands mcorporated: Craigmuir Cambers, PO Box 71, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands

Jersey incorporated 47 Esplanade, St Heler, Jersay JET OBD.

Exceptions to the above UK incorporations:

East Village Management Limited: Websters, 12 Melcombe Place, Marylebone, Londor NW1 6JJ,

38. Subsidiary audit exemption

The following subsidiary entities have taken exemption from the requirements relating to the audit of therr individual financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 by virtue of section 4794 of the Companies Act 20086 and the exemption

contaned therain. Accordingly the Company has guaranteed the obligations of each of its subsicdiary undertakings.

Subsidiaries of Get Living PLC

Registration number

Courntry of ‘ncorperaton

QDD EV NO6/NO8 Holdco 1 Limited
QDD Athletes Village UK Limited
Stratford Village Development (GP) Limited

09504426
07503926
06583350

UK
UK
UK
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Company statement of financial position

2022 2021

Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 7 866.2 304.7
Leans to subsicharies 8 409.3 336.5
Total non-current assets 1,275.5 1,241.2
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 9 74.3 37.1
Cash and cash eguivalents 0.5 1.9
Total current assets 74.8 39.0
Total assets 1,350.3 1,280.2
Current liabilities
Trade and other pavables 10 (9.2) (3.5)
income tax payable {0.5) (0.7)
l.oans and borrowings 11 (9.6) —
Total current liabilities (19.3) (4.2
Net assets 1,Z31.0 1.276.0
Equity
Share capital 12 1.0 1.0
Distributable reserve 12 783.6 783.6
Other equity reserves 13 589.3 541.3
Retaned deficit (42.9) {49.9)
Total equity 1,331.0 1.276.0

The Company profit for the year was £7.0m (2027 £78m) There was no other comprehensive ircome 1in the year or prior period

The financial staterments were approved by the Board of Directors for 1ssue on 27 April 2023 and were signed on its bebralf by:

Vames Boundle

James Boadle
Director
27 April 2023

Company registration no. 11532492
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Company statement of changes in equity

Share Retained Distributable Qther equity Total

capial earnings reserve reserve equity

Notes £m £m £Em £m £m

At 1 January 2021 1.0 (57.7) 783.6 2394 966.3
Total comprehensive profit for the year - 7.8 — 7.8
Other equity contnbutions 13 — — i01s 3010
At 31 December 2021 1.0 (49.9) 783.6 541.3 1,276.0
Total comprehensive profit for the year — 7.0 — — 7.0
Other egquity contributions 13 — — — 48.0 48.0
At 31 December 2022 1.0 (42.9) 783.6 589.3 1,331.0
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Notes forming part of the Company financial statements

1. Statement of compliance with FRS 101

The Parent Company financial statements of Get Living PLC (the "Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 were authorised
for 1ssue by the Board of Directors on 27 April 2023 and the Statement of Financial Position was signed on the Board's behalf by
James Boadte. These Parent Company financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
"Reduced Disclosure Framework” (FRS 101).

2. Basis of preparation

The Company's financgial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. The financial statements are presentad in
millions of Sterling (Fm) and all values are rounded to the nearest hundred thousand Sterling (E0.1m), except where otherwise
ndicated The financial statements have been prepared for the year ended 31 December 2022, with the comparative period
being the year ended 31 December 2021,

See note 1 to the Group financial statements for general information about the Company.

The Company applies consistent accounting policies, as applied by the Group To the extent that ar accounting policy s reievant to
both Group and Company financial statements, refer to the Group financial statements for disclosure of the accounting policy (see
notes 2, 3, and 4 1n the Group accounts). Accounting pohicies that apply to the Company only are :ncluded as appropnrate (see note 3).

The Company has used the exemption granted under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 that allows for the nen-disclosure
of the income statement of the Parent Company

The Company d:d not have items to be reported as other comprehensive income, therefore, no Statement of Comprehensive
Income was prepared

The Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101

» the reguirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures - the management of financial nisk disclosures including management
of credit, lguidity and market risk and interest rate sensitivity analysis;

* the requirements of paragraphs 91-99 of IFRS 13 Farr Value Measurement - disclosures around fair values of assets and labilities.

« the requirements of paragraphs 10(d), 16, 111 ard 134-136 of IAS 1 Prasentation of Fnanciai Statements - presentation of staterment
of cash flows, explicit and unreserved staterrent of compiiance with Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards and disclosures
of the Company’s objectives, polictes and processes for managing capitai;

+ the requirements of 1AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows,

« the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of |AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - disclosure
of new accounting standards and interpretations that have been 1ssued but are not yet effective;

« the requirements of paragraphs 17 and 184 of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures - disclosure reiating to compensation of key
management personnad, and

s the requirements In |1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related party transact:ons entered inte between the parent
and wholly owned subsidiaries.

Where reguired, equivalent disclosures are given in the consalidated financial statements of Get Living PLC, in which the Company
15 consolidated.

Going concern

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on & going concern basis. The Directors have referred to cash
flow forecasts for the period to 30 June 2024 in order to assess the requirements of the Company over that period. For further
information see note 2 1n the Group financial statements.

Judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 1C1 requires the use of critical jJudgements, estimates and assurmptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, Income and expenses. Estimates and assumptions
concerning the future and the accounting resuits of those estimates may rot eqgual the related actual results.

The areas involving a higher degree of jJudgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements, are disclosed n the relevant notes forming part of these financial staterments as discussed below

Key estimates

Investments in subsidiaries

Get Living PLC carries out an annuai impairment review on the value of investments heid by the Company. The underlying net assets
of the subsidiaries are deermed to be the net recoverable amounts Where the carrying value of an investment in a subsidiary exceeds
Its recoverable amount, an impairment 1s recegnised. Further :nformation s included in note 7

Discount rate

The Company enters into long-term interest free loans with subsidiary entities. These loans are measured at fair value, represented

by the present value of future cash flows discounted at the market rate of interest at the date of the inibial drawdown. In determiring
the market rate of interest, management considers interast rates which could be achieved on external funding, and other market

observations. Further information i1s mcluded in note 8.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsicianies are shown at cost less provision for impairment. impairment exists when the carrying value of an investment
n a subsidiary exceedas Its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposat and its value In use

b) Interest-free intercompany loans

Receivables arising frorm interest-free mlercompany lodns are recognised when the Company becomes party to the related
contracts and are measured intially at the fair value represented by the present value of future cash flows discounted at market
interast rate An other equity reserve increasing the cost of Investment in subsidiary is recognised, being the chfference between
the above and the conswderatior advanced.

After initial recognition, mnterest-free intercompany loans are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The finance income 15 recogrised in the Statement of Comprehensive tncome,

c) Current tax
Currert tax assets and liabiities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current tax Is the expected tax payable on any non-REIT taxable income for the period, using tax rates applicabie at the
Statement of Financial Position date, any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previcus years, and any charges ansing from
the requirements to meet the REIT regime rules

4. Taxation

2022 2021
£m £m

Current tax credit (0.3} 0.2
Deferred tax charge - -
Tax (crecht)/charge for the year (0.3) 0.2
Factors affecting the tax (credit)/charge for the year
Profit before taxation 6.7 80
Profit before taxation multipied by main rate of UK corporation tax of 19% (2021: 19%) 1.3 1.5
Effect of:
Imputed nterest not deductible for tax purposes (5.8) (3.6)
Impairment of investrments 51 1.7
Losses not recognised - 0.3
Transfer pricing adjustment 0.4 -
Interest cover ratio charge 0.5 0.8
Adpustments in respect of prior periods (0.8) (0.5)
Tax (credit) /charge (0.3) 0.2
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Notes forming part of the Company financial statements

-
continued

5. Auditor remuneration

2022 2021

E'000 £'000
Services provided by the Company's auditor:
Audit fees - audit of Parent Company accounts 4 5
INUI-audil sk vites,
Other assurance services - interim review 20 20
Tax advisory services 20 63
Tax compliance services 472 327

516 415
6. Employees and Director remuneration
Refer to note 8 of the consolidated financial statements for Director remuneration disclosures.
The Company had one employee during the year (2021 onea).
7. Investment in subsidiaries

2022 2021

£m £rm

Opening balance 204.7 808.7
Other equity contribution to subsidiary undertakings 3.3 105.0
True-up of fair value discounting (15.0) —
Impairment of iInvestments (26.8) (9.0)
Closing balance 866.2 904.7

The true up of the fair value discounting relates to the correction of the imtial discounting provided on lecans to subsidiaries
n 2021 The directors do not consider this correction to be matenal to the finarcial statements and as such, no prior year
restaterment has been recorded Refer to note 8 for the corresponding entry in loans to subsiciares

The Directors believe that the carrying value of the investments i1s supported by their underlying rnet assets. After an assessment
of pet recoverable amount, an iImpairment of £26 8m (2021 £9.0m) has been made. Impairments in the current year are primarily
due to farr value losses on the revaluation of iInvestrment property, resulting in a decrease .n the underlying net assets of the
investrnents, The overall impact on the Group's consolidated results s £ril (2021 £nil).

2022 2021
Subs diaries drectly heid by the Company’ ownership % ownersh-p %
QDD Hoidco Limited 100 100
Dv4 613 Limited 100 100
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Tepco Limited 100 100
GL Lewisham Holdco Limited 100 100
GL E&C Holdco Limited 100 100

The full list of subsidiary undertakings of the Company and their detalls are set out In note 37 to the Group financial statements
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8. Loans to subsidiaries

2022 2021
£m ol
Interest-free intercompany term loans:

Amounts due from Get Living Group (Middiewaood Locks) Topco Limited 146.9 133.7
Amounts due trom GL Lewisham Holdco Limited 94.4 70.1
Amounts due from Gl E&C Holdco Limited 141.4 116.2
Amounts due from QDD Holdco Limited 17.0 7.5

Interest-free intercompany loans repayable on demand:
Amounts due from Gl E&C Holdco Limited 9.6 —
409.3 336.5

The Company has issued inrterest free term loans to 1ts subsidiary entities in order te finance thewr cperations. The total
principal advanced s discounted to present value using the market interest rate of 10%. The difference between the principail
advanced and Its present value I1s recognised as an investment in subsidiary. Imputed interest 1s charged on the interest free
loan balance.

The interest free loan due from Get Living Group (Middiewood Locks) Topco Limited is a term loan i1ssued 1in March 2019 with
further drawdowns I September 2021 and 1s repayable in March 2025

The interast free loan Que from GiL Lewisham Holdco Limited 15 a term loan 1ssued in July 2020 with multiple further drawdowns
between July 2020 and Decermber 202 and 15 repayable in July 2026.

The interest free ioar due from GL F&C Hordeo Lirmited 1s a term loar issued 1in August 2020 with multiple further drawdowns
between August 2020 and June 2022 and i1s repayable in July 2025

The interest free lcar due from QDD Holdco Limited 1s & term loan :ssued in December 2021, with further subseguent drawdowns
beyond that date, and is repayable in Decembper 2027

Dunng tha year the Company issued an interest free toan to GL E&C Holdeo Limited which 1s repayable on demand {(see note 11)

Reconchation of moverments during the year and cumulative totals

Get Lving Group GL Lewisham GL E&C QDD
(M ddlewoad Locks) Holdco Holdco Holdco
Topco vrmited Lirmited vimited L m'ted Total
Counierparty £m £ £m £m fro
Opening balance 133.7 791 116.2 7.5 336.5
True-up of fair value discounting — 6.6 5.7 2.7 15.0
Issue of interest free ican - - B.7 6.9 156
Falr value adjustment on 1ssue
of iInterest free loan (note 7) — — 2.2) (1.1) (3.3)
Imputed intarest income 13.2 87 13.0 1.0 359
Closing balance 146.9 94.4 141.4 17.0 399.7
Cumulative totals
Drawdown 173.8 130.8 177.0 20.2 507.8
Fair value adjustment on Issue (56.1) (49.6) (62.3) (6.9) {174.9)
Liatlity recognised on drawgown 123.7 81.2 114.7 13.3 3329
Imputed interest accrued 23.2 13.2 26.7 3.7 66.8
Total liability 146.9 94.4 141.4 17.0 399.7

The true up of the fair value discounting relates to the correction of the initial discounting provided on loans to subsidiaries
in 2021. The directors do not consider this correction to be materal to the financial statements ang as such, no prior year
restaterment has been recorded Refer to note 7 for the corresponding entry in nvestment in subsicharies.

The Company has considered the recoverability of the loans to subsicharies at the reporting date based on the expected crecht
loss model. The expected credit loss calculated 1s immaterial to the Campany
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the Company financial statements

-
continued

9. Trade and other receivables
2022 2021
£m £m
Trade and other receivables 0.3 0.1
Prepayments 0.1 —
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 739 37.0
74.3 37.1

Armounts due from subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand, with talances expected to

be settled within twelve months of the Statement of Financial Position date. Amounts due from subsichary undertakings includes
amounts due from rmultiple subsidiary undertakings and represents short term funding requirements and cperational amounts
advanced i the normal course of business. The Company has considered the recoverability of the amounts due from subsidiary
undertakings at the reporting date based on the expected credit ioss model The expected credit loss calculated 1s immaterial to
the Company

10. Trade and other payables

2022 2021
£m £m
Other creditors 1.9 1.1
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 7.3 2.4
9.2 3.5
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand
11. Loans and borrowings
2022 2021
£m £m
Loan from T3 Residential Limited 9.6 -
9.6 -

During the year a loan of £9.6m was received from T3 Residential Limited, an entity under cormnmon contrel The loan 1s repayable
on demard and is not secured aganst any of the Company or Group's assets. The lcan represents the advancerment of a government
grant that was awarded to T3 Residential Limited to help fund the development of affordable housing at the Elephant and Castle
Town Centre Development. The Company in turr advanced this funding to GL €&C Holdco Limited as a subsidiary (see note 8)

12. Share capital and other reserves
Refer to note 27 of the consolidated financial statements for share capital and other reserves disclosures.

Total distributable reserves are the distributable reserve of £783.6m (2021 £783 6m) less realised retamned deficit of £42.9m
(2021 £49 3m)

13. Other equity reserves
For detaills on other equity reserves see note 25 in the Group accounts.

14. Controlling parties
At 31 December 2022, Get Living PLC was jointly contrelled as follows

+* by DOOR, SLP, a imited partnership registered and incorporated in Jersey;
+ by QD UK Holdings LP, a imited partnership registered and mcorporated in Scotland; and
* by Stichting Depositary APG Strategic Real Estate Pool, 2 pension fund asset manager based in the Netherlands.

Subseguent to the year end QD UK Holdings LP, one of the Group’s controlling parties, exchanged on a transaction to dispose
of Its entire shareholding 0 Get Living PLC to Aware Super, an Austraian superannuation fund.

15. Contingent liabilities
For detalls on contingent liabilities see note 32 in the Group accourts. There are no othar contingent liabikties that mpact
the Company.

16. Subsequent events
For detalls on subsequent events see note 36 1IN the Group accounts. There are no other subseguent events that impact the Company.
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Glossary of terms

Assured Shorthold Tenancies ("AST”) are the agreements used
by ‘andlords to iet residential properties to private tenants.

Inherent Risk is untreated r'sk without any mitigating actions
or controls.

Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment
Method ("BREEAM™) assesses the sustanabil'ty of bulldings
aga nst a range of criteria.

Build to Rent ("BtR”) s private rented res aent al assets, built
and des gned speaifcally for rent ng

Company ana/or parent s Get L v-ng PLC.

Direct property costs comprse ground rents payable under heaa
ieases, void costs, other direct rrecoverable property expenses,
rent review fees and valuation fees.

DOOR 15 Delancey Oxford Residential, a co-inpvestment vehicle.

Earnings before interest, tax, depreclation and amortisation
("EBITDAY) s a metric used to evaiuate a company’'s
operating performance.

Earnings per ordinary share from continuing operations (“EPS™)
15 the prof t attributable to eguty holders of the Parent g'viced by
the weighted average number of shares inissue during the period

European Public Real Estate Association (“EPRA”) 1s a real estate
industry body, wh ¢ch has issued Best Practice Recommendat ons
n order to prov'ae consistency and transparency n real estate
reporting across Eurooe. Get Living has not ear y adopteac the
new EPRA Best Practice Recommendations ("BPRs").

EPRA cost ratle 15 the rat o of net overheads and operating
expenses against gross rentai income {w th both amounis
exclud ng grouna rants payao'e). Net overheads and operating
expenseas reiate to all administrat ve and operating expenses,
net of any service fees. recharges or other iIncome specificarly
irtengec to cover overhead ana property expenses,

EPRA earnings is the profit after taxation excluaing nvestment
and gevelopment property revamations, gains, 0sses on disposals,
changes in the fair value of francia .rstrurrents and associated
close-out costs and therr related taxation

EPRA vacancy rate is, as a percentage, the ERV of vacant space i~
the Group's property portfolio aviaged by ERV of the whole portfel'o,

Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) are the three
key factors 'n measuring sustainability.

Estimated rental value (“ERV") s the external Valuers' opinion as to the
open market rert which, on the date of valuation, coula reasonably be
expected to be obtained on a new letting or rent review of a property.

GHG s greenhouse gas emissions.

GRESB s the .eading ESG benchmark for real estate and
infrastructure investments across the world

INREY 5 the European Association for Investors in Non-Listed
Real Estate

Interast cover s the number of times net nterest payable s
covered by net renta income.

interest Cover Ratio (“ICR”) charge 15 appl'cab-e to UK REITS
when property profits do not pass the leverage test, being 1.25
times the property financing costs.

Interest rate cap s 3 contract {0 receive payments whean nterest
rates are above a certain threshoid, and 1s generally used to
manage exposure to fluctuat'ons in :nterest rates.

Interest rate swap s a contract to exchange fixed payments for
floating payments inkea to an interest rate, and s genera‘ly used
to manage exposure to fluctuations in nterest rates.

Loan to value ("LTV") s the ratio of net debt to the total value of
nvestment and trading property.

Mark to market (“MTM™) s the differerce between the book value
of an asset or Labihity and its market va-ue.

Net debt 15 total borrow ngs, excluding 'can i1ssue costs, ess
unrestr cted cash.

Net promoter score (“NPS’) measures customer experence and
predicts business growth. This proven metric provides the core
measurement for customer experience management gicbaly.

The Net Promoter Score can range from a low of -100 (f every
customer s unhappy) te a high of 100 {'f every customer 1s happy
to refer others).

Net rental income s the rental 'ncome recevab e in the pericd
after payment of d'rect property costs Net rental ‘ncome s
guoted on an accounting bas:s.

Portfolio vailue ncluces both investment and trading property.

Property Income Distributlon (“PID”) s the required distribution
of Income as dividends under the REIT regime If1s calculatea as
0% of exempted net iIncome.

PRS s the UK private rented sector.

Real Estate Investment Trust (“REIT") s 2 listed property
company which gqualifies for and has elected intc a tax reg me,
which exempts qual fying UK profits, arising from property

rental income and gans on investment property aisposals, from
carporation tax, but which has a number of specific requirements.

Rent reviaws take place at ntervals agreed 'n the lease and their
purpose 1s usua ly to adjust the rent to the current rmarket level at
the review date.

Gross rental income s the gross accounting rent recevabe

RICS Is the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

Group s Get Livng PLC and 'ts subs aiaries

SECR is Streamlined Energy & Carbon Reporting

IFRIC ‘s the IFRS Interpretat ons Committee Updates

IFRS ‘s international Financ’a. Report'ng Standards.

Steriing Overnight Index Average (“SONIA") s the effective
reference for overnight 'ndexed swaps for unsecured transactions
In the Sterling market,
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FURTHER INFORMATION

APPENDIX: SECR Reporting Methodology

The Compamies {(Directors’ Report) and Limited Liability
Partnerships {(Energy ard Carbon Report) Reguiatons

2018 also referred to as Streamiined Energy and Carbon
Reporting {SECR). requires ail quoted companies, "large”
unguoted companies and LLPs to report their UK energy use,
associated Scope 1and 2 emissions, an intensity metrc and,
whaore applicable, global erergy use m thelr Annual 1ieports,
Get Living PLC has followed the GHG Reporting Protocol -
Corporate Standard] for company reporting to identify and
report relevant energy and GHG emissions which are material
for the company for the year ending 31 December 2022,

Data 1s Inciuded for the year 31 December 2021 to enable
comparison with the previous year

Get Living has considered the materiahty of envirecnmental
impacts arising from its cperations and «dertified GHG emissions
{generated via energy use) for Scope 1 and 2 to be the most
significart. This assessment was based on firancial spend and
the ability for Get Living to contral impacts. Although Scope 3
emissions reporting 15 voluntary, Get Living believes the impacts
from resident’s energy use 1S material and has also included
the related GHG emissions i this report Other areas, such as
water, waste, blodiversity and ermissions to arr, water ard fand
are deemed iess material, however, some or all :mpacts may
be reportad :n the future.

Scope

Get _ving PLC has chosen 1o report GHG emissions using the
Operationa: Control approach for its organisational boundary.
This boundary ncludes owned assets where the REIT, acting
as the landlara, 1s directly responsible for electricity and/or
gas suppies and/or has control of air conditicning equiprmert
Additionalty, Get Living has included ary scope 3 materiai
sources of emissions from owned assets, such as resident's
electricity use in the reporting scope, where data s avallable
Emisswons from ras.dential units under control of Triathlon
Homes on a long leasehoid agreement are excluded, on the
basis that these umits are not under the operational control
of Get Living PLC.

Get Livirg PLC has considered the seven main GHGs covered
by the Kyoto protocol, \including’

Carbon dioxide (CO.)

Methanre (CH,)

Nitrous oxide (N,O)
Hydroftuorccarbons (HFCs)
Perfluorocarbons (PFCs)

Sulphur Hexafluorde (S5F )

Nitrogen Trifluoride (NF,)

Total GHG emissions are reported in terms of carbon dioxide
equivalent (COe) Conversion factors have beer sourced from
the UK Government's Greenhouse Gas Reporting Factors for
Company Reporting (2021 and 2022)

The following sources of emissions have been considered
as part of this review:

Scope 1

+« Direct emissions from controlled gas boilers in energy
centres at Fiephant Centrai New Maker Yards (converted
from kWwh usage).

* Business travel through company cwned vehicles
(excluded as emissions from vehicle use 1s negligible for
the reporting pericd).

s Get Living PLC has chosen not to report fugitive emissions,
e g. from refrigerant leaks

Scope 2

Indirect emussions from electricity purchased by Get Living
PLC and consumed within real estate assets owned by the
company (converted from kWwh usage)

.

Indirect emissions from district heating purchased by Get
Living PLC and consumed within landlord controlled areas
of real estate assets owned by the company (converted
from kWh usage) Emissions have been apportioned
between landlord and tenant use or a flocor area basis.

Greenhouse Gas (GHG)Y emissions from electricity ard
district heating (Scope 2) are reported according to the
“ocation-based’ approach.

Scope 3

= irdirect ermissions from electricity purchased by Get Living
PLC assets residents and consumed within real estate assets
owned by the compary (convertea from kWh usage)

Inchrect emissiors from district heatng purchased by Get
Livinrg PLC and cansumed witkin residential urits of real
estate assets owned by the company {converted from kWwh
usage) Emissions have been apportiored between the
lanalord and tenant use or a floor area basis

Emissions within Operational Control

As a property company, the majorty of Get Living PLC
emissions arise through assets that are owned and leasea.
At multi-let properties, Get _iving PLC acting as the iandlord,
has contror and influence over the whole buillding and/or
shared services, externai lighting and void spaces In this
reporting year, Get Living PLC was responsible for Scope ?
ard/cr Scope 2 emissions at the assets held by entities hsted
in note 37 to the fimancial statements All Get Living PLC's
assets are located in the UK.

Carbon Offsets
No carbon offsets were purchased during the
reporting period

Emissions outside of Operational Control

Get Living PLC 1s not directly responsible for any GHG
ernissions/energy usage at single let/FRI assets nor at multi-let
assets whare the tenant Is counterparty to the erergy contract.
These emissions form part of the wider value chain (.e ‘Scope 39
emissions, which are currently monitored and reported only
for tenants energy use. Emissions from residential units under
controf of Triathlon Homes on a long leasehold agreement

are excluded, or the basis that these units are not under

the operational control of Get Living PLC

Baseline Year

A baseline year of 2021 has been seected to enable
comparison over time. The baseiine year comprises energy/
GHG data from all the assets (where data has been reported).
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Intensity Ratios (Key Performance Indicator)

In addition to reporting relevant absolute GHG ermissions

(by scope and per sector), Get Living PLC has chosen to
report intensity ratios, where appropriate. The denominator
determined to be most relevant Lo the business Is square
metres of net lettable area. The intensity ratio is expressed as:

« Energy: kilowatt hours per metre square (net lettable area)
per year, or, KWh/m2/yr

* GHG: kilograms carbon dioxide equivalent per metre square
(net lettable area) per year, or, kgCOze/m?/yr.

Like-for-like Reporting
Assets are included within ike-for-like and intensity analysis
where each of the foilowing conditions 1s met;

+ assets owred for two consecutive years;

* no major renovation or refurbishment has taken place
re. affecting more than 50% of the bullding by area or

number of occupants,

at least 24 months data s availlable; ard

buildings have mamntaired at least 75% occupancy 1 the
last 24 months

New Maker Yards Phase 1 tenant electricity has been excluded
from | Ike-for-like due te data availabiity, whilst New Maker
Yards Phase 2 and Portlands Place have been excluded from
ke-for-ilke due to the deveiopment works beirg completed
during the 2021 reporting year

Normalisation Factors

Normalisation of intensity ratios and like-for-uke data has been
completed to account for year-on-year changes in annual
termperatures. Apnual gas usage data for 2022 has been
compared to, and normalised against, the UK degree day
ratio betweer 2021 and 2022 Degree days data 15 sourced
from www.degreedays.net using the closest and most relable
weather station to each asset.

As 2022 was a warmer year than 2021, this normalisat:on
presents an increase in like-for-llke degree day adjusted
emissions and energy consumption where absolute energy
consumption 1s unchanged. This reflects that during a warmer
year the energy required to heat a space should be reduced,
and therefcre the consumption in the warmer year 1s adjusted
upwards to negate the impact of the warmer weather.

No further adjustments are considered for this Arnual Report,
however. further evaluation concerning occupancy and/or
operation hours may De considered in the future.

Data Collection and Validation

Data has been sourced from Get Living's Property Managers
and thewr utihty brokers. Data 15 held within the sustamnability
data platform SIERA which 1s used as the basis for data checking
and validation. 'n summary, the apphied process Includes

1 Confirmation of asset location and scope of landlord
impacts (Scopes 1 and 2)

2. input of Scope T and Scope 2 data (provided by Property
Managers and appointed brokers)

3 Completion of data accuracy checks

4 Inial review and/or approval of data (by Property Managers)

Furthermore, enargy use within the assets is actively tracked
and reported agamst on an annual basis.

EVORA has reviewed the accuracy of data as determined by
actual or estimated kWh usage. As a percentage of the total
kWh reported, actual/estimated data was reported con the
following hasis for 2021 and 2022:

» Scope ) (gas) 96% actual data/4% estimated
« Scope 2 (electrncity) 99% actual data/1% estimated
« Scope 3 (residents electricity): 99% actual data/1% estimated

Note that residentiai electricity has been excluded at New
Maker Yards Phase 2. Data 1s only avaiabie for residential
units on a move In / move out basis and, due to the age of
the asset, data 1s currently unavallabte

Where data estimations have been calculateq, the following
approach has been undertaken:

Etectricity” Average daily consumptior rate calculated from
actual data received in same year ard apportiored over the
data gap perod.

Gas Actual gas consumption for the same months at
Middlewood Locks Phase 1 used to fill gaps in Middlewood
Locks Phase 2, uplifted for floor area d:fferences

District Heating: No district heating esttmations have
been required.

Scope 1 data {(gas) 15 based or whole asset data as the
landlord procures the main gas supply to the heat plants
which 1s then provided and recharged to residents through
heat meters.

Scope 2 and scope 3 district heatirg has been apportioned
between landlord and tenant space on a floor area basis to
better reflect the consumption of heat at the asset,

ENERGY EFFICIENCY ACTIONS

Data aualty and granularity 15 a key focus in prioritising
asset-level energy eff ciency and sustainability measures,
Throughout 2022, asset performance was monitored through
a 'data guardian’ process. Get Living uses SIERA to collect and
validate energy and GHG emission data (as well as water and
waste) for all assets where the portfohic has cperational control
A quarterly dashboard enables data trends to be visualised,
atlowing for improved engagerment with property management
teams to understand and act upon consumption trends. Data
guality has been improved through this process, for example
ensuring that district heating at East Village can be included in
this year's report, having been excluded last year

The value of this process will continue to improve as data quality
and granulanty improves, aided by a smart meter pilot process
has been implemented for automated data collection at the
ndividual unit-level, with a view to rolling this out on a wider
basis in future reporting years. This automaticn shoutd also
lead to improved access to tenant data. Additronally, Get
Living has established energy reduction targets across all

the assets. The quarterly monitorng of data will better allow
progress agalnst these targets to be monitored.

Further to this, Get Living has carrted out training for all Estate and
Property Managers on ESG topics, including monitoring of energy
usage, reporting of energy data and improvernent cpportunities.
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